ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
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OR!ZINAL RECEIVED

' LONG-TERM CARE __ DEC 19 2016
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
! HEALTH FACILITIES &
SECTION I. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFTEATIRY BOARD
This Section must be completed for all projects. / 4 053

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

Project Type
[Check one) {check one]
[]  Establishment of a new LTC facility
X General Long-term Care O Establishment of new LTC services
' X Expansion of an existing LTC facility or
O Specialized Long-term Care service

X Modernization of an existing facility

Narrative Description

Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done, NOT WHY itis
being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal description of the site. Include the
rationale regarding the project's classification as substantive or non-substantive.

Include: the number and type of beds invoived; the actions proposed (establishment, expansion andfor
modernization); the ESTIMATED total project cost and the funding source{s) for the project.

Westminster Village (“Westminster”) is a not-for-profit continuing care retirement
community serving seniors in the Bloomington Normal area since 1979. Westminster is home to
approximately 340 residents, with 179 independent living apartments and 22 Independent Living
Townhouses, 52 assisted living apartments and 78 licensed beds in skilled care on a 40-acre site.
It is located in Bloomington at 2025 East Lincoln Street.

" Westminster currently has a waiting list of 278 applicants for its independent living to
accommodate this demand. Westminster has developed a master plan to increase all components
of care in its community.

The first phase of the master plan will be to do an extensive modernization of the existing
78 bed skilled facility and to construct an addition that will increase capacity to 96 beds (the
“Project™). The facility was constructed beginning 1979. Presently all of the existing rooms,
except two, are double occupancy and do not have private showers. The modernization and
expansion will allow all rooms to have private showers and to be ‘primarily private rooms (80
private rooms and 8 semi-private rooms). The facility essentially runs at functional target
occupancy when adjusted for those residents who have paid to make the room a private room.
Before Westminster can undertake to expand the Independent Living it must ensure sufficient
capacity to accommodate the additional residents who will likely later require skilled care. The
skilled facility will be configured for small neighborhoods of 12-24 residents with associated

small dining rooms.

Page 1

113662408.7 1




ILLINGIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
: July 2012 Edition

Later phases of the master plan include building a new 60-unit building for Assisted
Living plus a 12 room AL dementia unit. The AL building will be remodeled to accommodate
additional Independent Living. The third phase will be to add independent apartments for a total
for 210, plus the existing 22 townhomes and additional 60 independent hybrid units. This will
increase the number of independent and assisted units by 110 units. These projects will be in
subsequent phases and are not included in this CON application.

The Project in this application has an estimated project cost of $21,850,132 and an
estimated completion date of December 31, 2019. The existing 31,362 sf building will be
extensively modernized and the addition will involve 42,550 sf of new construction. Because this
Project adds 18 beds, it is considered “substantive” under the Board’s rules.
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Facility/Project ldentification
Facility. Name: Westminster Village, Inc.
Street Address: 2025 East Lincoln Street

City and Zip Code: Bloomington, lllinois 61701
County:  McClean Health Service Area: 004 Health Planning Area: 113

Applicant /Co-Applicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: Westminster Village, inc.

Address: 2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, llinois 61701
Name of Registered Agent: Barbara Nathan

Name of Chief Executive Officer. Barbara Nathan

CEOQ Address: 2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, Iflinois 61701
Telephone Number: (309) 6636474

Type of Ownership (Applicant/Co-Applicants)

X Non-profit Corporation O Partnership
(0  For-profit Corporation O Governmental
O Limited Liability Company [0  Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good

standing.
o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and addrass of

each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

Primary Contact

[Person to receive ALL correspondence or inquiries)

Name:. Barbara Nathan

Title;: CEQ '

Company Name: Westminster Village, Inc.

Address: 2025 East Lincoin Street, Bloomington, lllincis 61701
Telephone Number: (309) 663-6474

E-mail Address: bnathan@westminstervillageinc.com

Fax Number; {309) 663-1009

Additional Contact

[Person who is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]
Name: Joe Qurth

Title: Partner

Company Name: Amstein & Lehr LLP

Address: 120 S. Riverside Plaza, Suite 1200, Chicago, lllinois 60606
Telephone Number: (312) 876-7815

E-mail Address. jourth@arnstein.com

Fax Number; (312) 876-6215
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Post Permit Contact
{Person to receive all corespondence subsequent to permitissuance. This person must be an

employee of the applicant.]

Name: Barbara Nathan

Title; CEQ ,

Company Name: Westminster Village, Inc.

Address: 2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, lllinois 61701
Telephone Number: (309) 663-6474

E-mail Address: bnathan@westminstervillageinc.com
Fax Number: {309) 663-1009

Site Ownership

{Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner: Westminster Village, Inc.

Address of Site Owner: 2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, lllinois 61701

Street Address or Legal Description of Site:

2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, {liinois 61701

Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as . Examples of proof of ownership are property
tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation attesting to

ownersh!p, an option to Iease. a Ietter of intent to lease ora lease

AP "‘(;IJ FATIONSA:
,APPLICAT{Q&FORML SR

Operating Identity/l.icensee

[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]
Exact Legal Name: Westminster Village, Inc.

Address: 2025 East Lincoln Streef, Bloomington, lllincis 1701

X Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
| For-profit Corporation ) Governmental
| Limited Liability Company J Sole Proprietorship dJ Other

o . Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Centificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of

Organizational Relationships
Provide (for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related person or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contnbutron

SENC T e
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Flood Plain Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.]

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lilinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or www.illinoisfloodmaps.arq. This map must be in a
readable format. In addition please provide a statement attesting that the project complies with the

requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5 (http:/iwww.hfsrb.illinois.qov).

ST,

i %Méj FTWTO"I m&m; T‘muﬁﬁi{&ﬁqgﬁﬂﬁL\juqm,&:ﬁﬂ i,‘.w_
ATIONIEGRMY ) N - R i

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
[Refer to application instructions.)

Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

TIONASIATT ACHMENT S TINNUMERICISEQUENTAITORD S

State Agency Submittals

The following submittals are up- to- date, as applicable:

X All formal document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

X All reports regarding outstanding permits

If the applicant fails to submit updated information for the requirements listed above, the
application for permit will be deemed incomplete. :
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CERTIFICATION

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited Hiability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist),

o in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficianies (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Parmit is filed on the behalf of WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and bettef. The undersigned also certifies that the panmt application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be pai

2P

{{ SIGNATURE

ATURE
BARBARA NATHAN
JAY REECE
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Chief Executive Officer
President, Governing Board
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and swom to before me Subscribed and swormn to befpre me
this St day of _TYics wahson 4 2010 this ™ day of _"—C‘mlt‘:ﬁh_l 2o1e

éSi%ature of Notary ; I Signature of Notary Q

OFFICIAL SEAL
SABRIN#ehl PAMPEL

Notary Public - State of lilinois

My Gommission Expires 10/06/2018

OFFICIAL SEAL
CAROPe® J. DOLLARHIDE

Notary Public - State of Illinois
My Commtsswn Explres 9/1 4{201 8
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE

A CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

December 8, 2016

Ms. Kathryn J. Olson

Chair

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson Street--2" Floor

Springfield, IL 62761

Re:  Westminster Village
Permit Application for Modernization and Expansion

Dear Chairwoman Olson,

We are excited to submit our application for a permit for improvements to our
community.

History of Westminster Village

Westminster Village (“Westminster”) is a not-for-profit continuing care retirement
community with a rich history of serving seniors in the Bloomington Normal area since 1979.
Westminster is home to approximately 340 residents, with 176 independent living apartments, 22
duplexes, 52 assisted living apartments and 78 licensed beds in skilled care on a 40-acre site.

Proposed Plans

Residents enjoy living at the Westminster Village. Currently there are 278 applicants on
our waiting list for independent living. To accommodate this demand our Board of Directors has
developed a master plan to increase all components of Westminster Village’s continuing care.

Phase I — Skilled Care. The initial phase will be to: (i) completely modernize our existing
78 licensed bed facility to convert these beds from shared rooms to primarily private
rooms, and (ii) increase the number of licensed bed to 96.

Phase II — Assisted Living. After the skilled living project is complete, we will construct
a new assisted living building that adjoins the skilled care facility. The new assisted
living building will be built for 60 apartments plus 12 memory care units.

Phase III — Independent Living. Once the new assisted living building is complete, the
current assisted living space will be renovated to return it to its original independent
living use. Additionally, other townhomes and other independent living space will be

2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, IL 61701 | {309} 663-6474 | www.westminstervillageinc.com
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constructed during this phase. This phase will increase independent living capacity from
176 apartments to 201 apartments plus 22 townhomes and 60 hybrid units.

Long Wait Lists for Residents

Westminster currently has a waiting list of 278 applicants to enter independent living.
The wait for a one-bedroom apartment at Westminster is currently 8 months, the wait for a
regular two- bedroom is 12 months and the wait for the largest two-bedroom units is
approximately 24 months. The current inventory consists of one-bedroom apartments (50%) and
two-bedroom apartments (50%) with the preference being for the two-bedroom units.

Need for Skilled Care Modernization and Expansion

Westminster is currently configured in three, three-story apartment buildings, all in a “Y™
configuration, and the one-story skilled care facility. Skilled care is housed in a 1970°s style
facility named Martin Health Center (“Center”) in honor of Dr. Martin. Licensed for 78 beds, 76
are in semi-private rooms and only two are actual private rooms. There is a long wait list for the
private rooms. In the last year, seven residents have secured a private room in the Center by
paying for both beds, thus dropping the effective census occupancy to 71 beds. The Center’s
census last year averaged 66 residents.

In recent years the Center has been completely full numerous times and residents from
Westminster had to be cared for in facilities not on the Westminster campus. This creates a
hardship for residents and families as they are separated from the continuum of care that they
expected to receive, and in many cases are separated from spouses and friends that can provide
ongoing support and interaction while they were rehabilitating. In this past year, some residents
have chosen to go elsewhere because our skilled care facility cannot provide a private room for
them.

In order to meet the growing census for skilled care, as well as our increasing demand for
independent living, we determined that the first phase of our master plan should be to build a
two-story addition to the Center with 24 private rooms per floor and to renovate the Center’s
existing rooms and community spaces. Qur plan is to establish a “neighborhood” model
providing support and care in 12-resident neighborhoods, ultimately creating a community of 80
private rooms and 8 semi-private rooms. Currently there are showers in only the two actual
private rooms. This renovation will add private showers into all bathrooms. The level of finish
will be equal in both the new and the renovated areas so as not to create a preference for one area
over another. Small dining and living room spaces will add to the small-house model and
improve our ability to provide restdent-centered care.

Assisted Living and Independent Living Phases

Once the skilled care expansion is complete, the next step in our master plan (not part of
this application) will be to construct a new assisted living facility. Once the new assisted living
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facility is built, its current location can be renovated and returned to independent living,
increasing that inventory and meeting the needs of the waiting list. In order to locate the new
assisted living building in front of the existing facility, the main entrance must to be relocated.
Thus, Phase I of this Project includes a new front entrance for Westminster, a new entrance
building and renovation of common spaces to serve a larger population in the future.

Westminster has been the choice of thousands of individuals over its 37-year history. It
has, and continues to be, a very successful organization and these future plans will ensure its
success in meeting its mission of “Celebrating life, Westminster Village provides excellence in
senior }iving through a continuum of care and services.” We look forward to working with the
Review Board through this review process.

Very truly yours,

\%ﬂ
Barbara Nathan

CEO

113659966.2
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SECTION Il - PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES —
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to ALL projects.
Criterion 1125,320 - Purpose of the Project

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide heaith servicesr that improve the health care or weli-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. . Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition.

3. Identify the existing problems or issues that need to be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. \

4. Cite the sources of the information provided as documentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previously referenced issues, as well as the population’s
health status and well-being.

6. Provide goals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate to achieving
" the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modemization, describe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records.

Criterion 1125.330 — Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

ALTERNATIVES
1. Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

a. Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

b, Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet ail or a portion of the project’s intended purposes;

c. Utilizing other health care resaurces that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project; and
d. Provide the reasons why the chaosen altemnative was selected.
Page 7
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Documentation shall consist of a comparisen of the project to alternative options. . The
comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years afler project completion) and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE {DENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

The appiicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified cutcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

Page B
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SECTION Ill - BED CAPACITY, UTILIZATION AND APPLICABLE REVIEW
CRITERIA '

This Section is applicable to all projects proposing establishment, expansion or modernization of
LTC categories of service that are subject to CON review, as provided in the lllinois Health
Facilities Planning Act [20 ILCS 3960]. It is comprised of information requirements for each LTC

category of service, as well as charts for each service, indicating the review criteria that must be
addressed for each action (establishment, expansion and modernization). After identifying the
applicable review criteria for each category of service involved , read the criteria and provide the required
information, AS APPLICABLE TO THE CRITERIA THAT MUST BE ADDRESSED:

Criterion 1125.510 - Introduction

Bed Capacity

Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modemize General Long Term Care must submit
the following information: '

indicate bed capacity changes by Service: 2015
Total # Total #
Category of Service Existing Beds After
Beds* Project
Completion
X General Long-Term 78 96
Care

] Specialized Long-
Term Care

L

*Existing number of beds as authorized by [DPH and posted in the “LTC Bed Inventory” on the
HFSRB website (www.hrfsb.illinois.gov). PLEASE NQTE: ANY bed capacity discrepancy from the
Inventory will result in the application being deemed incomplete.

Utilization

Utilization for the most current CALENDAR YEAR: 2015

Category of Service Year Admissions Patient Days
X General Long Term | 2015 102 24,310
Care

[] Specialized Long-
Term Care

Page 9

113662408.7 12




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
July 2012 Edition

Applicable Review Criteria - Guide
The review criteria listed below must be addressed, per the LTC rules contained in 77 1ll. Adm.
Code 1125. See HFSRB'’s website to view the subject criteria for each project type -

(http:/fhfsrb.illinois.qov). To view LTC rules, click on “Board Administrative Rules” and
then ciick on “77 lil. Adm. Code 1125".

READ THE APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA QUTLINED BELOW and submit the required
documentation for the criteria, as described in SECTIONS IV and V:

Section Subject
Establishment of .520 Background of the Applicant
Services or Facility .530(a) Bed Need Determination

.530(b) Service to Planning Area
Residents
.540(a) or {b) + (c} + | Service Demand - Establishment
(d} or (&) of General Long Term Care
570(a) & (b) Service Accessibility
.580(a) & (b) Unnecessary Duplication &
Maldistribution
.580(c) Impact of Project on Other Area
Providers
.590 Staffing Availability
600 Bed Capacity
610 Community Related Functions
620 Project Size
630 Zoning
.640 Assurances
.800 Estimated Total Project Cost
Appendix A Project Costs and Sources of Funds
Appendix B Related Project Costs
Appendix C Praject Status and Completion
Schedule
Appendix D Project Status and Completion
Schedule

113662408.7
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Continuum of Care - 520 Background of the Applicant
Establishment or .560(a)(1) through (3) | Continuum of Care Components
Expansion 590 Staffing Availability
600 Bed Capacity
.610 Community Related Functions
630 Zoning
.640 Assurances
800 Estimated Total Project Cost
_Appendix A Project Costs and Sources of Funds
Appendix B Related Project Costs
Appendix C Project Status and Completion
Schedule
Appendix D Project Status and Completion
Schedule

'Background of the Apphcant:,-,

i Schedule T
. |, Project Status and: Completlon‘t )
| Schedulg me Tl aBah

Modernization .650(a) Deteriorated Facilities
.850(b} & (¢} Documentation
.650(d) Utilization
.600 Bed Capacity
610 Community Related Functions
.620 Project Size
.630 Zoning
.800 Estimated Total Project Cost
Appendix A Project Costs and Sources of Funds
Appendix B Related Project Costs
Page 11
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Appendix C Project Status and Completion
Schedule
Appendix D Project Status and Completion
Schedule
/
Page 12
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SECTION IV - SERVICE SPECIFIC REVIEW CRITERIA

GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE

Criterion 1125.520 - Background of the Applicant

BACKGROUND OF APPLICANT

The applicant shall provide:

1. Alisting of ali health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and certification if
applicable.

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or operated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitiing HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation

" organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB. ‘

4. |If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided with the prior applications may be utilized to fulfili the information requirements of
this criterion. in such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previously provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

Criterion 1125.530 - Planning Area Need

1. ldentify the calculated number of beds needed (excess) in the planning area. See HFSRB
website (http://hfsrb.illinois.gov) and click on “Health Facilities Inventories & Data".

2. Altest that the primary purpose of the project is to serve residents of the planning area and
that at least 50% of the patients will come from within the planning area.

3. Provide letters from referral sources (hospitals, physicians, social services and others) that
attest to total number of prospective residents (by zip code of residence) who have received
care at existing LTC facilities located in the area during the 12-month period prior to .
submission of the application. Referral sources shall verify their projections and the
methodology used, as described in Section 1125.540.

T ot Lt e AT Fﬁv';,.q_h}-- ————

ATTAGHMENTAS; (RENUMe
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Criterion1125.540 - Service Demand - Establishment of General Long Term Care

Document the number of referrals to other facilities, for each proposed category of service,
for each of the latest two years. Documentation of the referrals shall include: resident/patient
erigin by zip code; name and spegcialty of referring physician or identification of another
referral source; and name and location of the recipient LTC facility.

Provide letters from referral sources (hospitals, physicians, social services and others) that
attest to total number of prospective residents (by zip code of residence) who have received
care at existing L.TC facilities located in the area during the 12-month period prior to
submission of the application. Referral sources shall verify their projections and the
methodology used.

Estimate the number of prospective residents whom the referral sources will refer annually to
the applicant's facility within a 24-month period after project completion. Please note:

« The anticipated number of referrals cannot exceed the referral sources' documented
historical LTC caseload.

» The percentage of project referrals used to justify the proposed expansion cannot
exceed the historical percentage of applicant market share, within a 24-month period

after project completion

» Each referral letter shall contain the referral source's Chief Executive Officer's
notarized signature, the typed or printed name of the referral source, and the referral

source's address

Provide verification by the referral sources that the prospective resident referrals have not
been used to support another pending or approved Certificate of Need (CON) application for

the subject services.

. If a projected demand for service is based upon rapid popuiation growth in the

applicant facility's existing market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-
month period), the projected service demand shal be determined as follows:

a. The applicant shall define the facility's market area based upon historical
resident/patient origin data by zip code or census tract,

b. Population projections shall be produced, using, as a base, the population census or
estimate for the most recent year, for county, incorparated place, township or
community area,by the U.S. Bureau of the Census or IDPH,;

c. Projections shall be for a maximum period of 10 years from the date the application is
submitted;

d. Historical data used to calculate projections shall be for a number of years no less

Page 14
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than the number of years projected;

Projections shall contain documentation of population changes in terms of births,
deaths and net migration for a period of time equal to or in excess of the projection
horizon;

Projections shall be for total population and specified age groups for the applicant's
market area, as defined by HFSRB, for each category of service in the application
(see the HFSRB Inventory); and

Documentation on projection methodology, data sources, assumptions and special
adjustrments shall be subritted to HFSRB.

Criterion 1125.550 - Service Demand — Expansion of General Long-Term Care

1.

The applicant shali document #1 and either #2 or #3:
Historical Service Demand

a.

Projected Referrals
The applicant shall provide documentation as described in Section 1125.540{d).

If a projected demand for service is based upon rapid population growth in the
applicant facility’s existing market area (as experienced annually within the latest 24-
month period), the projected service demand shall be determined as described in Section
11256.540 (e).

An average annual occupancy rate that has equaled or exceeded occupancy
standards for general LTC, as specified in Section 1125.210(c), for each of the
latest two years.

If prospective residents have been referred to other facilities in order to receive
the subject services, the applicant shall provide documentation of the referrals,
including completed applications that could not be accepted due to lack of the
subject service and documentation from referral sources, with identification of
those patients by initials and date.

Criterion 1125.570 - Service Accessibility

1. . Service Restrictions

The applicant shall document that at least one of the following factors exists in the planning
area, as applicable:

113662408.7
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. Additional documentation required:

The applicant shall provide the following documentation, as applicable, concerning existing
restrictions to service access:

a.

b.

o

o The absence of the proposed service within the planning area;

o Access limitations due to payor status of patients/residents, including, but not limited to,
individuals with LTC coverage through Medicare, Medicaid, managed care or charity
care,

o Restrictive admission policies of existing providers; dr

o The area population and existing care system exhibit indicators of medical care
problems, such as an average family income level below the State average poverty
level, or designation by the Secretary of Health and Human Services as a Health

Professional Shortage Area, a Medically Underserved Area, or a Medically Underserved
Population.

The location and utilization of other planning area service providers;
Patient/resident location information by zip code;

Independent time-travel studies;

Certification of a waiting list;

Admission restrictions that exist in area providers;

An assessment of area population characteristics that document that access problems exist;

Most recehtiy published IDPH Long Term Care Facilities Inventory and Data (see
www.hfsrb.illinois.gov).

Criterion 1125.580 - Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution

1.

2. The appIicant- shall document that the project will not result in maldistribution of services.

The applicant shall provide the following information:

d.

A list of all zip code areas that are located, in total or in part, within 30 minutes normal travel
time of the project's site;

The total population of the identified zip code areas (based upon the most recent population
numbers available for the State of lllinois); and

The names and locations of all existing or approved LTC facilities located within 30 minutes
normai travel time from the project site that provide the categories of bed service that are
proposed by the project.

113662408.7
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3. The applicant shall document that, within 24 months after project completion, the proposed
project: ‘

a. Will not lower the utilization of other area providers below the occupancy standards specified
in Section 1125.210(c); and

b. Will not lower, to a further extent, the utilization of other area facilities that are currently
{during the latest 12-month pericd) operating below the occupancy standards.

Criterion 1125.590 - Staffing Availability

1. For each category of service, document that relevant clinical and professional staffing needs for
the proposed project were considered and that licensure and JCAHO staffing requirements can be

met.
2. Provide the following documentation:
a. The name and qualification of the person currently fiifing the position, if applicable; and
b. Letters of interest from potential employees; and
- c. Applications filed for each position; and
d. Signed contracts with the required staff; or

e. A narrative explanation of how the proposed staffing will be achieved.

o -:gtgg é] ﬁJZ’ ": Sl b’f,@.! --“".’ R
PEND.D cumE”NTATlou ‘as ATTACHMENT-
__l_.fog'neN FORM_ % 7o :

Criterion 1125.600 Bed Capacity

The maximum bed capacity of a general LTC facility is 250 beds, unless the applicant decuments that a larger facility
would provide personalization of patient/resident care and documents provision of quality care based on the
experience of the applicant and compliance with |DPH's licensure standards (77 Ill. Adm. Code: Chapter |,
Subchapter ¢ (Long-Term Care Facilities)) over a two-year period.

Criterion 1125.610 - Community Related Functions

The applicant shall document cooperation with and the receipt of the endorsement of community groups in the town
or municipality where the facility is or is proposed to be located, such as, but not limited to, social, economic or
overnmental organizations or other concemed parties or groups. Documentation shall consist of copies of all letters

Page 17
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Criterion 1125.620 - Project Size

The applicant shall document that the amount of physicat space proposed for the project is necessary and not
excessive. The proposed gross square footage (GSF) cannot exceed the GSF standards as stated in Appendix A of
771l Adm. Code 1125 (LTC rules), unless the additional GSF can be justified by documenting one of the following:

1. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operational needs,
as supported by published data or studies;

2. The existing facility's physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an architectural
design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix A;

3. The project involves the conversion of existing bed space that results in excess square footage.

Criterion 1125.630 - Zoning

The applicant shall document one of the following:
1. The property to be utilized has been zoned for the type of facility to be developed;

2. Zoning approval has been received; or

3. Avariance in zoning for the project is Lo be sought.

O o i R LT L

ETER THE LAST PAGE QF THE

3

Criterion 1125.640 - Assurances

1. The applicant representative who signs the CON application shall submit a signed and
dated statement attesting to the applicant's understanding that, by the second year of
operation after the project completion, the applicant will achieve and maintain the
occupancy standards specified in Section 1125.210(c) for each category of service

_involved in the proposal.

2. For beds that have been approved based upon representations for continuum of care
(Section 1125.560(a)) or defined population (Section 1125.560(b)), the facility shall
provide assurance that it will maintain admissions limitations as specified in those
Sections for the life of the facility. To eliminate or modify the admissions limitations, prior
approval of HFSRB will be required.

Page 18
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Criterion 1125.650 - Modernization

1. Ifthe prdjecl involves modemization of a category of LTC bed service, the applicant shall
document that the bed areas to be modernized are deteriorated or functionally obsolete and need
to be replaced or modemized, due to such factors as, but not limited to: :

a. High cost of maintenance;
b. non-compliance with licensing or life safety codes;

¢. Changes in standards of care {e.g., private versus multiple bed rooms); or

d. Additional space for diagnostic or therapeutic purposes.

2, . Documentation shall include the most recent:
a. IDPH and CMMS inspection reports; and

b. Accrediting agency reports.

3. Other documentation shall include the following, as applicable to the faclors cited in the
application:

a. Copies of maintenance reports;
b. Copies of citations for life safety code violations; and

c. Other pertinent reports and data.

4. Projects involving the replacement or modernization of a éategory of service or facifity shafl meet
or exceed the occupancy standards for the categories of service, as specified in Section
1125.210(c).

Page 19
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SECTION V — FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY REVIEW
Criterion 1125.800 Estimated Total Project Cost

The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteeing the funding of the project if the applicant has a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affimed
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

«  Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
+ Financial Viahility ~ Review Criteria
¢« Economic Feasibility - Review Criteria, subsection {a}

Availability of Funds

The applicant shall document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the dollar amount to be provided from the following sources:

a. Cash and Securities — statements {e.g., audited financial statements, letters from financial

institutions, board resolutions) as to:
$1,868,611 10 ard reso s)

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2) interest to be earned on depreciation account funds or to be earned on
any asset from the date of applicant's submission through project
completion;

b. Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing
anlicipated receipts and discounted value, estimated time table of gross receipts and
related fundraising expenses, and a discussion of past fundraising experience.

c. Gifts and Bequests - verification of the dollar amount, identification of any conditions of
use, and the estimated time table of receipts;

d. Debt - a statement of the estimated terms and conditions (including the debt time period,

variable or permanent interest rates over the debt time period, and the anticipated
$19,981,522 repayment schedule) for any interim and for the permanent financing proposed to fund the
project, including:

1. For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required
referendum or evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to
issue the bonds and evidence of the dollar amount of the issue,
inciuding any discounting anticipated;

2. For revenue honds, proof of the feasibility of securing the specified
amount and interest rate;

3. For mortgages, a letter from the prospective lender aftesting to the
' expectation of making the loan in the amount and time indicated,
including the anticipated interest rate and any conditions associated with
the mortgage, such as, but not limited to, adjustable interest rates,
balloon payments, etc.;

4. For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and
conditions, including any purchase options, any capital improvements to
the property and provision of capital equipment;

5. For any option to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and
Page 20
23
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conditions.

e. Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied
by a statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are
to be made available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolution or other action of
the governmental unit attesting to this intent;

f. Grants - a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the
amount and time of receipt;

g. All Other Funds and Sources - verification of the amount and type of any other funds that

$21.850.132 will be used for the project.

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Viability Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. "A” Bond rating or better

2. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

3. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt financing is insured or anticipated to be
4

insured by MBIA (Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.} or equivalent
The applicant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A
rated guarantor.

See Sectron 1120 130 Fmanmal Wawer for lnformatlon to be provnded

e ; : T i i D T
g&gg&@b A r- ’SEQUENT!AL ORD R AFTER“THE L.Asrfagg"o

APPL ) T X ;
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1. The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall
provide viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and
for the first full fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project

- completion, When the applicant's facility does not have fadility specific financial statements and the facility

Page 21

113662408.7 29




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
July 2012 Edition

is a member of a health care system that has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's
viability ratios shall be provided. If the health care system includes one or more hospitals, the system's
viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the applicable hospital standards.

' Provide Datafor Brofects Classifies: |  Cateqoiy-& or Categary B (astthtse years): | Category B
FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 Fy 2021

Current Ratio 4.52 45 29 1.7

Net Margin Percentage 14.4% 14.3% 16.3% 11.0%

Percent Debt to Total Capitalizatidn 25.4% 24.6% 23.2% 67.2%
Projecfed Debt Service Coverage 142 4.6 . 53 1.6

Days Cash on Hand 519.5 554.0 479.8 392.6

Cushion Ratio 122.4 3.0 33.9 9.1

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation and
applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each co-
applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Vanance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall decument that another organization, public
or private, shall assume the legal responsibiiity 1o meet the debt obligations should the applicant default.

*

APEEND ‘%CUMENTaTlDN $ ATTACHMENT.29;'IN.NUWERICAL ORDER'AFTERITHE LAST PAGE O THE
ABPLICATION FORM. - T T e e e

S e N

L L e . - L o . o

Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects

A. .Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a notarized
statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1. That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

2. That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
borrowing because:

A A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 1.5 times for LTC
facilities; or

B. Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the

existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day period.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

Page 22
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This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1. That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the fowest net cost
available;
2. That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, term {years), financing costs and other factors;

3. That the project involves (in total or in parl) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and provide the following:
|dentify each area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost and
square footage allocation for. new construction and/or modernization using the following format
(insert after this page).
COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY SERVICE
A B Cc D E F G H
Area X Total
(list below} Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.” (AxC) (B x E} (G+H)
Contingency
TOTALS

* Include the percentage (%) of space for circulation

D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years
following project compietion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, benefits and supplies
for the service.

Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at farget utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

A TONYA¥AT T ACHIEN 2SN

1
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Complete the following table listing all costs associated with the project. When a project or any

LTC APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

July 2012 Edition

component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair market or
dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated project cost. If
the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related fo the provision of health care,

complete the secand column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preplanning Costs $194,210 $64,490 $258,700
Site Survey and Soil Investigation $98,762 $32,782 $131,544
Site Preparation $490,564 $163,073 $653,637
Off Site Work $106,206 $35,252 $141,459
New Construction Contracts $8,039,461 $2,591,188 $10,630,650
Modemization Contracts $2,864,670 $1,034,973 $3,899,643
Contingencies $1,080,762 $362,268 $1,453,029
Architectural/Engineering Fees $918,752 $304,968 $1,223,720
Consulting and Other Fees $503,578 $166,487 $670,466
Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction $919,954 $310,765 $1,230,719
contracts)

Bond issuance Expense (project related) $212,053 $70,497 $282,550
gela;lgl(;v;rest Expense During Construction (project $319.860 $106,993 $426,853
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment $0 $0 30
Other Costs To Be Capitalized $619,633 $211,970 $831,603
Acquisition of Building or Other Property {excluding $0 %0 $0
land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $16,390,541 $5,459,591 $21,850,132

_ SOURCE OF FUNDS - CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $1,401,709 $466,801 $1,868,611
Pledges

Gifts and Beguests

Bond Issues {project related)

Mortgages $14,988,832 $4,992,690 $19,081,522
Leases (fair market value)

Governmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $16,390,541 $5,459,591 $21,850,132

Page 24
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Related Project Costs

Provide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that
will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to pfoject [ Yes X No
Purchase Price; § N/A
Fair Market Vaiue: $ N/A

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service
[ Yes X No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operating deficits
through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target utilization specified in Part
1100.

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is $ N/A

Page 25
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Project Status and Completion Schedules

Indicate the stage of the project’s architectural drawings:
O None or not applicablg [J Preliminary

X1 Schematics [[] Final Working

Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): December 31, 2019

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation {refer to Part 1130.140):
[ ] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[] Project obiigation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the contingent
" “certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to CON Contingencies

Bd Project obligation wil! occur after permit issuance.

Page 26
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Provide in the following format, the department/area DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type of gross
square footage either DGSF or BGSF must be identified. The sum of the department casts MUST equal the total
estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different purpose. inctude outside wall
measurements plus the department's or area's portion of the surrounding circulation space. explain the use of any

vacated space.

Gross Square Feet Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square
Feet That Is;
Dept. / Area Cost Existing | Proposed New Modernized | Asls | Vacated
Const Space
CLI NICAL
Resident Rooms $7,273,670 17,549 17,549
And Bath Rooms - New
Resident $2,745,577 12,782 12,782
Rooms and Toilet
Rooms - Existing
Nursing Support - New $377,589 911 911
Nursing Support - $376,201 608 1,778 1,778 608
Existing .
Utility Rooms - New $215,114 515 519
Utility Rooms - Existing $77.864 368 368
Living/Dining/Activity - $3,630,825 B,760 8,760
New :
Living/Dining/Activity - $965,681 4,564 4,564
Existing
Pantry - New $312,102 753 753
Shower Rooms / $275,213 664 664
Toilets - New
Shower Rooms / $140,705 665 665 665 665
Toilets - Existing .
TOTAL CLINICAL $16,390,541 18,987 31,599 31,599 18,987 0 0
NON CLINICAL .
Office/Administration $247,040 1,396 1,396 | 1,025
Chapel 538,623 229 229
Commons - New $3,332,729 9,678 9,678 1,377
Commons - Existing $1,254,458 7,136 7,136
Page 27
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Mechanical/Electrical - $164,260 477 477
New
Mechanical/Electrical - $111,101 632 632 368
Existing
Residential/Family $274,112 796 796
Laundry Services - New
Residential/Family $37,268 212 212
Ltaundry Services -
Existing
TOTAL NON- CLINICAL $5,459,591 9,605 10,951 10,951 9,605 | 2,770
TOTAL - $21,850,132 28,592 42,550 42,550 28,592 { 2,770
Page 28
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project’s application for permit:

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS
ATTACHMENT
NO. PAGES

Applicant/Co-applicant Identification including Cenrlificate of Good

1 Standing 33-34

2 Site Qwnership 35-36

3 QOperating |dentity/Licensee 37-38

4 Organizational Relationships 39-40

5 Flood Plain Requirements 41-44

6 Historic Preservation Act Requirements 45-48
General Information Requirements

10 Purpose of the Project 49-51

11 Alternatives fo the Project 52-55
Service Specific - General Long-Term Care

12 Background of the Applicant 56-58

13 Planning Area Need 60-72

15 Expansion of General LTC Service or Facility 73-75

17 Accessibility 76-84

18 Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution 85-115

19 Staffing Availability 116-118

20 Bed Capacity 119

21 Community Relations 120-121.

22 Project Size 122-130

23 Zoning 131

24 Assurances 132-133

25 Modernization 134-136
Service Specific - Specialized Long-Term Care

26 Specialized Long-Term Care — Review Criteria 137
Financial and Economic Feasibility:

27 Availability of Funds 138-203

29 Financial Viability 204-2086

30 Economic Feasibility 207-215
APPENDICES

A Proiject Costs and Sources of Funds 216

D Cost/Space Requirements 217
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Section I, Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

Attachment 1

Westminster Village, Inc. (“Westminster”) is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,
incorporated on November 6, 1980, A coby of Westminster’s Good Standing Certificate dated
December 8, 2016 is attached. :

ATTACHMENT 1
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- File Number 5221-192-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:
I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby

certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that

WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON NOVEMBER 06, 1980, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC
CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 8TH

day of DECEMBER A.D. 2016

’ :
Authentication #. 1634303408 verifiable until 12/08/2017 W W@

Authenticate at: hitp:./Awww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

ATTACHMENT 1
34




Section I, Site Ownership

Attachment 2

A letter from Barbara Nathan, CEO, attesting to the ownership of the property, is
attached.

ATTACHMENT 2
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE

A CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

December 15, 2016

Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator

Tllinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Westminster Village, Inc. — CON Permit Application ~ Ownership of Site

Dear Ms. Avery:

The letter is to attest that Westminster Village, Inc. (“Westminster™), the applicant for the
proposed project, currently owns and operates the continuing care refirement community located at
2025 East Lincoln Street in Bloomington and owns the site of the proposed project. '

Westminster is home to approximately 340 residents, with 176 independent living
apartments and 22 Independent Living Townhouses, 52 assisted living apartments and 78
licensed beds in skilled care on a 40-acre site. It is located in Bloomington at 2025 East Lincoln

Street.

This facility was construcied beginning in 1979 and Westminster has continuously owned
and operated this facility. The proposed project is a renovation of and addition to Westminster’s
existing facility. '

CEO

113711031.2 ATTACHMENT 2

2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, IL 61701 | ?609) 663-6474 | www.westminstervillageinc.com




Section I, Operating Identity/Licensce
Attachment 3

Westminster Village (“Westminster”) is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation,
incorporated on November 6, 1980. A copy of Westminster’s Good Standing Certificate dated

December 8, 2016 is attached.

ATTACHMENT 3
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File Number 5221-192-1

-

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do hereby
certify that I am the keeper of the records of the Department of

Business Services. I certify that
WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC., A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON NOVEMBER 06, 1980, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION ACT
OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A DOMESTIC

CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

InTestimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 8TH

day of DECEMBER A.D. 2016

A i
% ’
Authentication #: 1634303406 veriﬁable until 120872017 Q-M W

Authenticate at: hitp./Awww._cyherdriveillincis.com
SECRETARY QF STATE

ATTACHMENT 3
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Section I, Organizational Relationships

Attachment 4

“Westminster Village, Inc. (“Westminster”) is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation and is

tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Westminster has one subsidiary - WV Cormer Holdings, LLC (*WV Comer Holdings™).
WV Comer Holdings is a single member Illinois limited liability company that is wholly owned
and controlled by Westminster, Westminster treats the operations and finances of WV Corner
Holdings as its own for Federal tax purposes (i.e., WV Corner Holdings is a disregarded entity
for Federal tax purposes). The purpose of WV Corner Holdings is to acquire real property and
associated personal property that is in the general vicinity of Westminster, as well as to hold,
develop and construct improvements on, manage, operate, lease, encumber, finance, refinance,

maintain, dispose, transfer or otherwise deal with such real propetty.

Westminster Village Foundation (“Westminster Foundation™), a related entity to
Westminster, is an lllinois not-for-profit corporation and is tax-exempt under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code. Westminster Foundation is a separate legal entity and is not
controlled by Westminster. Westminster Foundation was established in 1983 and its sole
purpose is to support Westminster through the encouragement of philanthropic and financial
support for Westminster residents, however, direct support of Westminster’s opeljations is not

provided. In sum, Westminster Foundation’s mission is to support the lives of Westminster

residents.

- Attached is a copy of Westminster’s organizational chart.

ATTACHMENT 4
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Section I, Flood Plain Requirement

Attachment 5

Attached is an ALTA survey of the Project site location indicating, in Note 2 on page 2,

that the site is not in a flood plain.

Also aftached is a FEMA rate map showing that the Project site is located in Zone X
which, as determined by FEMA, is outside the 0.02% annual chance flood plain area.

- Thus, the Project complies with the Flood Plain Rules under Hlinois Executive Order

#2005-5.
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Section I, Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements

Attachment 6

Attached is a letter to the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency (“IHPA™) requesting
confirmation that the Project meets the Secretary of the Interior’s “Standard for Rehabilitation
and Guidelines for Rehabilitation of Historic Buildings” and will not result in any adverse effect.

A copy-of the letter from IHPA will be submitted upon receipt.

ATTACHMENT 6

113685346.9 45




120 South Riverside Plaza - Suite 1200

ARNSTEIN & LEHR LLP e o

Accamplubcd lawyers who understand your goals. Phone 312.876.7100 - Fax 312.876.0288
| www,arnstein.com

Joe Ourth
312.876.7815
Jjourth@arnstein.com

December 6, 2016

Via Qvernight Mail

Ms. Rachel Leibowitz, Ph.D.

Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
Ilinois Historic Preservation Agency
Preservation Services Division

1 Old State Capitol Plaza

Springfield, Illinois 62701-1512

Re:  Review to Determine Impact Upon Historic Resources
Westminster Village, Bloomington, Illinois
Certificate of Need Application

Dear Ms. Leibowitz:

The purpose of this letter is to request your comments concerning possible project effects -
on cultural resources. This request is made in connection with a Certificate of Need application
to be filed on or about December 14, 2016 with the Illinois Health Facilities and Services

Review Board.

The proposed project is a modernization and expansion of an existing skilled nursing
facility located at 2025 East Lincoln Street, Bloomington, Illinois 61701. This facility is part of
the Westminster Village retirement community. Enclosed please find two maps showing the
location of the property. The existing skilled facility referred to as Martin Health Center, and the
addition to Martin Health Center are highlighted on the attached drawing. It is our understanding
that construction of the facility began in the late 1970s.

If you have questions or comments, or need additional information, please do not hesitate
to contact me at (312) 876-7815. [ appreciate your assistance.

Very truly yours,

(me:ib:

Joe Qurth

JRO:eka
Enclosures

CHICAGO MIAMI FORT LAUDERDALE WEST PALM BEACH  BOCA RATON  SPRINGFIELD

Arnstein 8¢ Lehr LLP is a member of the International Lawyers Network
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Section II, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives

Attachment 10

Section 1125.320, Purpose of the Project

The purpose of this Project is two-fold: to provide current residents at Westminster a
modern facility and to add 18 beds to accommodate the residents from additional independent

living and assisted living to be constructed at Westminster.

Westminster Village is a thriving not-for-profit continuing care retirement community
. founded in 1979. The community is home to approximately 340 residents living in 176
independent living apartments, 22 duplexes, 52 assisted living apartments and 78 licensed skilled

beds on a 40-acre campus.

Purpose One — Increase Skilléd Capacity to Reflect Significant Increases in Independent
and Assisted Living

Westminster is a popular retirement community. Currently 278 applicants have paid
deposits to go onto a waiting list for independent and assisted living. Because of the demand for
more retirement housing, Westminster has undertaken a master plan to significantly increase its
available housing. Over the next several years Westminster will increase its available assisted
living from 52 to 60 plus‘ add a 12-bed memory care unit. Independent living will increase by 90
units, 60 hybrid units and 30 units in additional apartments. Considering the number of couples

that would move into the community, 110 new units will result in over 140 new Westminster

residents.

Westminster currently operates a skilled care facility licensed for 78 beds. Almost ali of
the residents in skilled care are residents from the Westminster CCRC. This skilled facility,
known as Martin Health Center serves those residents at Westminster who develop a need for

skilled care.

ATTACHMENT 10

113685346.9 49




To fulfill its function as CCRC, Westminster must have the capacity to accommodate the
influx of independent and assisted residents who may develop a need for skilled care.
Consequently, one of the two main purposes of this Project is to increase skilled beds by 18 to

reflect the additional housing at Westminster,

Purpose Two — Provide Current Resident with a Modern Facility

The second major purpose of this Project is to provide a modemn facility that affords

current residents with the privacy and dignity they deserve.

| The skilled facility at Westminster was constructed in 1979 and at 40 years is showing its
age. The facility was constructed in accordance with the institutional mode! of care prevalent at

that time. All but two of the 78 beds are in shared rooms with no showers in the room.

Creating private rooms and showers in resident rooms are only a first step for

Westminster to become a leader in providing the person-centered model of care.

The Westminster Project structure will create small neighborhoods of 12-24 “neighbors™.
This concept, similar to small-house concepts, de-institutionalizes resident care and creates close
social interaction among residents. This model of care has been shown to not only increase

resident satisfaction, but to extend life and the quality of life.

The modernization of this Project will be extensive, rebuilding all existing resident rooms
and common space. The current facility is very space constrained. At a current size of 31,362
BGSF for 78 licensed beds, the facility does not meet the Review Board’s minimum size
standard of 435 square feet per bed. As also explained in the Modernization Attachment, the

Project will also provide the following improvements:
e The proposed modernization will also include for the first time a non-denominational

chapel for spiritual reflection, which is an addition residents have specifically desired.
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¢ Allow for a clinical medical space with space for practitioners: MD, Podiatrist,

Ophthalmologist as well as clinical lab space for testing on site.

» Provide space to residents to do their own personal laundry which reduces the residents

personal costs.

e Redesigns nurse stations for person centered care focus as well as to enhance ADA

compliance for staff and allow for expansion of an electronic medical record (EMR)

process.

¢ Ability to meet the needs of our hospice population especially at end of life to provide

- dignified care in a private setting and to provide more privacy for the family.

o Creates a large activity space which will allow for larger resident activities when needed
and no need to convert dining space. This activity space will also be beneficial for

ongoing staff education.

¢ Creates an enclosed courtyard with covered patio that will allow for safer resident access

to outside spaces and allowing for increased freedom of mobility.
e Enhances natural outside lighting.
* Replaces of boilers for hot water and HVAC for heating and cooling.

¢ . Allows for updated features and much more ability for residents to personalize their room

more like home.
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Section II, Purpose of the Project and Alternatives

Attachment 11

Section 1125.330, Alternatives

. 1. Alternatives

A. Proiect of Greater or Lesser Scope and Cost

Westminster Village, Inc. (“Westminster”) has operated a continuing care retirement
community, with a full continuum of care from independent living apartments and cottages,
assisted living services and skilled nursing care for 37 years. Located in the Bloomington-
Normal area, the primary focus of Westminster’s continuum of care is to allow seniors to age in
their apartments and cottages for as long as possible while living independent lives. Seniors have
the security of knowing that skilled nursing and assisted living are available on the campus

should these services ever be needed.

With an aging physical plant, Westminster’s leadership has undertaken a master planning
project to address the short and long term needs of the community regarding its buildings and
programmatically. To continue effectively serving the residents of Westminster’s continuing care
retirement community, a redevelopment of Martin Health Center (“Martin Center”), the existing

skilled nursing facility, is needed.

In undertaking the master planning process, Westminster’s leadership considered, as an
option, adding a larger number of skilled nursing beds. However, the conclusion was that while
operating a much larger skilled nursing facility might have afforded the organization some
economies of scale in operations, the character of the Martin Center, that it primarily serves only
its residents, would be negatively impacted. Therefore, this option was rejected. The cost of this

alternative would have been approximately $34 million for a completely new skilled nursing

facility.
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Westminster’s leadership also gave serious consideration to simply reconfiguring the
skilled nursing beds in the Martin Center in a manner that would have only added a small
number of new beds. The challenge with this approach was that even if the aesthetics of the
Martin Center could be improved, the goal of creating distinct neighborhoods with a much larger
number of private rooms could not be met with a smaller project. Therefore, this option was

rejected. The cost of this alternative was approximately $8 million.

B. Joint Venture with Other Providers

Westminster’s leadership briefly considered, but quickly rejected a joint venture with
other providers as a mechanism to achieve the goals of the proposed project. Westminster is a
continuing care retirement community offering a full continuum of care from independent living
apartments and cottages, assisted living services and skilled nursing care. A primary reason that
senior citizens choose this lifestyle is the security of knowing that should their health status
change over time for reasons of frailty associated with aging or some kind of health episode that
they can move from their independent living units to higher levels of care. The access to high
quality skilled nursing on the same campus is particularly desired by couples who realize that
they may have differing care needs over time. Therefore, have a contract for services at a
separate facility some distance from Westminster’s campus is not desired, nor is it in keeping
with philosophy of a continuing.care retirement community. Although no cost estimate was
prepare for this alternative, it was noted that such an arrangement would impact Westminster’s
marketing and operations since some residents would have to leave Westminster facility when

care was needed.

C. Utilize Other Available Health Resources

Similar to the alternative of engaging in a joint venture with other providers,
Westminster’s leadership briefly considered, but quickly rejected, utilizing other available heaith
resources as a mechanism to achieve the goals of the proposed project. One of the primary
reasons that senior citizens choose Westminster is that it is a continuing care retirement

community offering a full continuum of care from independent living apartments and cottages,
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assisted living services and skilled nursing care. Utilizing other area health resources does not
fit within a continuing care retirement community model. Although no cost estimate was
preparé for this alternative, it was noted that such an arrangement would impact Westminster’s

marketing and operations since some residents would have to leave Westminster facility when

care was needed.

D. Proposed Alternative

The alternative chosen contemplates adding 18 beds to the existing skilled nursing bed
count of 78 while redeveloping the skilled nursing facility into distinct neighborhoods that afford
residents a more residential setting. As part of the redevelopment project, the mix of private
rooms will be restructured to include 80 private rooms and 8 semi-private rooms for a total of 96
beds. This project will set the stage for a subsequent develoﬁment phase that will add 100 new
independent living units to the campus. Therefore, tﬁe added beds will continue to be primarily

utilized by Westminster’s residents. The cost of this alternative is $23 million as detailed in this

application.
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2. Comparison of Alternatives

ALTERNATIVE COST PROS CONS

Project of Greater Scope

Adding additional skilled $34aM

nursing beds

Project of Lesser Scope

Reconfiguring existing Less expensive Stili not many private

skilled nursing beds rooms available

Less disruptive to patients
Py Does not' enhance

development of
community areas for
residents

Joint Venture

Partner with local Not determined Less expensive Contrary to concept of

providers continuing care retirement
comumunity

Utilize Qther Availablie

Health Resources

Contract with other area Not determined Less expensive Contrary to concept of

providers for services continuing care retirernent
community

Proposed Project

Addition of skiiled nursing $23M More private rooms More expensive

beds and remodeling

More common areas for
patients

Consistent with
philosophy of a continuing

care retirement community

113685346.9
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria

Attachment 12

Section 1125.520, Background of the Applicant

1.

2.

A listing of all health care facilities owned by the applicant, including licensing, and

certification if applicable,

Westminster’s license #0028191, effective August 4, 2016, issued by the Illinois

. Department of Public Health, is attached.

A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned and/or
operated by applicant during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

There have been no adverse actions taken against Westminster within the prior

three years. A letter attesting to this fact is attached.

Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to documents necessary to verify
the information_submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or
other State agencies; the licensing or certification records of other States; when

applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation organizations.

A letter granting the Review Board and the Illinois Department of Public Health

access to information to verify information in the application is attached.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE

A CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

December 8, 2016

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Ilinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:  Westminster Village, Inc. — CON Permit Application — No Adverse Action

Dear Ms. Avery:

Please be advised that no disciplinary action relative to “Adverse Action” as defined under
Section 1125.140 of the Review Board Rules has been adjudicated against Westminster Village,
Inc., or against any health care facility owned or operated by it, directly or indirectly, within
three (3) years preceding the filing of the permit application.

Sincerely,
Westminster Village, Inc.

Lo i

Barbara Nathan
CEO

Notarization;
Subscribed and swom to before me
this 1™ day of December, 2016

Signaturedof %tary Public

Seal s i D I g £
OFFICIAL SEAL
CAROLYN J. DOLLARHIDE
{ Notary Public - State of lllinois
§ My Commission Expires 9/1 4/2018 §
113685172.1 ’
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N Y
WESTMINSTER VILLAGE

A CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

December 8, 2016

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

IMlinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:  Westminster Village, Inc. — CON Permit Application - Access to Information

Dear Ms. Avery:

I hereby authorize the State Board and State Agency access to information from any
licensing/certification agency in order to verify any and all documentation or information
submitted in relation to this permit application. 1 further authorize the Illinois Department of
Public Health to obtain any additional documentation or information that said agency deems
necessary for the review of the application as it pertains to Section 1125.520(c)(3) of the Review
Board Rules.

Sincerely,

Westminster Village, Inc.

“Barbara Natha%

CEO

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 34’“’ day of December, 2016

Signature tf %% Public

Seal o

OFFICIAL SEAL
CAROLYN J. DOLLAHtHl:PnEois

& Notary Public - State ot Il

G M CorLymission Expires 9/'1/18 )

Q
& h
oL e
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria
Attachment 13
Section 1125.530, Planning Area Need

Identify Calculated Bed Need

Westminster is located in Health Service Area 4 and the McLean County Planning Area.
According to the most recently available inventory update of the Review Board this planning
area shows a need for 995 beds and the existence of 1090 approved long-term care beds, for a
surplus of 95 beds. The applicable page from the 2015 Inventory together with the Review
Board’s November 15, 2016 Update to Inventory is made part of this attachment.

Primary Purpose is to Serve Residents of the Planning Area

The primary purpose of this Project is to serve residents of the planning area. The
Applicants attest that at least 50% of the residents will come from the Planning Area. Residents
at Westminster have chosen to make Westminster their home in retirement. With rare
excéptions, all residents in the skitled facility come from the Westminster community.

Consequently, almost all residents came from a single zip code, 61701.

Referral Letters

| Westminster enjoys a very good relationship with the two hospitals serving Bloomington
Normal area and there is no doubt that those hospitals would be willing to provide referral letters
for the CON Application. For the Applicant to provide these letters as justification for additional
18 beds, however, would not be indicative of the real source for new residents. As discussed
elsewhere in the CON application, Westminster largely limits its skilled admissions to residents
who are currently part of the Westminster CCRC community. Westminster does not market for
direct admissions and does not solicit referrals from hospitals for admissions. This model is

what allows Westminster to confirm that the additional 18 beds would not lower occupancy at
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other facilities. It is also what allows the Project to have the support of other facilities as

evidenced by the support of the Heritage homes.

The new beds will be filled because of the expansion of the independent and assisted
living at Westminéter. Westrninster has 278 people on a waiting list to move into its retirement
community. To address this extraordinary demand, the Westminster Board of Directors has
developed a master plan to expand the independent and assisted living capacity. This master
plan will result in 85 new independent living units and 12 newly licenses assisted living units.
The need for the 18 additional skilled beds is a direct result of the increased housing at the other

components of the Westminster retirement community.
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LONG-TERM CARE FACILITY UPDATES
11/15/2016
CHANGES TO GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE

PLANNING EFFECTIVE
AREA ACTION DATE FACILITY © DESCRIPTION
' Health Service Area 1
Fadility discontinued 8 Nursing Care beds. Facility now has
Jo Daviess Bed Change 10/7/2015 Elizabeth Nursing Home, Efizabeth 41 Nursing Care beds.
Franklin Grove Living & Rehab, Facility added 11 Nursing Care beds; fadility now has 132
‘Lee Bed Change 5/24/2016 Franklin Grove Nursing Care beds.
Ogle Name Change 3/3/2016 Generations at Neighbars, Byron Formerty Neighbors Rehabilitation Center,
- Facilty added 8 Nursing Care beds; facdifity now has 101
_Stephenson Bed Change 4/21/2016 Lena Living Center, Lena Nursing Care beds.
Whiteside Name Change  &/10/2015 Regency Care of Sterfing, Sterling Formerty Coventry Living Center, Sterling.
23 8/25/2015  Four Seasans Living Center, Morison Receved permit to discontinue LTC service with 38 Nursing
Care beds.
Alden Debes Rehab and
Wi 8
innebago Name Change 7/30/2015 Healthcare CIr, ford Formerly Alden Alma Nelsan Manar.
Abandonment . . Fadility abandaned permit to establish 120 bed Nursing
. 10072 2/8/2012 Warrior's Gateway, Rockford Care facility. Project was inadvertently mduded in
Correction Inventory. .
Facility discontmued 2 Nursing Care beds; fadlity now has
Bed Cha 2/25/2016  Amberwood Care Centre, Rockford ‘
nee /20 141 Nursing Care beds.
Health Service Area 2
Bureau/Putnam Name Change  5/18/2016 Heritage Health - Walnut, Walnut Formerly Walnut Manor.
Knox Name Change 4/1/2016 Aperion Care Galesburg, Galesburg Formerly River Crassing Rehab.
Added 6 Nursi fadli N
LaSalle BedChange  7/8/2015 Ottawa Pavilion, Ottawa ‘ ursing Care "g’; bej:" row has 135 Nursing
ged Change Listed in Inventory with 113 Nursing Care beds and 14
R 8 101472015 Mendota Lutheran Home, Mendota  Sheftered Care beds; facifity should have 99 Nursing Care
Cormection
and 14 Shehtered Care beds.
Facility dosed; i emoved
Closure 1f13/2016  Heritage Healthcare LaSalle, LaSafle adility closed; 101 N'i":'e"n'if:e beds r from
[L] .
_ . . . facili
Bed Change 3/25/2016  Heritage Manor-Mendota, Mendota Discontinued 14 Nursnr-lg Care beds; facility now has 85
Mursing Care beds.
. Discontinued 2 Nursing Care beds; facility now has 127
16 Herit Manor-P Pe ’
Bed Change 3/25/20 eritage Manor-Peru, Peru Nursing Care beds,
Facility di i 0 Nursi Faciti
Bed Change 9/1/2016 L Veterans' Home at LaSalle, LaSalle adiiity discontinued 1 u-rsmg Care beds; facility now has
190 Nursing Care beds.
Facill i ; i
Peoria SMHRE 6/22/2016  Sharon Health Care Woods, Peoria 2 Y vecassified as SMHRF; 152 Nursing Care beds
removed from Inventory.
i Facility discontinued 1 Nursing Care bed; facility now has
ch 711472016 Health Willows, P
Bed Change /14720 Sharon Health Care Willows, Peoria 218 Nursing Care beds.
Heritage Health Chillicothe, Fadfity discontinued 4 Nursing Care beds; facility naw has
Bed Change  7/26/2016 Chillicothe 106 Nursing Care beds.
Woodford CHOW 8/1/2016 Maple Lawn Health Center, Eureka Change of Ownership occurred.
Name Change 8/9/2016 Select Post Acute Care, Eureka Formerly Maple Lawn Health Center.
Health Service Area 3
Brown/Schuyler CHOwW 8/1/201% Snyders-Yaughn Haven, Rushville Change of Ownership occurred.
ille Nursi
Name Change 8/1/2015 Rushvilte u'::‘:if:l :: ehab Center, Formerly Snyders-Vaughn Haven, Rushville.
Heritage Manor-Mt. Sterfing. ML, Discontinued 7 Nursing Care heds; facility now has 80
Bed Ch 2572016
€ ange 2m Sterling Nursing Care beds.
. . Nursi e ey
Christian Bed Change 3/25/2016 Heritage Manor-Pana, Pana Discontinued 23 ursmF, Care beds; facitity now has 128
Nursing Care beds.
Recetved permit to establish a 106 nursing bed facility at
Logan 16014 6/21/2016 5t. Clara®s Manor, Lincola 1450 Castle Maner Drive in Lincoln te replace existing 140
nursing bed facility at 200 Fifth Street in Lincoln.
. Discontinued 13 Nursing Care beds; Facilf has 95
Macoupin Bed Change 3/25/2016  Heritage Manor-Carlinville, Carlinvilte ntined 1 ;::ig C:'e be:s.aa ty now has
Disconti 9 Nursing Ca ds; facili h
8ed Change 3/25/2016¢  Heritage Manor-Staunton, Staunton scontinued ursm-g . re beds; facility now has 50
Nursing Care beds.
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" LONG-TERM CARE FACILITY UPDATES

11/15/2016
CHANGES TO GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE
PLANNING EFFECTIVE
AREA ACTION DATE FAQUTY DESCRIPTION
. 5 o . Discantinued 18 Nursing Care beds; facility now has 100
ll I
Bed Change 3/25/2016  Heritage Manor-Gillespie, Gillespie Nursing Care beds.
. 5 Discontinued 10 Nursing Care beds; facifity now has 92
r ’
Montgomery Bed Change 3/25/2016  Heritage Manor-Litchfield, Litchfield Nursing Care beds.
Heritage Manor-lacksonville, Discontinued 10 Nursing Care beds; facifity now has 175
M n/Sco Cha 16
e t Bed Change /5020 Jacksonville . Nursing Care beds.
3 Facifity converted 8 beds from Sheltered Care to Nursing
St. Joseph's H f Id
Sangamon Bed Change 8/10/2015 sephs c-:me of Springfield, Care. Facility now has 80 Nursing Care and 24 Sheltered
Springfield
) Care beds.
3 Fadility discontinued 7 Nursing Care beds and 13 Sheltered
seph’s H fS d
BedChange  S/0/2016 Y ’s :ﬂ"‘eﬁ°| PANEREl, ¢ e beds. Facility now has 73 Nursing Care beds and 11
P Shettered Care beds.
Dougtas CHOW 77142015 Tuscola Health Care, Tuscola Change of Ownership occurred.
Fadhity discontinued 73 Nursing Care beds; fadlity s now
] ficensed for 49 Nursing Care beds. However, under project
Uvingston Bed Change 6/23/2015  Good Samaritan - Pontizc, Ponliac 12027, a replacement facility has been approved with 90
Nursing Care beds, so there & no change in approved beds
. jn the planning area,
Heritage Heatth-Bloomington,  YNORUNRERIR ursin Care beds; faciity now has 83
Cha 16
m Bed nee 3/2520 Bloommgton Nursing Care beds.
. mrsing Care beds; facifity now has 141
Bed Change 3/25/2016 Heritage Manar-Normal, Normal Nursing Care
] Facility converted 4 beds from Sheltered Care to Nursing
Macon Correction 10/14/2015 Eastern Star at Macon, Macon Care; facility has 48 Nursing Care beds and 16 Sheltered
. Care beds.
Decatur Manor Healthcare Center, Fadlity reclassified as SMHRF; 147 Nursing Care beds
MHRF 62212016
s o1 Decatur removed from lnventary.
Health Service Area 5
Crawford Bed Change  3/25/2016  Heritage Manor-Robinson, Robinson 0 >-0rtinued 6 Nucsing Care beds; facility naw has 67
Nursing Care beds,
Effingham Rehabilitation & Health .
Cha ¥ h .
Effingham CHOW &f20/2016 Care Center, Effingham nge of Qwnership occurred -
Erankin Correction 10/14/2015 Stonebridge Senior Living Center, acility discontinued 7 Nu-rsmg Care beds; facility now has
Benton 80 Nursing Care beds.
Gallatin/Hamilton/ N Hamilton Memorial Rehab & Facifity should have 60 Nursing Care beds, not 56 as
ectio 4
Saline Corr " 10/14/2015 Healthcare, Mdeansharo previously indicated in inventory
I i heare of Rid A
Name Change  3/14/2016 ntegrity He:l; re of Rdgway. Formerly Ridgway Rehab and Nursing.
h
CHOW 6/20/2016 Shawnee Rose Care Center, Change of Ownership occurred.
Harmrisburg
Carbondale Rehab & Nursing Center Fadility dosed. 118 Nursing care beds removed from
016 .
Jackson Closure Vs i, Carbondale inventory.
Integrity Healthcare of Carbandale, C
4 .
Name Change 3/14/2016 Ca dale Formerty Carbondale Rehab and Nursing
ity H h
Randolph Name Change  3/14/2016 Integrity E;t;::: of Chester, Formerty Chester Rchab and Nursing.
Richland CHOW 2/1/2016 Burgin Manor, Olne'y Change of Cwnership occurred.
Union Name Change 3/14f2016 integrity Healthcare of Anna, Anna Formerly Anna Rehab and Nursing.
in i h
Name Change  3/14/2016 tegrity He:é:b:’ae:: of Cobden, Formerty Cobden Rehab and Nursing,
: Friendship Manor Heatthcare, Facility discontinued 80 Nursing Care beds. Facility now
4,
Washington Bed Change 9742015 Nashville has 150 Nursing Care beds.
. Washington County Hospital, Facility discontinued 5 Nursing Care beds; facility now has
Correction 10/26/2010 Nashville 28 Nursing Care beds.
hoenix Rehabilitats .
White CHOW 11/9/2015 Phoenix Rehabilitation a_nd Nursing Change of Ownership occurred,
Center, Carmi
iM Reh Nursi
Name Change 12/1/2015 Carmi Manor Rehab & ursing Farmerty Phoenix Rehabilitation and Nursing Center, Carmi
Center, Carmi
Williamson Name Change 3/14/2016  Integrity Healthcare of Herrin, Herrin Farmerly Herrin Rehab and Nursing.
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PLANNING EFFECTIVE
AREA ACTION DATE FAQUITY DESCRIFTION
tegrity Healthcare of Marlo
Name Change  3/14/2016 fr eaMado: o e Formerly Marion chab and Nursing.
Heatth Service Area 6
- . i fadility added 7 Nursing Care beds; facility now has 72
4120
6-A 8ed Change 7/14/2015 Selfhelp Home of Chicago, Chicago Nursing Care beds.
Alden N Reha H
NameChange  7/30/2015  Alden Estates of Northmoor, Chicago Formerly Alden orﬂ':mo;:icagob and Healthcare Center,
) Facility reclassified as SMHRF: 174 Nursing Care beds
SMHRF 6/22/201 Bryn M Care, Ch !
6 ryn Mawr Lare, Chicago removed from Inventory.
) Facility rectassi HRF; 216 Mursing Ca
SMHRF 6/22/2016 Grasmere Place, Chicago acility redlassified as SMHRF; 216 Nursing Care beds
removed from Inventory. .
. Facili ssified MHRF;
SMHRF 6/22/2016 Margaret Manor - North, Chicago adility recla as SMHRF; 39 Nursing Care beds
. remaved from Inventory.
. Facifity redassified as SMHRF; 198 Mursing Care beds
SMHRF 6/22/201 Witson Care, Ch ! :
6 ! re, Lhicago removed frofn inventory.

&8 NameChange  3/3/2016 Ge““”“""’;::::"’""‘ Park. Formerly Columbus Park Nursing & Rehab Center.
Name Change 6/3/2016  Symphony of Chicago West, Chicago  Formerty Jackson Square Skifled Nursing & Living Center.
Name Change 632016 Symphony of Lincoln Park, Chicago Formerly Imperial of Lincaln Park.

F 1- -, M - - §
SMHRF 016 t Nursing Home, Chicago adlity rectassified as SMHRF; 61 Nursing Care beds
v remaved from Inventory.
fal H Facilf i :
SMHRE 6/22/2016 Central Plaza R-esldentla ome, acifity reclassified as SMHRF; 240 Nursing Care beds
Chicagoe removed from {nventory.
)} . . Facility redassified as SMHRF; 235 Nursing Care beds
SMHRF 6/22/2016 Clayton Residential Home, Chicago removed from | )
idential Facili i s i b
SMHRF 6/22/2016 Columbus Mano'r Residential Care, adlity redassified as SMHRF; 189 Nursing Care beds
Chicago -removed from Inventory.
N Facility reclassified as SMHRF; 135 Nursing Care beds
SMHRF 6f22/2016 Margaret Manor, Chicago rem from 1 tory.
SMHRF 6/22/2016 Monroe Pavilion Heallth & Treatment Fadiity redassified as SMHRF; 136 Nursing Care beds
Center, Chicago remaved from Inventory.
ili i MHRF; g
SMHEF 6/22/2016 Sacred Heart Home, Chicago Fadility redtassified as SMHRF; 172 Nursing Care beds
removed from Inventory.
Bethesda Rehab & Senior Care, Facilty discontinued 10 Shehered Care beds; facility now
18/201
Bed Change 7/18/2016 Chicago has 113 Nursing Care and 39 Shettered Care beds.
&C Name Change 6/3f2016 Symphony at 87th Street, Chicago Formerty Symphany of Beverty.
Name Change 632016 Symphony of Bronzeville, Chicago Formerly Symphany of Bronzeville Park
ility reclassifi F; ursin,
SMHRF 6/22/2016  Rainbow Beach Care Center, Chicago 2o TY reciassified as SMHRE; 211 Nursing Care beds
remaved from Inventory.
Name Change 8/4/2016 Symphony at Midway, Chicago Formerly Symphony of Midway.
Name Change Bfaf2016 Symphony of Margan Park, Chicago Formerly Symphony of Park South.
thCa
Name Change 8/26/2016 Wentworth Rehab & Hea e Formerly Alden Weatworth Rehab and Healthcare Center
Center, Chicago
Princeton Rehab & Health Ca
Name Change 8/26/2016 ninceton 3 & €2 re Formerly Alden Princeton Rehab and Heatthcare Center
Center, Chicago
Health Service Area 7
. | . Fadility comploted project to establish facility with 120
T | f Arl H
7-A 11-006 91712015  Transitional Care of Arlington Heights, |\ . cace beds. Facility ficensed for operation with 120
arlington Heights - |
Nursing Care beds.
t-H P H
CHOW spfme  CAemon a"::: ark, Hanover Change of Ownership occurred
H P
Name Change $/1/2016 Symphony of a::::r ark, Hanover Formecly Claremont-Hanover Park.
Lutheran Home for the Aged, Facility discontinued 12 Nursing Care beds; fadlity now has
4
Bed Change  5/24/2016 Arfington Heights 334 Nursing Care beds and 46 Sheltered Care beds.
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CHANGES TO GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE

PLANNING EFFECTIVE
AREA ACTION DATE FACIUTY DESCRIPTION
St. Joseph's Home for the Elderly,  Facility discontinued 4 Sheltered Care beds; facility now has
7/26/20
BedChange  7/26/2016 palatine $9 Nursing Care beds and 1 Sheltered Care bed.
. pavili
7-B Name Change 3/32016 Generations atpza:;n vilion, Des Formerly Generations HCN at Oakton Pavilion.
Name Change 3732016 Generations at Regency, Niles Farmerty Regency Rehab Center.
Fadli i MHRF; 417 Nursi bed
SMHRF 6/22/2016 Albany Care, Evanston adility reclassified as SMHRF; 417 Nursing Care beds
removed from Inventory.
’ Faci i MHRF; 145 Mursi
SMHRE 6/22/2016 Green Care, Evanston acifity reclassified as SMHRF; 145 Nursing Care beds
removed from Inventory.
Skokic Meadows Nursing Center I, Fadility redlassified as SMHRF; 111 Nursing Care beds
MHRF .6, 2016 -
s /22/ Skokie removed from Inventory. '
Oak Brook Health Care Center, Oak  Fadiity discontinued 2 Nursimg Care beds; facility now has
7 .
< Bed Change  9/23/2015 Brook 158 Nursing Care beds.
Bed Change 32 16 Oak Brook Health Care Center, Oak  Facility added 2 Nursing Care beds; fadlity now has 156
Brook Nursing Care beds.
. Added 4 Nursi beds; Nursi
BedChange  4/15/2016  Bridgeway Senior Living, Bensenville ursing Care oy ;:‘;:“’ now has 226 Nursing
. . N Received permit to construct and establish 3 68 bed
1505 10f2016 Transitionai Ca
6 S/10/20 ransitionai Care of Liste, Lisle Nursing Care facility at 2850 Ogden Avenue in Liste.
Received permit to construct and establish a 68 bed
Ti itional Care of Fox V,
16.002 $/10/2016 fansitiona Au::ra x Valley, Nursing Care facility at 4020 East New York Street in
Aurara.
. Received peemit to construct and establish a 68 bed
16-006 $/10/2016 Alden Estates of Bartlett, Bartlett Nursing Care fadlity on Route 59 between Apple Valley
Drive and Congress Drive in Bartett.
Presence Villa Scalabrini Nursing &  Fadlity discontinued 16 Nursing Care beds; fadlity now has
70 Bed Change  1/28/2016 Rehabiitation, Northiake 237 Nursing Care beds.
Presence Vilta Scatabrini Nursing &  Fadlity discontinued 8 Nursing Care beds; facility now has
4,
Bed Change  3/4/2016 Rehabifitation, Northiake 229 Nursing Care beds.
Generations at Elmwood Park,
For 1 3
Name Change 3/3/2016 ood Park rmerly Elmwood Care
Name Change 6/3/2016 Symphony at Aria, Hillside Formerly Aria Post Acute Care.
Alden Estates of Orland Park, Orland | Formerly Aiden Orland Park Rehab
e Name Change  7/30/2015 Park - and Healthcare Center, Ortand Park.
Lexington Health Care Center, Ordand Fadility discontinued 3 Nursing Care beds; fadility now has
Bed Change  2/23/2016. Park 275 Nursing Care beds.
Name Change 3/3/2016  Generations at Applewoad, Matteson Formerly Applewood Nursing & Rehab Center.
Facilil i MHRF; i !
SMHRF e 016 Lydia Healthcare, Robbins. acility reclassified as SMHRF; 412 Nursing Care beds
removed from Inventery.
i ifi F: 222 Nursi
SMHRE 6/22/2016 Thomton Heights Terrace, Chicago Facility reclasstfied as SMHRF; 222 Nursing Care beds
Heights removed from Inventory.
. y " Facility discontinued 63 Nursing Care beds; facility now has
7 1
Bed Change /14/2016 Bria qf Palos Hills, Palos Hills 140 Nursing Care beds.
Windmill Nursing Pavilion, South  Facility discontinued 15 Nursing Care beds; facility now has
Bed Change 8/5/2016 Holland 135 Nursing Care beds.
Wind i
Name Change indsor Estates Nursing & Rehab, Formerly McAllister Nursing & Rehab.
Tinley Park
Windsor Estates Nursing & Rehab, Completed praject including addition of 89 Nursing Care
11-104 &/13/2016 Tinley Park beds; facility now has 200 Nursing Care beds.
Health Service Area 8
Received permit to establish a 20 bed Nursing Care facility
Kane 15-037 11/17/2015  Alden Courts of Waterford, Aurora by converting 22 Sheltered Care beds at an existing facility
located at 1991 Randi Drive in Aurora.
Name Change 6/2{2016 Symphaony of Orchard Valley, Aurora Farmerly Countryside Care Center.
Licensure 7/27/2016  Addison Rehab & Living Center, Elgin Facility received license for operation with 120 Nursing
Care beds.
8-09
g rm: Request for renewat of praject was denied by the Board;
R ® | 9/13/2016 Meadowbrook Manor, Geneva project for facility. with 150 Nursing Care beds removed
ene_wa ' from lnventory.
Denied
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11/15/2016
CHANGES TO GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE
PLANNING EFFECTTVE :
AREA ACTION DATE FACILITY DESCRIPTION .
) Fadifity should be fisted with 70 Nursing Care beds, rather
R Pl ke F
ke Carrection 10/14/2015 Lake Forest_ ace, Lake Forest than 63 as 5 in the aventory
) . Facility should be listed with 224 Nursing Care beds, rather
Wi H be il .
Correction 10[14@15 inchester House, Libertyville than 360 as < in the Inventory
12-062 10!7/20_14 Wauconda Healthcare and Project to add 40 Nursi‘ng Care beds to existing fadility
Abandoned Rehabilitation Centre, Wauconda abandoned; facility licensed for 135 Nursing Care beds.
15041 11/17/2015 Winchester House, Uibertyvilie Received permit for change of ownership.
; Add . L
BedChange  12/16/201S  Pavilion of Waukegan, Waukegan ed 3 Nursing Care b(;d; ;’i‘" row has 112 Nursing
Facility added S Nursing Care beds; Faciity now has 195
ta
Bed Change 4/15/2016 Avantarz Long Grove, Long Grove Nursing Care beds.
Received permit to establish a 185 bed Nursing Care facility
B at 850 £ast U.S. Highway 45 in Mundalein, Alsa incfuded in
Transitional Care of . .
16012 6/21/2016 Mur:ed:le:ke CoUNtY. the project is the dosure of Winchester House, 3 224 bed
Nursing Care facility at 1125 North Miwaukee Avenue in
tibertyvilie,
. : . Facility reclassified as SMHRF; 106 Nursing Care beds
MHRF 1 H H
s 6/22/2016 Abbott House, Highland Park . from fnventory.
. Fadility reclassified as SMHRF; 168 Nursing Care beds
HRF 016 T Wauk
SM 6/22/2 Bayside Terrace, Waukegan re from ory.
Fadility reclassified as SMHRF; 210 Nursing Care beds
MHRF b ;
S 6/22/201 Lake Park Center, Waukegan re from lventory. .
. Transformative Health of McHeary, Received permit to establish a 98 bed Nursing Care Facility
McH 15-044 1
ey 6’_21’20 6 McHenry at Bull Valley Road and Lawreace Parkway in McHenry.
Health Service Area 9
Bourbonnais Terrace Nursing Home, Facility redlassified as SMHRF; 197 Nursing Care beds
Kankak: &6/22/20
) rrakee SMHRE 16 Bourbonnais removed from Inventory.
SMHRE 6/22/2016 Kankakee Terrace Nur_smg Center, Facility reclassified as SMHRF; 146 Nursing Care beds
Bourbonnais remaved from tnveatory.
IL Veterans' Home at Manteno, Fadility discontinued 36 Nursing Care beds; Facility now has
Bed Change /s Manteno 304 Nursing Care beds.
I .
Kendafl CHOW 12/1/2015 The TTI o Nug;n:'::ehab Center, Change of Ownership cccurred.
Name Change  12/1/2015 Symphony at the Tillers, Oswego Formetly The Tillers Nursing & Rehab Center.
Sunny Hll Nursing Home of Will  Fadility discontinued 2S Nursing Care beds; facility now has
wil Bed 18/20
o Change  12/18/2015 County, foliet 227 Nursing Care beds.
Recelved permit to establish a long-term care facility with
Ald es-Courts
15051 3/29/2016 en Estates-Courts of New Lenax, ) 1) . rsing Care beds at Cedar Crossing Drive in New
New x Lenox,
Sunny Hill Nursing Home of Will  Facility discontinued 16 Nursing Care beds; facility now has
16
Bed Change 6/3/20 County, Joliet 211 Nursing Care beds.
Health Service Area 10
Facility converted S beds from Sheltered Care to Nursing
Rock Istand Bed Change 10/26/2015 Friendship Manor, Rock island Care; facility now has 94 Nursing Care beds and 0 Sheltered
Care beds.
Name Change 3/3/2016 Generations 1;:::‘ tstand, Rack Formerly Rock Island Nursing & Rehabifitation Center.
B ling, E
NameChange  4f1/2016 Aperion Care East Maline, East Formerly Riverwood Rehab.
Moaline
Health Service Area 11
integri h f Lol i '
Monroe Name Change  3/14/2016 ntegrity Healt care.o Columbia, Formerly Columbia Rehab and Nursing.
Columbia
. i Replacement Facility licensed for 108 Nursing Care and 26
. 8, Paul'
st. Clair 13-003 /6/2015 St Paul's Home, Sefleville Sheltered Care beds. No change in total authorized beds.
Name Change 3/14/2016 Integrity Healthcare of Alton, Alton Formerly Alton Rehab and Nursing.
CHOW 8/5/2016 Rosewood Care Center, Swansea Change of Ownership ocourred,
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11/15/2016
CHANGES TO GENERAL LONG-TERM CARE
PLANNING EFFECTIVE
AREA ACTION DATE FAQUTY DESCRIPTION
R .
Name Change 8/5/2016 Mercy Rehiab and Care Center, Formerly Rosewood Care Center .
Swansea .
CHANGES TO Si’EClAl.IZED LONG-TERM CARE
Health Service Area 1
Bethesda Lutheran - Sycamore, Fadility discontinued 2 ICF/DD beds; fadlity now has 14
Dekalb Bed Cha 9/30/2016 Ne
nge 9730/ Sycamore ICF/DD beds. W
Health Service Area 2
) Facility conve to CILA. ICF/DD oved fr
LaSalle Qosure /112016 Glenwood House, Streator adility comverted to inv::tml beds remaved from
o Closure 6/30/2016 Andaver, Peoria Facility converted to Gl:. ve::::vIDD beds removed from
Fadili 4
Closure 6/30/2016 & Court, Peori adlity converted to CIE_A. ICF/DD beds removed from
yons &0 inventory.
Facility converted to CTLA. 4 ICF beds removed fri
Gosuwre  6/30/2016 North Frostwood, Peoria adility convertec to twm om
re 30/2016 South Fr 1, Peori Facility ounveuftcd to CII_A. 4 IGF/DD beds removed from
inventory.
Health Service Area 3
. . . Added 12 Nursing Care beds to the facility; Facility now has
Logan Bed Change 9/9/2016 Christian Nursing Home, Lincoln 124 Nursing Care )
. Fadili LA fr
Morgan Closure Eisen ¢ Terrace, Jacksamile adlity converted to CI. 81CF/DD beds removed from
inventory.
Heatth Service Area 4 .
. ' Fadli ed ;15| oved
Macon Closure 7/6/2015 Southside Manor, Decatur adifty converted to C":A' CF/DD beds rem from
. inventary.
Health Service Area S
’ . Fadl LA fr
sohnson re 6/15/2016 Glen K, Vienna adlity converted to Cl 4 16 ICF/OD beds removed from
inventory.
Safine Closure 12172015 Tumer Manor, Harrisburg Fadlity closed. 35 ICF/DD beds removed from inventory.
‘Washington Closure 12/18/2015 Terra Estates, Hoyleton Fadlity closed. 16 ICF/DD beds removed from inventory.
Hezlth Service Area b, 7, 8,9 _
6-A New Facility 1/25/2016 Rosemary Home, Chicago Fadlity with 16 ICF/DD beds opened.
&A New Facility 41202016 Walsh Home, Chicago Fadlity with 15 ICF/DD beds opened.
A New Facility 4/20/2016 Jacobs Home, Chicago Facility with 15 ICF/DD beds opened.
6-A New Facifity 4f20{2016 Hartemayer Home, Chicago Facility with 15 ICF/DD beds opened.
6-A © New Facility 4/20{2016 Carr Home, Chicago Fadfity with 15 ICF/DD beds opened.
Facilr to CILA; 53 iCF/DD wved f
6-A Closure 4/23/2016 Holbrook Center, Chicago acility converted to Li:'vemfyf beds remo ram
) Facility discontinued 15 ICF/DD beds; facility now has 77
-, 7,
7-A Bed Change ' f10f2015  Clearbrook Center, Rolling Meadows 1CF/DD beds,
Facilr ICFDD : facil
7-A Bed Change 9/29/2016  (learbrook Center, Rolling Me_adows acility added 8 ICF/ b:::aaﬁw now has 85 ICF/OD New
) Facility discontinued 3 iICF/DD beds; facility now has 129
Lake Bed Change 10/21/2015 Mount 51. Joseph, Lake Zurich ICE/DD beds,
Facilit d to CILA. 16 ICF/DD b emoved i
will Clasure 8/a/2016 Trinity Uving Center 3, Joliet acility converted to CILA. 16 ICF/DD beds remaved from
taventory.
Heafth Service Acea 10
Rock sland Closure 9/30/2015 _ Herftage Fifty-Three, Moline Facility ceased operations - converted to CILA.

48 {CF/DD beds remaved from inventory,

Health Service Area 11
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F LA D fr
Cinton re Royal Living Center, New Baden acility converted to CI! 4 16 ICF/DD beds removed from
mventory.
CHANGES TO CHRONIC MENTAL ILLNESS
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LONG-TERM CARE FACILITY UPDATES

11/15/2016
CALCULATED 8ED NEEDS
Calcutated Approved Additional Beds Needed
Planning Area _ Beds Needed Beds or Excess Beds ()
LONG-TERM CARE NURSING CARE BED NEED )
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 1
Boone 360 279 21
Carroll 131 155 (24)
DeKatb 768 742 26
Jo Daviess 177 147 ) 30
Lee 275 353 {78)
Ogle 538 565 27
Stephenson 581 646 {65)
Whiteside 585 819 (224)
“Winnebago 2098 2220 (122)
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 2
8ureau/Putnam 378 377 ) i
Fulton 455 603 - {148)
Henderson/Warren 164 8 (s}
Knox 740 950 (210)
LaSalle 1208 1256 (48)
McDonough 341" 360 {19}
Marshall/Stark 300 427 (127)
Peoria 1483 1608 (125}
Tazewell 1111 1256 (145}
Woodford 580 590 {10}
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 3
Adams 1079 1499 {420)
Brown/Schuyler 147 179 ) {32)
Cathoun/Pike 264 337 {73}
Cass 153 150 3
Christian a7 449 76)
Greene 115 119 {4
Hancock 150 184 (34)
Jersey 323 359 ' (46)
Logan 371 446 {75)
Macoupin 523 704 {181)
Mason 120 164 {44}
Menard 114 106 8
Montgomery 382 480 (98}
Morgan/Scott 465 551 (86}
Sangamon 1162 1271 - {109)
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 4
Champaign 868 - 508 {40)
Clark 224 245 (21)
ColesfCumberland 661 935 {278}
DeWitt . 207 190 17
Douglas 197 233 {36)
Edgar 271 259 (28}
Ford 227 434 (207}
lroquais 406 436 (80]
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11/15/2016
CALCULATED BED NEEDS
Calculated Approved Additional Beds Needed
Planning Area Beds Needed Beds or Excess-Beds ()
Livingston 443 518 (75)
995 1090 (95)
Macon 972 1110 {138}
Moultrie 234 361 (127
Piatt 150 160 (10)
Shelby 174 259 {85)
Vermilion 598 759 (161)
HEALTH SERVICE AREA § )
Alexander/Pulask 88 83 S
Bond 119 90 29
Qay 127 209 (32)
Crawford 158 160 (2}
Edwards/\Wabash 139 129 10
Effingham 356 434 (78)
Fayette 187 261 {74
Franklin 332 383 (51)
Gallatin/Hamitton/Saline 554 582 (28)
Hardin/Pope 94 62 32
Jackson 285 251 34
lasper s9 &7 2
Jefferson 300 336 (36)
Johnson/Massac 304 299 5
© lawrence 222 340 {118)
-Marion 455 509 (84)
ferry 156 210 {54)
Randolph 398 490 {52)
Richland 244 309 {65}
Union 279 293 {14)
Washington 172 178 (6
Wayne 155 169 (14)
White 243 351 {108}
Williamson 5829 955 {26)
HEALTH SERVICE AREA &
Planning Area 6-A 4615 6505 (1890)
Planning Area 6-8 2980 3026 {46)
Planning Area 6-C 4199 4573 (374)
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 7
Planning Area 7-A 3651 3309 342
Planning Area 7-B 5566 6154 (588}
Planning Area 7-C 5913 6070 {157
Planning Area 7-D 2462 2380 (418)
Planning Area 7-E 7495 8450 {955}
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 8
Kane 2705 2934 {229}
Lake 3653 4203 (550)
McHenry 1060 1095 (35)
HEALTH SERVICf f\REA 2 .
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11/15/2016
CALCULATED BED NEEDS'
Catodated ~ Approved Additional Beds Needed
) Planning Area Beds Needed Beds or Excess Beds ()
Grundy o 292, 265 27
Kankakee ' . 973 989 {16)
Kendali _ 313 185 128
will ' 2931 . 2889 a2
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 10 !
Henry 433 500 (67) ‘
Mercer 170 172 (2
Rock Istand 1077 1219 {142
HEALTH SERVICE AREA 11
Clinton 326 as7 ' {31)
Madison 1824 212 (388}
Monroe ' ' ' 304 250 : 54
St. Clair : ' 1860 2251 (391)

LONG-TERM CARE ICF/DD 16 AND UNDER BED NEED

HSA 1 , 249 33 (84)
HSA 2 239 224 15
HSA3 206° 352 {146)
HSA 4 304 128 176
H5AS 223 224 ()]
HSA6,7,8,9 3161 1065 209
HSA 10 ' ' 74 32 a2
HSA 11 ' 215 288 (73)
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria

Attachment 15

Section 1125.550, Service Demand, Expansion of General Long-Term Care

Historical Service Demand

2015 78 71 24,310 85.4% 93.8%

Westminster Village essentially operates at functional capacity. Of the 78 licensed beds
only two rooms are designed as private rooms and all the remaining rooms are dual occupancy.
As the Review Board well knows, dual occupancy rooms, especially without private showers is
"not the optimal arrangement for resident satisfaction, dignity or privacy. It is also sub-optimal
clinically in terms of infection control. Operationally, shared rooms result in lower occupancy as

rooms are blocked based on gender and infectious conditions.

Residents have a clear preference for single rooms. In recent years several Westminster
residents essentially purchased the second bed in their room in order to ensure having a private
room. Under this configuration, 7 rooms each year have been utilized as private rooms. There is

considerable demand for the temporary private rooms and a long waiting list for these rooms.
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When the occupancy is adjusted for the temporary single rooms the utilization is consistently

over the state standard of 90% and last year averaged 93.8%.

Referrals to other Facilities -

As a CCRC, the function of the skiiled facility is to provide nursing level care to existing
residents of the Westminster Community. There is a delicate balance between having the facility

operate at high utilization and to also assure that there is a skilled bed available when an existing

resident needs a skilled bed.

Westminster has historically struck this balance well. Unfortunately, there have.been
occasions where the skilled facility was full and could temporarily not accommodate an existing
Westminster resident. In the last 2 years there have been at least 10 times when a person at
Westminster was on the waiting list could not be admitted because of the lack of an available
bed. There have also been instances where residents chose not to go to the skiiled unit because
there were not private beds. When this situation has occurred, residents have been able to obtain
quality care at other facilities. This is not optimal for residents, however, who must separate
from family or friends at Westminster and is also not consistent with residents expectation for a

life care community. The additional 18 beds should alleviate the need by residents to transfer

outside their chosen community.

Projected Referrals

Westminster is a well-regarded facility and could easily obtain referral letters from area
hospitals. As a CCRC, however, its model is to care for those residents in the Westminster

Community who develop a need for skilled care.

In the past two years, Westminster has had 176 new admissions. All of these admissions,
except 8 came from residents already part of the Westminster community or from persons on its
waiting list. As described above, Westminster is essentiaily operating at functional capacity. Its

need for 18 additional beds arises out of its plans to increase Assisted Living units from 52 to 72
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and to increase independent living units from 176 to 266. The additional skilled beds are

Westminster to accommodate the increase in the number of non-skilled units

ATTACHMENT 15

113685346.9 75




Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria

Attachment 17
Section 1125.570, Service Accessibility

Westminster Village is a not-for-profit continuing care retirement community and home
to approximately 340 residents. The demand for retirement housing at Westminster far outstrips
the availability. Westminster currently has 278 applicants (many of whom are couples) who
have paid a deposit to go on the waiting list to enter independent or assisted living. The 18 bed
increase in skilled beds will not only alleviate the current capacity constraints, but is also

necessary to address the large increase of independent living residents. A detailed waiting list is

included as an attachment.

Bloomington Normal area residents enjoy their community and many are choosing to
remain there in retirement. Residents wishing to retire at Westminster face wait list times of
from 8 months for smaller unmits to 24 months for larger units. To accommodate the
extraordinary demand, Westminster has undertaken an extensive master plan to increase all

componenis of Westminster continuing care. This master project will be undertaken in three

phases:

| Phase I — Skilled Care. The initial phase will be to: (i} completely modernize the

existing 78 licensed bed facility to convert these beds from shared rooms to
primarily private rooms, and (ii) increase the number of licensed bed to 96. Phase

IT and 11T will not be undertaken until Phase I is complete and those phases are not

addressed in this CON application.

Phase II — Assisted Living. After the skilled living project is complete,

Westminster will construct a new assisted living building that connects with the
skilled care facility. The new assisted living building will be built for 60
apartments plus 12 memory care units.
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Phase II1 — Independent Living. Once the new assisted living building is

complete, the current assisted living space will be renovated to return it to its
original independent living use. Additionally, other townhomes and other
independent living space will be constructed during this phase. This phase will
increase independent living capacity from 176 apartments to 206 apartments plus
22 townhomes and 60 hybrid units.

To increase the new independent living Westminster recognizes that it must first expand
its skilled care, which is essentially operating at capacity, to accommodate additional seniors
who will eventually require skilled care. Westminster was established prior to the CCRC
variance and thus not subject to the requirements of that variance. The proposed increase of 18
beds, however is consistent with the CCRC concept which stipulates a ratio of | skilled bed for 5
independent and assisted iiving units. The addition of 18 new beds for approximately 110 new

units is consistent with the Board ratios of skilled beds.

_While there may be no formal admission restrictions for Westminster residents
developing a need for skilled care to go to other facilities, there are significant practical
restrictions. Residents choosing to live at Westminster do so with the intent that as they further
age, and possibility require. increased care, they do so within the Westminster community.
Residents at Westminster form a close community and may go through different levels of care
while at Westminster. The continuous availability of friends present cannot be overstated.
Friends living in independent care frequently visit and eat with their friends in skilled care.
While other high quality facilities can similarly offer good care, they cannot do to with the

proximity of friends within the same community.

This community aspect is particularly important for couples at Westminster. It is very
common among couples entering Westminster that one spouse will require si(illed care when the
other does not. The opportunity to see each other on a daily basis, have meals together and to
share visits from family is something that cannot be duplicated at a facility off the Winchester

campus.
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~ While the social aspects of the continuity of care are the most important, there are also
financial reasons for people who have entered Westminster as independent residents to continue
their skilled care at Westminster. Westminster is licensed by IDPH as a life care facility, and
although these are separate arrangements for independent and skilled care, residents retirement
financial planning is affected. This is particularly important in situations, which are common,

when residents move back and forth between skilled care and independent or assisted care,

Consequently, while there may not be formal restrictions to residents using other
facilities, the impact on these residents (and their families) is significant. A copy of the waiting
list as of Qctober 31, 2016 is attached and by signature on the application is certified to be

correct.
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Westminster Village, Inc. Waiting Listing 0ct_ober_2016,

ATTACHMENT 17

# Date Added . : Unit Preferersice Deposit Type
1 10-02-2002 Two Bedroom Comer Expanded/Deluxe Y Internal Priority
p 04-22-2003  One Bedroom - Internal Priorify
3 04-27-2007 AL Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded Internal Piiority
4  05-31-2007 Two Bedroom - internal Priority
5 09-22-2008 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Commer Expanded Intemal Priority
6 03-26-2009 Al Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded Internal Priority
7 -09-27-2010 AL Studio/One Bedroom Internal Priority
8 10-18-2010 AL Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded internal Priority
9 10-29-2010 AL One Bedroom/Two Bedroom Internal Priority
10 07-22-2011 AL One Bedroom internal Priority”
11 03-16-2012 AL Two-Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded Internal Priarity
12 06-26-2012 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two _Bedmdm Comer Expanded Internal Priority
13 09-14-2012 AL Two Bedroom - internal Priority
14 03-15-2013 AL Two Bedroom internal Priority
15 04-30-2013 AL One Bedroom Internal Priority
16 10-08-2013 . Internal Priority
17 11-27-2013  One Bedroom . Internal Priority
18- 04-04-2014 AL One Bedroom/Two Bedroom Internal Priority
19 . 04-18-2014 AL First Available internal Priority
20 06-23-2014 One Bedroom internal Priority
21 07-25-2014 AL StudiofOne Bedroom _ Internal Priority
22 09-05-2014 AL One Bedroom ‘Internal Priority
23 12-14-2014 AL One Bedroom internal Priority
24 12-29-2014 AL One Bedroom Internal Priority
25 01-16-2015  Studio/One Bedroom Internal Priority
26 02-20-2015 AL Two Bedroom tnternal Priority
27 07-05-2015 _ Studio Internal Priority
28 08-07-2016 One Bedroom Internal Priority
29 08-15-2016 One Bedroom Internal Priority
30 08-26-2016 . Internal Priority
31 06-18-2003 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/T wa Bedroom Corner Expanded {L Regular Deposit
32 11-30-2004 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded iL Regular Deposit
33 09-15-2006 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
34 06-13-2007 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
35 04-03-2008 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
36 10-17-2008 One Bedroom iL R}egu!ar Deposit
37 08-03-2009 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Regular Deposit
38 08-06-2009 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
39 11-13-2009  Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded iL Regular Deposit
40 12-26-2008 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded iL Reguiar Deposit
41 10-21-2010  One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
42 10-28-2010 One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
43 04-07-2011  One Bedroom IL Reguiar Deposit
44 07-15-2011 Deluxell IL Reguiar Deposit
45 07-20-2011 One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
46 180-16-2011 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
a7 02-02-2012 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
43 02-21-2012 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
419 05-23-2012 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
50 06-20-2012 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Regular Deposit
51 06-28-2012 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
52 02-21-2013  Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
53 03-01-2013 Two Bedroom ' iL Regular Deposit
54 03-08-2013 Two Bedroom Expanded IL Regular Deposit
55 03-20-2011  Studio/One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
56 06-17-2013 One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
57 06-19-2013 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
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# _Date Added Unit Preference Deposit Type
S8 08-06-2013 One Bedroom ' ~ IL Regular Deposit
59 08-06-2013 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Regular Deposit

" 60 08-16-2013 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Regutar Deposit
61 09-03-2013 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Regular Depasit
62 09-03-2013 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit

63  09-20-2013 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
64 09-28-2013  One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
65 09-30-2013  Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
66 10-18-2013  One Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
67 10-25-2013  Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Regular Deposit
68 10-25-2013 Two Bedroom S IL Regular Deposit
69 11-01-2013  One Bedroom/Two Bedroomn IL Regular Deposit
70 ° . 11-02-2013 Cne Bedroom ' {L Regufar Deposit
71 11-05-2013 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
72 11-12-2013 Two Bedroom ' L Regular Deposit
73 11-22-2013  Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
74 11-25-2013  Unknown IL Regular Deposit
75 12-05-2013 One Bedroom - IL Regular Deposit
76 12-05-2013 Unknown iL Regular Deposit

.77 - 12-11-2013 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Regular Deposit
7B 12-17-2013 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Regular Deposit
79 12-17-2013  One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
80 12-18-2013 Two Bedroom (L Regular Deposit
B1 12.18-2013 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
82 12-23-2013 Unknown ‘ . iL Regular Deposit
83 12-27-2013 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedreom Comner Expanded iL Regular Deposit
B4 12-27-2013  Unknown - ' IL Regular Deposit

- 85 12-30-2013 Unknown IL Regular Deposit
86  -12-31-2013 Two Bedroom iL Regutar Deposit
B7 01-21-2014 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
88 02-01-2014 Two Bedroom IL Regufar Depaosit
89 02-11-2014° Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
90 03-07-2014  Two Bedroom or Larger ' iL Regular Deposit
91 03-24-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
92 05-23-2014  Deluxe |/Deluxe It ) IL Regular Deposit
93 05-30-2014 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
94 06-12-2014 One Bedroom iL Regulér Deposit
95 07-08-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
96 07-18-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Depasit
97 07-23-2014 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
98 08-08-2014 Two Bedroom/Two 8edroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded iL Regular Deposit
99 08-11-2014  One Bedroom . IL Regular Deposit
100 08-18-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded iL Regular Deposit
101 08-26-2014 One Bedroom ? IL Regular Deposit
102 09:03-2014 Two Bedroom Expanded IL Regular Deposit
103 09-11-2014 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
104 09-23-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
105 10-09-2014 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
106 10-16-2014 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
107 11-07-2014  Studio IL Regular Deposit
108 11-10-2014 Two Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
109 12-26-2014 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Camer Expanded IL Regular Deposit
110 01-08-2015 Oeluxe |/Deluxe | : IL Regular Depasit
111 01-30-2015 Two Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
112 02-19-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Regular Deposit
113 03-16-2015 Two Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
1i4 04-15-2015 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit




Westmirister Village, Inc. Waiting Listing October 2016

Unit Preference

81

f Date Added _ : Deposit Type
115 05-05-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Regular Depasit
116 05-06-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded iL Reguiar Deposit
117 05-21-2015 Defuxe (i IL Regular Depaosit
118 05-21-2015 Two Bedroom'Exp'anded iL Regular Deposit
119  06-01-2015 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
120  06-03-2015. Two Bedroom Expanded . IL Regular Deposit
121  06-15-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded IL Regular Deposit
122 07-02-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded IL Regular Deposit
123 07-14-2015 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
124 09-08-2015 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
125 09-14-2015 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
126 09-29-2015 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
127  10-19-2015 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/T wo Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Regutar Deposit
128 10-26-2015 Deluxe i IL Regular Deposit
129 11-20-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Regular Deposit
130 11-23-2015 One Bedroom fL Regular Deposit
131 12-09-2015 One 8edroom {L Regutar Deposit
132 . 12-11-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded' iL Regular Deposit
133 12-15-2015 Two 8edroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regular Deposit
134 01-07-2016 One Bedroom/T wo Bedroom ’ iL Regular Deposit
135 01-22-2016 = One Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
136 02-04-2016 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Regular Deposit
137 02-22-2016 One Bedroom iL Regular Deposit

138~ "03-16-2016 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Regutar Déeposit
139 04-15-2016 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
140 04-15-2016 Two Bedroom Expanded IL Regular Deposit
141 05-13-2016 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Regular Deposit
142 05-24-2016 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
143 06-06-2016 - Two Bedroom or Larger, IL Regular Deposit
144 06-13-2016 Two Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
145 07-19-2016 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
146 07-26-2016 Two Bedroom Expanded IL Regular Deposit
147 08-02-2016 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded IL Regular Deposit
148 08-08-2016 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Regular Deposit
149 08-23-2016 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
150 09-06-2015 Two Bedroom . IL Regular Deposit
151 09-19-2016 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom iL Regular Deposit
152  09-19-2015 Studio/One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
153 09-19-2016 Two Bedroom IL Reguiar Deposit
154 09-26-2016 Two Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
155 10-25-2016  One Bedroom IL Regular Deposit
156 10-13-2004 MHC IL Priority List
157 06-12-2005 Unknown - IL Priority List
158 01-05-2006 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
159 03-24-2006 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
160 05-22-2007 Deluxe I/Deluxe ! IL Priority List
161 05-12-2008 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Priority List
162 11-24-2008 Two Bedroom Corner Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
163 ~ 09-15-2009 Duplex IL Priority List
164 03-30-2010 One Bedroom iL Priority List
165 10-27-2010 Two Bedroom IL Priority List

_ 166 01-17-2011 One Bedroom IL Priarity List
167 05-27-2011 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded IL Priority List
168 09-16-2011 One 8edroom . IL Priority List
169 09-26-2011 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Priority List
170 04-19-2012  Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
171 05-16-2012 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
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# Dete Added - Unit Preference Deposit Type
172 06-29-2012 Deluxe I/Deluxe I 'IL Priority List
173 06-29-2012 Duplex “IL Priority List
174 05-12-2012 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded IL Priority List
175 10-02-2012 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
176 10-10-2012 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expandedﬁ wo Bedroom Corner Expanded tL Priority List
177 12-122012 One Bedroom iL Priority List
178 01-30-2013 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expandedfr w0 Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Priority List
179 01-31-2013 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
180  02-22-2013 QOne Bedroom - IL Priority tist
181  04-18-2013 Twa Bedroom Expanded or Larger iL Priority List
182 05-07-2013. Two Bedroom Expanded or I.arger IL Priority List
183 05-30-2013 ©One Bedroom IL Priority List
184 06-05-2013 MHC . IL Priority List
185 06-10-2013  Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Carner Expanded IL Priority List
186 06-14-2013  Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded iL Priority List
187 07-05-2013 One Bedroom IL Priority List

-188 07-23-2013 Two Bedroom or Larger . 1L Priority List
189 08-29-2013  Two Bedroom IL Priority List
190  09-13-2013 Duplex tL Priority List
191 09-18-2013 Two Bedroom IL Priprity List -
192 09-19-2013 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger \L Priority Uist
193 09-23-2013  QOne Bedroom IL Priority List
194 11-29-2013 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger iL Priority List
195 12-01-2013  One Bedroom IL Prigrity List
196 12-16-2013 Two Bedroom or Larger ) IL Priority List
197 12-27-2013 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded IL Priority List
198 01-22-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IU Priority List
199  02-25-2014 Deluxe |/Deluxe fi IL Priority List
200 03-13-2014 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger iL Priority List -
201 03-24-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded iL Priority List
202 04-07-2014 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
203 04-11-2014 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Priority List
204 06-10-2014 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
205 07-01-2014 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
206 07-01-2014 Two Bedroom L Priority List

207 07-22-2014 One Bedroom IL Priority List
208 07-31-2014  Duplex/Two Bedroom IL Priority List
209 08-03-2014 Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Prigrity List
210 09-02-2014 Two Bedroom or Larger iL Priority List
211 09-08-2014 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Priority List

- 212 09-10-2014 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
213 09-11-2014 Two Badroom Expanded or Larger ' L Priority List
214 09-18-2014  Duplex/Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Priority List
215 12-02-2014 Duplex/Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
216 12-02-2014 One Bedroom IL Priority List
217 12-04-2014 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
218 12-05-2014 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger {L Priority List
219 12-16-2014 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
220 01-22-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
221 02-18-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
222 02-19-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Priority List
223 02-24-2015 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Priority List
224 02-24-2015 One B_edroom IL Prigrity List
225 03-11-2015 Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded L Priority List
226 04-08-2015  Duplex/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Priority List
227 04-15-2015 Two Bedroom or Larger iL Priority List
228 04-15-2015 Duplex IL Priority List
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] Date Added " . Unit Preference
229 04-17-2015 Twao Bedroom " IL Prigrity Ust
230 04-20-2015 Two Bedroom/Two Bedrecom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Priority List
231 0521-2015 Two Bedroom ' It Priority List
232 06-30-2015 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
233 07162015 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Priority List
234 07-21-2015  DuplexfTwo Bedroom' IL Priority List
235 07-31-2015 Two Bedroom tL Priority List
236 08-12-2015 Two Bedroom ‘. ] IL Priority List
237 08-13-2015 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded . ILPriority Uist
238 08-20-2015 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Priority List
239 08-20-2015 Duplax/Deluxe If L Priority List
240  09-04-2015 Two Bedroom or Larger IL Priority List
241 10-02-2015 Two Bedroom ' IL Priority List
T 242 10-09-2015 Duplex/Two Bedroom or Larger IL Priority List
243 10152015 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/T wo Bedroom Comer Expanded " IL Priority List
244 10-31-2015  Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Corner Expanded IL Prority Ust
245 11-06-2015 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Exparu_:léd/T wo Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Priority Ust
246 11-10-2015 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Priority List
247 11-16-2015 Duplex/Two Bedroom Expanded.or Larger " IL Priority List
248 11-20-2015 . Two Bedroom : ' IL Priority List
249 11-23-2015 Two Bedroom/Two 8edroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Priority List
250 12-24-2015 Two Bedroom or Larger ' IL Priority List
251 01-04-2016 Two Bedroom iL Priority List
252 0104-2016 Two Bedroom IL Prigrity List
253 01-07-2016 ' Duplex IL Priority List
254 03-10-2016 Two Bedroom/Two Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Priority List
255 04-01-2016 Two Bedroom ) : IL Priority List
256 04-04-2016 Two Bedroom iL Priority List
257  04-06-2016 ODuplex 1L Priority List
258 04-27-2016 Two Bedroom Expanded or Larger IL Priority List
259  04-28-2016 Twao Bedroom IL Priority List
260 05-02-2016 One Bedroom/Two Bedroom IL Priority List
261 05-06-2016 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
262 05-18-2016 Two Bedroom IL Priority List
263 05-31-2016 One Bedroom i Priority List
264 06-06-2016 One Bedroom iL Priority List
265  06-27-2016 Ouplex 7 IL Pririty List
. 266 07-15-2016 Two Bédroom/T wo Bedroom Expanded/Two Bedroom Comer Expanded IL Priority List
267 07-25-2016 Duplex iL Priority List
268 08-08-2016 Duplex iL Priority List
269 08-10-2016 Two Bedroom iL Priority List
270 08-15-2016 Deluxe /Deluxe It IL Priority List
271 08-15-2016 One Bedroom IL Priority Ust
272 08-30-2016 One Bedroom IL Priority List
273 09-14-2016 Duplex IL Priority List
274 09-15-2016 One Bedroom IL Priority List
275 09-23-2016  Duplex IL Priority List
276 09-30-2016 QOne Bedroom IL Priority List
277 09-30-2016 One Bedroom IL Priority List
278 03-10-1995 AL Unknown AL Regular Deposit
279  08-23-2011 AL Unknown AL Regular Deposit
280 01-15-2013 AL One Bedroom AL Regular Deposit
281 10-11-2013 AL One Bedroom AL Regular Deposit
282 05-15-2014 AL Efficiency AL Regular Deposit
283 12-16-2015 AL One Bedroom AL Regular Deposit
284 05-13-2003 AL MHC AL Priority List
285 09-07-2010 AL MRC AL Priority List

ATTACHMENT 17
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I .
" Westminster Village, {nc. Waiting Listing October 2016
& - DateAdded" -Unit Preference Deposit Type
286 01-20-2011 - ALMHC. R AL Priority Llst
287 10-25-2011 AL One Bedroom AL Priority List
288 06052012 AL MHC AL Priority List
"289  11-29-2012 AL Oné Bedroom/Two Bedroom AL Priority List
290  10-11-2013 ALMHC - : AL Priority List
291 11-06-2013 AL One Bedroom AL Priority List
292 11-13-2013 Al Two Bedroom Al Prigrity List,
293 .  12-23-2013 AL One Bedroom AL Priority List
254  04-11-2014 AL One Bedroom/Two Bedroom AL Priority List
295  03-24-2014 AL One Bedroom AL Priority List
296 10-27-2014 AL Two Bedroom AL Priority List
297  11-03-2014 AL One Bedroom AL Priority Ust
298 0909-2015 AL Two Bedroom AL Priority Ust
299 10-23-2015 AL Two Bedroom AL Priority Ust
300  10-30-2015° AL Efficiency AL Priority List
301 12022015 ALMHC AL Priority List
302~ 01-29-2016 AL One Bedroom/Two Bedroom AL Priority List
303 05-03-2016. ALTwo Bedroom - ‘ AL Priority List
304  06-27-2016 AL Two Bedroom AL Priority List
305  08:04-2016  ALMHC , AL Priority List
306  08-15-2016 - ALOne Bedroom AL Priority List
307 08172016 AL One Bedroom AL Priority List
308  09-01-2016 AL One Bedroom AL Priority List
ATTACHMENT 17
84




Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria

Attachment 18

Section 1125.580, Unnecessary Duplication/Maldistribution

Zip Codes within 30 Minutes Travel Time

" Attached are lists of: (i) all of the zip codes within 30 minutes normal travel time from
the Project site, (ii) the population of each such zip. code, and (iii) the names and locations of all

licensed long-term care facilities within 30 minutes normal drive time from the Project site.

Beds Per 1,000 Population

The statewide average is 7.6 beds/per 1,000, however, McClean county’s average is only
6.1 beds/per 1,000. There is no maldistribution based on this calculation under the Board’s rules.

Maldistribution of Services/Not Lower Utilization

This Project will not significantly lower the utilization of other area providers.
Westminster Village is a continuing care retirement community. Residents in the skilled facility
are persons who are already part of the Westminster community. As discussed in Attachment 17
above, in the last two years Westminster admitted 176 new skilled residents, all but 8 from

Westminster Independent or Assisted Living or persons on the waiting list for those services.

The 18 new beds being added are to accommodate the significant internal growth in the
number of new Independent and Assisting Living units at Westminster. Westminster does not
market for skilled residents from the outside community and does not solicit referrals from
hospitals for general residents. While certain circumstances there may be an occasional

admission, this is not the Westminster model.

ATTACHMENT 18
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Perhaps the best evidence that this Project will not lower utilization at other facilities
éomes from those facilities themselves. Heritage is the largest provider of long-term care
services in the Bloomington Normal area with homes in each community. As part of this project,
Westminster met with Heritage to discuss the project. Heritage not only acknowledged the
benefit of the project, but also that residents Westminster admitted were part of the Westminster
community. Heritage graciously offered not only their encouragement, but their letter of

support. We are pleased to reference the Heritage letter of support included in Attachment 21.
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ZIP Codes within 30 Minutes’ Drive Time

[ cote; Fravel Time:

61705 3 mins
61704 4 mins
61761 13 mins
61736 15 mins
61745 15 mins
61776 17 mins
61774 20 mins
61752 20 mins
61754 21 mins
61737 22 mins
61748 22 mins
61730 23 mins
61725 24 mins
61777 24 mins
61732 26 mins
61753 26 mins
61729 27 mins
61723 28 mins
61778 29 mins
61759 29 mins
61728 30 mins
61722 30 mins
61727 30 mins

ATTACHMENT 18
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113729288.1

Population by Zip Codes within 30 Minutes Travel Time

61705 14,731 3 mins
61704 39,518 4 mins
61761 49,543 13 mins
61736 1,796 15 mins
61745 4,219 15 mins
61776 1,020 17 mins
61774 507 20 mins
61752 4,379 20 mins
61754 817 21 mins
61737 321 22 mins
61748 2,708 22 mins
61730 . 206 23 mins
61725 1,358 24 mins
61777 602 24 mins
61732 1,516 26 mins
61753 3,047 26 mins
61729 989 27 mins
61723 1,570 28 mins
61778 420 29 mins
61759 288 29 mins
61728 1,226 30 mins
61722 281 30 mins
61727 10,127 30 mins

89
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121472016 " Driving Dlrections fram 2025 E Lincoln S1, Sloormington, Ilinols 61701 to 2200 £ Washington St, Bloomingtor, Hiinois 81701 | MapQuest *

mo] mapquest

- Trip to:
2200 E Washington St _
Bloomingtoh, IL 617014364 . ' -
1.36 miles / 2'minutes . <¢ 'jbsg? H
Notes ] - o ;
@ 2025 Lincoln St, Bloomington, (L 61701-5995 - . pomioed. :
® " 1. Start out going east on E Lincoln St toward 4 Seasons Rd. Map’ 0.2 Mi !
' 0.2 Mi Total '
‘.. e 2. Tum left onto S Veterans Pkwy /155 Bus N.Map . 1.0 Mi - i
TRD 5 Veterans Pkwy is 0.1 miles past 4 Seasons Rd _ 1.2 Mi Total
@ if you rsach S Eldorado Rd you've gone a litile too far '
- ;. o 3. Tum left onto £ Washington St Map ) ) 0.1 Mi i
: E Washlngton Stis 0.3 miles past E Jackson St N 1.4 Mi Total - o
-Hyou are on K55 Bus N and reach IL-9 you've gone ebout .5 mies too far T -

' | 4. 2200 E WASHINGTON 8T is on the right. Map

Your destination is jds_t past Saint Joseph Dr
{fyou reach Rust Rd you've gone a litlle oo far

@ 2200 E Washington St, Bloomington, IL 61701-4364

‘ | | S ATTACHMENT 18
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12142018 .. Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincoln St, Bicormington, Tlinois 61701 to 2200 E Washington St, Bloamington, Hinols 61701 | MapQuest

Total Trave! Estimate; 1.36 miles - about 2 minutes

' Q2018 Mapouast Inc. Use of directions and maps Is subject lo the MapQuast Tams of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
thelr content, road condiions ar route usabllty. You assums a!l risk of use.
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121412018 _ Driving Directions frorii 2025 E Linooln St, Bloomington, llincis 61701 to 1925 S Main St, Bloomington, lifinois 61704 | MapQuest

Y . . . ' ) ReEVABILITATION
e mapquest’  Broewiwer |

e | 4 HeatTH cree CensTek-
Trip to: )

1925 S Main St

Bloomington, IL. 61704-7301

2.62 miles / 4 minutes

Notes
@ 2025 E Lincoln st, Bioomington, IL 61701-5995 - Dorad
. 1. Start out going easton E Lincoln St toward 4 Seasons Rd. Map - g2 M
0.2 Mi Total
ﬁ e 2. Take the 15t right onto § Vatorana Pkwy {155 Bus 8, Continue to follow k55 Eus 8 Mi
GBI S. Map : . 2.1 Mi Total
@ I-55 Bus S is just past4 Seasons Rd
If you ere on E Lincoin St and reach !-55 Bus S you've gone a litlle too far
3. Take the US-51 Bus IMaln Stramp.Map . : 03 M
. ‘ _2.3 Mi Total
ﬁ 4. Turn left onto US-51 Bus 8/ 5 Main St. Mgp_ 0.3 Mi
% L . 2.6 Mi Tota!
B 5.1925 5 MAIN ST Is on the right. Map

Your destination is just past Oak Creek Plz
¥ you reach W Hamilton Rd you've gone about 0.4 mﬂ’_es too far

: 9 1925 S Maln St, Bloomington, {L 61704-7301

ATTACHMENT 18
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12142016 " Oriving Directions from 2025 E Lincoin St Bloomington, liinofs 61701 to 1825 S Main St Bioomington, inois 61704 | MapQuest -

Total Travel Estimate; 2,62 miles - about 4 minutes

E
[
I~
i
,
@2016 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps Is subject to the MapQuast Terms of Use. We make ng guarantee of the eccuracy of
thek content, road oonditbns o mouts usablity. You assume all sk of use.
:

St
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12142016 Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincdin St, Bloomington, ilinois 617071 to 700 & Walmat St, Bloomington, lingia 61701 | MapQuest

: ?,Advértisement
8 mapquest o
Trip to:
;!ggmll-:n::;?ul?Lu; 1%1 3244 YT |
) = -JAA/
2.58 miles / 6 minutes ' . ‘H -(5‘»3
Notes - A o+
T wLO?
@ 2025 E Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995 © Doumioad
® 1. Start out golng west on E Uncoln St toward Parmon Rd. Map 08 M |
. 0.8 M Totel
7 = 2 Tum rightonto Morrissey Dr / US-150 W. Confinue to follow US-150 W, Map " o5Mi
@ /S-150 Wis 0.1 miles past Doral Dr : 1.4 Mi Tota!
i you reach Maple St you've 'gone a litile too far
ﬂ 3 Turn left onto E Oakland Ave fUS-150 W Map 03 MI
r’ Grzsp) 4. Turn right onto S Clinten St/ US-150 W. Man : ) 0O M -
{150} you reach S Clayton Styou'e gone a little too far 2.6 Mi Total
r’ 5. Tumn right onto E Walnut $& Map 0.01 MI
E Walnut Stis Just past E Cheelnut St 2.6 Mi Total

If you reach E Empire St youVve gone & little 100 far

N 6.700 E WALNUT ST is on the left. Map
i you reach Elder St you've gone a litdle too far

Q 700 E Walnut St, Bloomington, 1L 61701-3244

S P O LA Y
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12142016 Driving Directions fram 2025 E Uncoin S, Bloamington, lilinals 61701 to 700 E Watnut St, Blcomington, Dlinals 81701 | MapQumt

Total Travel Estimate: 2.58 miles - about § minutes

g

AFCLER T

T @2(16. Mapouest. Ine. Uaa of directions and meps Is subject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make no guamnlee of the acpuracy of
thek cantent, read conditlons or route usabilily. You assume all risk of use. Vi

;
i
:
|
!

i
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124142018 Driving Direcions from 2025 E Lincoln St, Bléanlrlém Ninols 81701 to 601 Lutz Rd, Bloomington, Riindis 61704 | hiabChx_ist

B mapquest

601 Lutz Rd
Bloomington, IL 61704-8406 .
4.30 miles / 7 minutes

Notes

Wmvertise'ment

[Lucrve®
oS

Download

Q 2025 E Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995 pownioa
LY 1. Start out going east on E Lincoln St toward 4 Seasons Rd. Map ozm
0.2 Mi Total
p mg. 2. Take the 1st right onfo § Veterans Pkwy /1-55 Bus S. Continue fto follow I-SS Bus 28 Mi
0 §. Map . 3.0 Mi Total

- @ k55 Bus S is just pasM Seasons Rd
¥ you are on E Lincoln Sfand reach -85 Bus S you've gone a little too far

ﬂ 3. Tum left onto § Morris Ave, Map 08 M
4.0 M! Total
l" 4, Tumn right onto Lutz Rd. Map 0.3 Mi
- 4.3 Mi Total

Lutz Rd is 0.2 miles past Witten Woods Dr

H#youare on N 1375 East Rd and reach Cabin Town Rd you've gane about 0.1 miles

{00 far

. 5 601 LUTZ RO is on the right. Map

@ 601 Lutz Rd, Bloomington, IL 61704-8406

hitpr/fclassic.mapquest.com/fprint?a=epp.core.cOocilacb85e6247 dbdddi7l
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12142018

Total Travel Estim_ate: 4.30 miles - about 7 minutes

©2016 MapQuast,- Ing, Use of directions and maps ks subject to the MapQuast Terms of Use, We make no guarantas of the accuracy of
thel content, mad conditions or ute usabilty. You assume all dsk of usa.
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12142016 " Driving Directions from 2025 E Linooin S, Bloomington, Ulinois 61701 to 610 Broadway, Normal, Tlinis 61761 | MapQuest
EAdvcrtisement
_a ' . .
o Mapquest
"~ Trip to: ' ' ‘ -
i ' D P
! 510 Broadway - . J e i
. Normal, IL 61781 - e e
4,62 miles / 9 minutes ' : o O,-putﬁ’(/
Notes _ . - . N
: - . ; ' . - Download
: Q 2025.E Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995 Free App
; @ 1. Start out going east on E Lincoln 5t toward 4 Seasons Rd. Map ’ . 02Mi A 1
: ‘ ' 0.2 Mi Total : o
“ 2. Turn loft onto S Vetérans Phwy (1-65 Bus N. Man : 25 Mi
B S Votorans Pkwy Is 0.1 miles past 4 Seasons Rd - 2.8 Mi Total
Ifyou reach S Eldorado Rd you've gone e fitle foo far ;
ﬁ 3. Tum left onto E Varnon Ave. Map ’ . 1.8 Mi i
' E Vernon Ave Is 0.4 milas past Clearwater Ave ) 4.5 M! Total E
#you are on 155 Bus N and reach Jumer Dr you've gone abouf 0.2 miles foo far :
o 4. Tum right onto Broadway St. Map . : 0.07 Mi i
i you reach S Fall Ave youVe gone a little too far . ’ 4.6 M! Total !
B 5 510 BROADWAY Is on the right. M_Q
Your destinalion is just past W Stewar Pl - i
ffyou reach Wirving St you've gone a little oo far t
[}
~ . E
Q 510 Broadway, Normal, IL 61761 :
!
ATTACHMENT 18
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121412016 Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincoln $t, Bloomingtan, Mincis 61701 to 510 Broadway, Normal, llinols 61761 | MapQuest

Total Travel Estimate: 4.62 miles - about 9 minutes

©2016 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps Is subject to the MapQuast Terms of Uss, We make no guarantes of the accuracy of
their contant, road condltions or route usabifity. You assume all dsk of use. Yiaw Toms of Usa
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121412016 Driving Direclons from 2025 E Linoain St, Bioominglon, inola 61701 to 1509 Calhoun St, Bloomingion, linols 61701 | MapQuest

B Y N L R TR

E.Advertisement N

me mapquest"

Trip to:
1509 Calhoun St . 3

_ L O
Bloomington, IL 61701-1514 . f’\?é . _
‘4,21 mites / 10 minutes . - szja .
Notes

=

Q .2025 E Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995 Download
d Free App
® 1. Start out going west on E Lincoln St toward Parmon Rd. Map 0.8 Mi
0.8 Mi Total
g 5P 2 Tum right onto Morrissey Dr/US-150 W. Continue to follow.US-150 W. Map 0.5 Mi
' US-150 Wis 0.1 mifes past Doral Dr 1.4 Mi Total
#you reach Maple St you'va gone a Iftlle too far
ﬂ Grrer) 3. Tumn left onto E Oakland Ave /US-150 W, Map 03 Mi
' 1.7 Mi Total
r’ (wexp) 4. Tumn rightontoSCIlntonStlUS «150 W. Map ' 1.0 Mi-
@ #you reach S Clayton St you've gone a little too far 2.7 Mi Total
ﬁ (Wisp 5. Turn left onto E Empire St/US-150 W/ILS. Map 0.7 Mi
= E Empire St s fust past € Walnut St ‘ 3.4 Mi Tolal
fyou ara on N Ciinton Bivd end reach E Graham St you've gone a litfle too far
r 6. Tum right onto N Loe St. Map ' ' 04 M
N Lee Stis Justpast N Roosevell Ave 3.7 Mi Total
- i you reach N Qak St you ve gone a iitfe too far '
ﬁ 7. Tumn left nto W Emerson St. Map 0.2 Mi
W Emarson Stis just past Seminary Ave 3.9 MY Total
i you reach W Kelsey St you've gone a litfie foo far :
f 8. W Emerson St becomes W Seminary Ave. Map 0.2 Mj
4.1 Mi Total
" 9. Tum right onte Calhoun 8t. Map 0.07 Mi
Cathoun Stis 0.1 miles pest Ewing St 4.2 Mi Total
i you reach N Moris Ave you've gone a litile too far
N 10. 1509 CALHOUN ST Is on the right. M_p_
Ifyou reach the end of Calhoun Styou've gone a Ilttfe too far
@ 1509 Calhoun St, Bloomington, IL 61701-1514
ATTACHMENT 18 -
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1242016 . . Driving direc’domﬁw 2025 E Uncoln S, Bloornington, iincls 81701 to 1508 Calhoun S, Bloomingtan, ﬂ!lnds 81751 | MapQuest '

Total Travel Estimate: 4.21 miles - about 10 minutes

.©2018 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps Is subjact to the MapQuest Tenns of Uss. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
thelr content, road conditions or oute usablilty. You assume all dsk of use. Yiew Tears of Use

: | " ATTACHMENT 18
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121142018 Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincdin S, Bloomington, lilinals 84701 to 509 N Adelzids St Normal, liinole 81761 | MapQuest

[ N T LI NEPUL LU RN S AP UNU PRI SCSTC I S € RO S ST RO,

F,Advertisement

B mapquest

N Adelside Stis just past Carmae St
ifyou are on W Coflege Ave and reach Easiview Dr you've gone a little foo far

Trip to: o : : _ 1_1“,6 &
509 N Adelalde St _ Hes .ngﬂri
Normal, IL 61761-2422 va
.6.30 miles / 12 minutes - AR H
Notes .
- @) 2025 Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995 Dovmload
® 1. Start out going east on E Lincoln St toward 4 Seasons Rd. Map 02 Mi
0.2 Mi Total
ﬂ xxry 2. Tum left onto S Veterans Pkwy /155 Bus N. Map JAMI
ERH § Vetarans Pkwy Is 0.1 miles past 4 Seasons Rd 3.3 Mi Totaf
@- If you reach S Eldorado Rd you've gone a litfle foo far
: ﬁ 3. Tum left onto E College Ave. Map 14 Mi
-E College Ave is 0.2 miles past Jumer Dr - 4.7 Mi Total
’ F 4. Tumn slight right onto E Mulberry 5t. Map 0.6 Mi
. E Muthermy Stis just past N Mapia St 5.3 Mi Total
f 5. E Mulberry St becomes W College Ave. Map 0.6 Mi
) 5.9 Mi Total
ﬁ 6. Tumn right onto N Adelaide St. Map 04 M
6.3 Mi Total

= 7.509 N ADELAIDE STis on the left. Map
ifyou reach Gregory St you've gone about 0.1 mifes too far

Q 509 N Adelaide St, Normal, I 61761-2422

hitpoficiassic.mapquest.com/print7a=app.core.c0cciachB508247dbddd7Y 102
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12142018 Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincain S, Bloomington, llinals 61701 k509 N Adelelde St, Normal, Mindis 61761 { MapQuast

i

Total Travel Estimate: 6.30 miles - about 12 minutes

©2016 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps b subjed to the MapQuaest Terms of Use. We make no guarantes of the accuracy of
View Torms of s

thelr content, mad condilions or routa usabilty. You assumes all risk of use.

http:liclassic.mapquast com/print?a=app.core.c0ccilactSe624 Tdbdddl7T
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901 N Main St : Counr™

12f14R2018 Driving Directions from 2025 £ Uinceln St, Bloamington, (llinais 61701 ta 801N Main St, Narmal, incis 61761 | MapQuéét'

Normal, IL 61761-1501
6.38 miles / 12 minutes

NuLlLC(UG ,]_,{01"46

Notes
@) 2025 E Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995 Dovmioad
® 1. Start out going east on E Lingoln St foward 4 Seasans Rd. Map 02 Mi
) ’ 0.2 Mi Totai
ﬂ m 2.Tum leftonto 8§ Ve_terans Pkwy /155 Bus N. Map IAM
WBIE § vaterans Pkwy Is 0.1 miles pest 4 Seasons Rd 3.3 Mi Total
' If you reach S Eldorado Rd you'Vve gone a lilile too far )
‘1 3. Turn left onto E College Ave. Map 14 Mi
E College Ave /s 0.2 miles past Jumer Dr 4.7 Mi Tatal
r 4. Tum slight right onto E Mulberry St. Map 0.6 MI
E Mutberry Stis Just past N Maple St 5.3 Mi Tolal
4 ‘ 5. E Mulberry St becomes W College Ave. Map 0.3 Mi
5.5 Mi Total
o o5 6. Tum right onta US-51 Bus N /N Main St. Map 0.8 Mi
o 6.4 Mi Total

BSRTH ()S-51 Bus N s just past N University St
m if you reach Kingsley St you've gone about 0.1 miles koo far

e —rwGam e e

]  7.904 N MAIN STis on the left. Map

Your destinglian is Just past Summit Ave
if you reach Falirview Styouve gone about 0.1 miles loo far

@ 901 N Main St, Normal, IL 61761-1501

hitp.ficiasslc.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.clcciOac 8850824 Tdoddd 7T 104 -
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1271472016 Driving Directions from 2025 E Linboln St, Bloomingion, lindls 617010 801 N Mein St, Normal, Tiinols 61761 | MapQuest -
. Total Travel Estimate: 6.36 miles - about 12 minutes _ , :

©2016 Maﬁduest. Inc. Use of directions and maps Is subject to the MapQuest Temms of Use. We make no guarantee of the sccuracy of
thair content, mad conditions or route usabiiity. You assume all risk of use. View Jerms of Use )
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' 12)14.2:1@ O Dictinrm 25 Linooin S, Bloomingtan, Mincls 61701 to [301 - 3991 8 Buck S, Lo Ry, lincks 61752 MepCuest
B B o _ [@Advertiscment '
| ﬂmapquest o .
i _ ) '

: Trip té: : )

- [301 - 3991 S Buck St ' LCL:Z ,oc‘ﬂ

‘Le Roy, IL. 61752-1627
15.12 miles / 19. minutes

Notes
@ 2025 E Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701:5995 = pownoad
b 1 Slart out goln-g east onE Llncoln St toward 4 Seasons R Map - 0.2 Mi
' 0.2 Mi Taral
l" mSrs 2. Take the 1stright onto S Veterans Pkwy / 155 Bus S. Map 1.0MF
HEI § Veforans Pkwy is fust past 4 Seasons Rd - & 1.2 Mi Tofa!
ifyou are on E L!ncain Stand reach |-55 Bus S you've gone a little too far
‘1 agy) 3. Turn left onto Morrissey Dr I Us-150 E. Confinue to follow US-150 E. Map 13.5Mi
' {150} US-150 El5'0.2 miles past Brickyerd Dr . 14.7 Mi Total
P 4. Tum right onto N Buck St Map - - ' 0.5 MI
: N Buck Stls Just past N Alfen 5t 15.1 Mi Total
If you reach N While St you've gone a litlle too far . ) '
. 5.[301 - 399] S BUCK S§T.Map
: Your destination is fust past W Cedar St
ifyou roach WVine St yoqu gone a little toa far

| 9 [301 - 399] S Buck St, Le Roy, IL 61752-1627

PR

ATTACHMENT 18
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121142018 Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincoin SY, Bloomington, liinois 61701 to [301 - 399 § Buck St Le Roy, llinals 61762 | MepQuest

Total Travel Estimate: 15.12 miles - about 19 minutes

2016 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps Is subject to the MapQuésl-Tem'e of Use. We make no guarantee of the accuracy of
thel content, road conditions or route usabiity. You assume alf risk of use. View Temns of Uss o :

ATTACHMENT 18
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121472016 ‘ Driving Directions from 2025 £ Lincain St, Bloomington, llindls 61701 to 422 W Whits St Clinton, liiinois 81727 | MapQuest -

W Whits Stis just past W South St
If you reach W Van Buren St you've gone a litle foo far

. . ' IF YOU OWE LESS THAN
E mapquest’ - | 3625K, USE OBAMA'S
{orl > ONCE-IN-A-LIFETIME
- Trip to: Pl L et MORTGAGE RELIEF PROGRAM
422 W White St W e T N
Clinton, IL 81727-2272 w 7
24.50 miles / 28 minutes
“Notes o
Ovar 75
Calculate New House Payment
G016 L cou |
© 2025 E Lincoln st, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995. Promioa
. 1. Start out going east on E Lincoln St taward 4 Seasons Rd. Map 02 Mi
. . 0.2 Mi Total
r’ 2. Take the 1st rigit onto S Veterans Pkwy /1-65 Bus S, Continue to follow 155 Bus 1.9 Mi
D S. Map L ' : 2.1 Mi Total
@ 1-55 Bus § is just past 4 Seasons Rd
ifyou are on E Lincoln St and reach 1-55 Bus S you've gone a litlla too far
, 3. Teke the Maln St/ US-51 Bus ramp. Map 03 MI
2.3 Mi Total
q ¢ Turn left onto US-51 Bus S /'S Main St. Continue to follow S Maln St. Map 1.8 Mi
4.1 Mi Tolal
1+ 5. S Main St becomes US-§1 S. Map 183M ..
% : o _ 22.5 Mi Total '
4‘ 6. Tum left onto Business US 51/US-51 Bus S. Map 1.1 M
ot % ¥ you reach Wainut Rd youve gone about 0.4 miles too far 23.5 Mi Total
l"" (&) 7. Tum right onto W Woodiawn St / US.51 Bus 5. Map. 0zmi
S W Woodiawn Stis 0.2 miles past £ Douglas St " 23.7 Mi Total
m i you are on N Center 5t and reach E Julia St you've gone e litlle too far
& (&5 8. Turn sIlgiﬁ left onto N Grant St/ US-51 Bus §. Map 0.8 MI
EXTH 1y Grant Stis just past N Jackson St 24.5 MI Total
" 9. Tum right onto W White St. Map 0.04 Mi

24.5 Mi Total

N 10.422 WWHITE ST s on the left. Map
ifyou reach S Mulberry St you've gone a fittle too far

@ 422w White St, Clinton, IL 61727-2272

htip/classic.mapquest.com/print?a=app.core.aafic23cb072I6! 1151ed1 108
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12!14;'2‘01'6 N - Driving Dlractions from 2025 E Lincoln S, Bloomington, lllinols 61701 to 422 W White St, Clinton, [linols 81727 | MapGuest

Total Travel Estimate: 24.50 miles - about 28 minutes

%

ks

©2016 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps Is aubject to the MapQuest Terms of Use. We make ne guarantee of the accuracy of
thelr content, road conditions of route usabilty, You assums all risk of use. View Terms of Use

ATTACHMENT 18
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12114/2018 Driving Directions fram 2025 E Lincain St Bicomington, (ilinols 61701 to 24588 Church St, Chenoa, linals 61726 | MapQuest

A . Y Advertisement
£ mapquest’
Trip to: ' ' .
24588 Church St : @aowg_'
Chenoa, IL 61726-9395 | S o | ,
24.47 miles / 29 minutes ' g NPON
Notes '
@ 2025 Lincoln St, Bioomington, IL 61701-5995 porioad
® 1. Start out going east on E Lincoln St toward 4 Seasons Rd. Map 02 Mi
' B . : 0.2 Mi Total
4y =¥ 2. Tumleftonto S Veterans Pikwy /I-55 Bus N.Map - 48 Mi
TS0 5 Voterans Pkwy Is 0.1 miles past 4 Seasons R 4,8 Mi Tofal .
@ i you reach & Eldoredo Rd you've gone & litffe too far
"’1‘ m 3. Marga onto [-55 N toward Joliet. Map - 11.0 Ml .
w . 15.8 Mi Total
ECH_ 4, Merge onto P.J. Keflar Hwy ! County Hwy-8 via EXIT 178 toward Lexington/ isU 1.1Mi
- _FARM. Map _ _ . ~ 16.9 Mi Total
4 5. Tum left onto N Spencer St. Map ‘ - 0.01 MI
’ : 16.9 Mi Tofal
1. 6 N Spencer St becomes County Hwy-23 / County Hwy-2480 /N 2480 East : 7.0 Mi
Rd. Map 23.9 Mi Total
4'| 7. Tum left onto Gundy Or. Map 0.4 Mi
Gundy Dris 0.2 mlles past E 3100 North Rd ' : 24.3 Mi Total’
I you reach N 700 East Rd you've gone about 0.7 miles loo far
g 8. Turn right onto Church St. Map . 0.1 Mi
. . ’ 24.5 MI Total
. 9.24588 CHURCH 8T s on the right. Map
. Your desfination is Just past Burt St -
It you reach Center St you've gone a litle too far
@ 24588 Church St, Chenoa IL 61726-9395
ATTACHMENT 18
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12/14/2018 Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincain St, Bloomington, llincls 61701 lo 24588 Church St, Chenoe, Dlindis 6‘i726 | MapQuest .

Total Travel Estimate: 24.47 miles - about 29 minutes

. ct to ths MapQuoest Terms af Lisa. We make no guarantse of the accuracy of
thelr content, road condttlons or oute usabllty. You assume all risk of uss. View Terms of Use :

" ©2016 MapQusst, Inc. Use of diractions and maps ks subje
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1214{2018 Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincoln St, BloamIngton, Ulineds 61701 to 1 Park Ln, Clinton, Ulinola 61727 | MapQuest

o \ - W@Advcﬂisemeht i
Tripto: . : A\Jm b Exwoé
1 Park Ln ' 7)
Clinton, IL 61727 ' :
.25.54 miles / 29 minutes
Notes
: i o Dawnload
@ 2025 E Lincoln St, Bloomington, IL 61701-5995 o !
1.-Start out golng east on E Lincoln St foward 4 Seasons Rd. Map o 02 ML _
@ - !
o 0.2 Mi Total ) :
i
f’ 2 Take the 151 right onto S Veterans Pkwy / 155 Bus S. Continue fo follow 55 Bus : 1‘.9 Mi o
2.1 Mi Total i
!-55 Bus S s just past 4 Seasons Rd _
if you are on E Lincoln St and reach 55 Bus 8 you'Ve gone a litlle oo far
' . Take the Maln St/US-51 Bus ramp. Map - ' 03Mi -
2.3 Mi Total :
ﬂ 4. Tum left onlo US-51Bus § / S Main St. Continue to follow § Main 8t. Map ) 1.8 Ml
: - ' 4.1 Mi Total ¥
1 5. § Main St becomes US-51 S. Map . 20.3 Mi L
% ' _ - 24.5 Mi Total
. . ¢ b
“ 6. Tum left onto State Highway 10 /IL<10. Map o6Mi :
' State Highway 10 Is 0.4 miles past Sunset Rd e ' 25.1 Ml Total !
, i you reach 675 N you've gone about 0.3 miles too far
v 7. Take the 2nd right onto (ilinl Dr. Map ‘ 04 M
#fini.Dr is 0.2 miles past Wagon Trail Rd 25.4 Mi Tolal
#you are on State Route 10 Wand reach Franklin Ln you've gone about 0.1 miles foo
far
ﬁ .8.Tum left onto Park Ln. M_g - ’ 0.09 Mi
Park Ln {s just past Liberty Ln 25.5 Mi Total

If you reach Manorhill Dr yau\re gone ahout 0.1 miles too far

] 9.1 PARK LN is on the right. Map
If you reach Liberty Ln yvou've gona a littie foo far

@ 1 Park Ln, Clinton, IL 61727

ATTACHMENT 18
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12142018 " Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincoln 1, Bloomington, fiinals 64701 to 1 Park Ln, Clinton, flinals 61727 | MapQuest

Total Travel E_stf!"nat-e: 25.54 miles - about 29 minutes

i
©2016 MapQuest, Inc. Use of directions and maps Is.subject lo the MapQuest Terms of Use, YWe make no guarantee of the accuracy of
thelr content, road condhions or route usabilly. You assume afl sk of use. View Terms of Use _

H
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12(‘!4)‘2010 Oriving Directions from 2025 Elincain SLVBI.oanljgm Niingis 61701 l0 402 S Harrison St, Colfax, llindls 61728 | MépQuéét-
I @Advcrtisement
me| mapquest‘ |
. Trip to: ' , N
. 402S Harrison St xTE ‘o
P Colfax, IL 61728-9216 C\/WQE
| 24.75 miles / 30 mlnutes . .
Notes x CDL‘?A’?L‘
Q 2025 E Lincoln St, Bloomington, I 61701-5995 Qormiond
o 1. Start out going east on E Lincoln $t toward 4 Seasons Rd. Map 02 Mi
: ' B : - 0.2 Mi Total
: ﬁ wxE 2. Tumn left onto S Veterans Pkwy /1-55 Bus N. Map _ : 14 Mi
WD 5 Vetersns Phwy is 0.1 miles past 4 Seasons Rd 1.7 Mi Total
&9 17youreach s Eidorado Rd youVve gone a itte too far . :
| r 3.Tum slight right. Map . , R
i 0.1 mifes past Eastiand Dr o . 1.8 M Total
; ¥you are on I-65 Bus N and reach IL-9 you've gone a litlle too far -
| F E] 4. Tum alight right onto E Empire St/1L-9. Continue (o foliow IL-9. Map ' 168 Mi
‘ ) : 18.6 Mi Total
ﬁ 5. Tum left onto N 3300 East Rd/ County Hwy-15. Map- ‘ ’ o COBAM
ff you reach N 3400 East Rd you've gone about 1 mife too far . 23.7 Mi Total
. l" 6. Turn rightonto E 1900 North Rd/ County Hwy-13, Map 1.0 MI
i you reach E 1975 North Rd you've gone sbout 0.7 miles fao far 24.7 Mi Total
ﬁ 7. Tum left onto 8 Harrison St/ County Hwy-13. M__Q ' 0.08 Mi
S Harrison Stis 0.2 miles past 8 Grove St 24.8 Mi Total
If you rsach N 3400 East Rd you've gone about 0.1 miles too far
'. 8.40258 HARRlSON ST s on the left. Map

Ifyou resch G St you've gone about 0.1 miles to0 far

@ 402 S Harrlson St, Colfax, iL 61728-9216.

ATTACHMENT 18
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12142018

Totat Travel Estimate: 24.75 mlles - about 30 minutes

3ok ’,“*‘fg\iﬂ;

T

Driving Directions from 2025 E Lincain 81, Bloomington, lllnd.'ﬂ.;61701 to 402 S Harrison St, Calfax, fllinois 61728 | MapQuest

82016 MapQuast ine. Use of diactions and maps Is subject to the MapQueat Temns of Use, We make no guamn(es of the accuracy of

thelr content, rad conditions or route usablity. You assume ali risk of use.

hiip:/iclassic mapaeest com/prink?a=app.core.e8a54abTcE7544 aTbT70b
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria
Aftachment 19
Section 1125,590 - Staffing Availability

Attached is a letter from Westminster describing its staffing approach and a chart

showing projected staffing levels.

ATTACHMENT 19
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Westminster Village, Inc.

125 Basr Lincoln Sreeer * Blowomyngron, 1L 61701 « 2300 603-6474 * wwawwesnninstervilluyenec.com

December 8, 2016
Ms. Courtney Avery

Administrator
llinois Health Facilities and Service Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, linois 62761

Re: Martin Health Center — Staffing Review Criteria

Dear Ms. Avery

As the Chief Operating Officer for Westminster Village, i have reviewed our staffing needs that would be
associated with our proposal to add 18 additional beds to our existing facility. | have also reviewed
staffing requirements in the context of your Section 1110.1730 review criterion.

Our facility currently employees approximately 160 full time employees. In our planning for a proposed
increase of 18 beds, we have prepared our required additional staffing projections. The attached chart
shows both our current staffing levels as well as the additional staff that we anticipate with the addition.

The growth in the Registered Nurse (RN) staffing versus Licensed Practical Nurse {LPN) staffing
represents an initiative not related to this expansion project. The preference for RN staffing is due to
the higher acuity of resident needs.

Our facility is regarded as an employer of choice in the community. We currently have 235 applications
on file for employment for all positions. | further certify that the number of applications on file
generally exceeds the projected number for each position listed on the attached chart.

Respectfully,

Matt Riehle, LNHA
Chief Operating Officer

ATTACHMENT 19
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CON staffing current proposed 2016.xlsx _

Staffing for Proposed Westminster Village Expansion

‘Page 1 of |

2016 FTE's
Current staffing for Proposed additional
Position Classification 78 beds staffing for 96 heds Applications on file
Administrator 1
DON 1
ADON 1
MDS Coordinator 1
Registered Nurse 6.56 6.04 7
Licensed Practical Nurse 6.93 0.07 3
Rehabilitation Aide 1
Certified Nursing Assistant 3194 10.06 92
Social Services Director 1
Scheduling Coordinator 1
Activity Director 1
Activity Assistant 1
MHC Resident Services Assistant 1
Office Coordinator 1
Receptionist 0.4 1 33
Diatary Aides 6 2 37
Cook 2 1 23
Maintenance 24
Floorcare 2 1 3
Housekeeping 2 14 12
TOTAL 71.23 2257 238
ATTACHMENT 19
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria

Attéchment 20
Section 1125.600, Bed Capacity

The maximum bed capacity of this facility will be 96 skilled nursing beds, which is
below the State standard of 250 beds. .

ATTACHMENT 20
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria
Attachment 21

Section 1125.610, Community Related Functions

Attached is a letter of support for the Project from the President and CEQ of Heritage
Enterprises stating that the Project is good for the comfort and dignity of Westminster’s seniors

and the community at large.

ATTACHMENT 21
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HERITAGE
ENTERPRISES

December 8, 2016

HERITAGEOFCARE.COM

Ms. Kathryn J. Olson
Chair
Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board

525 W. Jefferson Street--2"™ Floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Re: Westminster Village
Support for CON Project

Dear Chairwoman Olson,

Westminster Village has shared with us their plans to modemize and expand their community. Heritage
shares Westminster’s. mission for caring for the residents for the Bloomington Normal area and
consequently are taking the usual step to support the CON application for a facility that would appear to
be a competitor. _

Heritage Enterprises is a family owned business providing high quality senior healthcare since opening
our first facility in 1963. Heritage presently owns and manages 34 skilled nursing facilities in Illinois.
Heritage also provides services to seniors in our 11 assisted and supportive living facilities. We support
businesses that provide services to seniors in our communities.

As a continuing care residential community Westminster provides a valuable option for senior care in our
area. With a large number of independent and assisted living residents, Westminster’s skilled facility
draws largely from its own residents who wish to remain in their retirement community. We have
accommodated some Westminster residents in the past when its skilled facility was full. While we
appreciate the opportunity to care for their residents, we understand why these residents wish to remain in
their community, often where they can be close to their spousc.

We also fully understand Westminster’s desire to update the cumrent facility. As a provider of long term
care, we can attest that the majority of residents prefer private rooms. The present configuration of
almost all shared rooms with no showers is outdated and not consistent with the housing desires today.

The Westminster CON project is good for the comfort and dignity of its seniors and for our area. We
support Westminster in its project.

\“/SJ%#

Benjamin A. Hart
President and Chief Executive Officer

ATTACHMENT 21

cc: Barbara Nathan

p:309.828.4301 f:309.820.5477

115 W. Jefferson Street, Suite 401 P.O. Box 3188 Bloomington, 1L 61702-3188
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria
Attachment 22

Section 1125.620, Project Size

The proposed Project is well within the Review Board standards for square footage.
Upon completion the facility would total 73,912 DGSF, of which 50,586 sf would be for clinical
purposes. At 96 licensed be this would result in 527 BGSF clinical square foot per bed. This is
well within either the state standard of 435-713 DGSF or even the 350-570 DGSF per bed
standard. Appendix D lists all the department area square footages.

As discussed in Attachment 25, it is interesting to note that the current building is below
the minimum state standard for size. The entire present facility totals only 31,362 BGSF/bed for
78 licensed beds, or 402 sf/bed. This is well below the state minimum size of 435 sf/bed. Please
see Appendix D for further information. Site plans and schematic drawings of the Project are

also included.

~The Applicant notes that during the construction period for this Project there will be
unrelated improvements being performed to portions of the independent living area. The
Applicant’s counsel met with Review Board staff to explain the other work and to confirm that
the independent living work was architecturally independent and thus not part of this
application. A letter from the architect confirming that other work is not interdependent is

included as part of this Attachment.

ATTACHMENT 22
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria

Attachment 23

Section 1125.630, Zoning

The Project is an expansion and modernization of an existing facility. As an existing

facility, the facility is already zoned approximately and no further zoning is required.
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria
Attachment 24

Section 1125.640, Assurances

A letter aftesing to the fact that ‘Westminster will, by the second year of project

completion, achieve and maintain the occupancy standards is  attached.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE

A CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

December 8, 2016

Ms. Courtney R. Avery

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2" Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:  Westminster Village, Inc. — CON Permit Application — Assurance of Occupancy
Dear Ms. Avery:

This letter attests to the fact that if this Project is approved by the Illinois Health Facilities
and Services Review Board, Westminster Village understands that it is expected to achieve and
maintain the occupancy specified in §1125.210(c) by the second year of operation after project
completion. Westminster Village, Inc. reasonably expects to meet this occupancy.

Barbara Nathan T~—
CEO

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this gj”: day of December, 2016

Signaturéof l_\égary Public

Seal

OFFICIAL SEAL
CAROLYN J. DOLLAHH\DE )
Notary Public - State of Ilhnms18
My Commission Expires 9/14/20

Looapuern kIR el
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Section IV, Service Specific Review Criteria

Attachment 25

Section 1125.650, Modernization

Current Facility

Westminster is a highly rated, high quality facility. This respect, however, comes not
from its physical plant, but despite it. Westminster is approximately 40 years old and the facility
shows its age. It was constructed according to the medical care model prevalent at the time ~

double rooms, long hallways, large dining rooms and no showers in the room. The need for

modernization is apparent.
Size

Interestingly, if a CON application for the current facility was submitted today, the
Review Board would make negative findings on size - - it is too small to meet state standards.
Curreﬁt standards stipulate that facilities should be sized between 435 — 713 BGSF per bed. The
current Westminster skilled facility is a total of 31,362 BGSF for 78 licensed beds. This size
means there is only 402 square feet per bed — well below the minimum size for a facility under |
Review Board ruling. This severe space shortage compared to modern facilities means that

residents do not have a modern facility.

Dignity and Privacy

One of the most significant negative aspects of the outdated facility is its impact on
privacy and residents dignity. A private room is not simply an amenity, but an important factor
in infection control, insolation and other clinical outcomes. These privacy considerations have

also become a matter of federal law and policy with HIPAA requirements and CMS community

ATTACHMENT 25
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care guidelines. Double rooms also results in difficulty matching roommates with different

physical, cognitive, and social abilities, and sometimes necessitates less than ideal parings.

"CMS has made some of these privacy and other issues a matter of person-centered
guidelines. Westminster not only want to comply with these guidelines, but to be at the forefront
of community and person-centered approach for residents. Some resident centered changes are
quite basic. For example, none of the current residents rooms, except two, have private showers.
Residents must go through a long corridor to a communal shower room simply for bathing. This

improvement is elemental to privacy.

Other improvements make a much more advanced approach to understanding to social
needs. The Westminster project structure will create small 12-person “neighborhoods”. This
concept, similar to small-house concepts, de-institutionalizes residen_t care and is intended to
create close social interaction among residents. As part of this structure a large cafeteria is
replacéd with small dining areas. These small dining rooms can then be used for needs with

family visits, birthdays and other special occasions.
Chapel

. The proposed modernization will also include for the first time a non-denominational

chapel for spiritual reflection, which is an addition residents have specifically desired.

Other Improvements

In addition to items discussed above, this modernization project would make the

following improvements.
* Allow for a clinical medical space with space for practitioners: MD, Podiatrist,
Ophthalmologist as well as clinical lab space for testing on site.

* Provide space to residents to do their own personal laundry which reduces the

residents personal costs.

ATTACHMENT 25
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113685346.9

Redesigns nurse stations for person centered care focus as well as to enhance
ADA compliance for staff and allow for expansion of an electronic medical -

record (EMR) process.

Ability to meet the needs of our hospice population especially at end of life to
provide dignified care in a private setting and to provide more privacy for the

family.

Creates a large activity space which will allow for larger resident activities when
needed and no need to convert dining space. This activity space will also be

beneficial for ongoing staff education.

Creates an enclosed courtyard with covered patio that will allow for safer resident

access to outside spaces and allowing for increased freedom of mobility.
Enhances natural outside lighting.
Replaces of boilers for hot water and HVAC for heating and cooling.

Allows for updated features and much more ability for residents to personalize

their room more like home.

ATTACHMENT 25
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Section V, Financial and Economic Feasibility Review

Attachment 26

Section 1125.720 - Specialized Long-Term Care — Review Criteria

Westminster operates as a continuing care retirement community with independent
living, assisted living and skilled care and is referenced as a CCRC throughout this application.
~When Westminster was constructed in 1979 it was not done so under the restrictions of the
Review Board variance for a CCRC. Although Westminster limits admissions to its existing

residents, it is not governed by the CCRC variance.
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Section V, Financial and Economic Feasibility Review

Attachment 27
Section 1125.800, Estimated Total Project Cost
Availability of Funds

Attached are copies of Westminster’s audited financial statements for the 2015, 2014 and

2013, the most recent years.

- As an established entity with a solid financial background Westminster Village is
confident in its ability to obtain financing for the Project. Westminster has engaged Ziegler as
bank placement agent to obtain the most favorable financing available. The intent for ﬁnancing
the Project'is that it be structured as a tax-exempt, direct bank placement (not bonds) through the
[llinois Finance Authority (IFA) in order to obtain tax-exempt financing. Westminster has
previously done tax-exempt bank financing through the IFA for a geothermal project. A letter
frpm Ziegler regarding this tax-exempt bank financing structure is attached. To this end,
Westminster has worked with Commerce Bank in preparation for this ﬁnanciﬁg as evidence of
availability of funding and a copy of preliminary financing terms is also attached. Final
financing terms will be arrived at through a competitive process to ensure the lowest borrowing
cost. The project cost reflected in the “bond issuance expense” line item largely relates to the

costs of the fees of IFA for this structure.
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200 South Wacker Drive-
Suite 2000

. Chicago, it 60606
Phone:  312-263-0110
TolHree: 800-366-8899
Fax 312-263-5217
www.Zleglar.com

William R, Carney
Managing Director
Senior Living Finance

~ November 9, 2016

Barbara Nathan -

Executive Director

Westminster Village and Foundation
2025 E. Lincoln St.
Bloomiington, IL 61701

Dear Barb:

As you know, Ziegler is currently engaged as bank placement agent by Westminster Village.in
connection with a proposed financing of capital projects on the Bloomington, [, campus. This
financing is part one of a multi-phase campus repositioning and includes a new addition and
renovations to the existing health center, site improvements to the community building and a
new sérvice entrance. The expected bank loan amount will not exceed $40 miltion.

It’s anticipated this financing for Westminster Village will be structured as a tax-exempt, direct
bank placement that will be unrated. The bank market for financing quality senior living projects
continues to be very efficient and access to capital is strong. Ziegler maintains substantial
relationships with multiple bank partners and feels confident in our ability to secure a bank loan
for Westminster with attractive interest rates and terms. As evidence of our experience with bank
placements, Ziegler has already surpassed $1bn in placements this year. If there’s a market
disruption and Westminster Village is unable to obtain bank financing, Ziegler could serve as
underwriter for a conventional tax-exempt bond financing with client approval. Ziegler is the
national leader in senior living finance, having underwritten $3bn of tax-exempt bonds this year.

Please feel free to contact us with any questions, or if you should require further information.

Sincerely,
Ny

William R. Camey
Managing Director

ATTACHMENT 27
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,,u % Commerce Bank

December 14, 2016

TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATION - PRIVATE PLACEMENT

Subject: Proposal for a Private Placement Tax-Exempt Obbgation Financing for Westminster
: Village, Inc. (the “Facility’)

Dear Mrs. Barb Nathan:

Commerce Bank is pleased to present Westminster Village, Inc. with the following Term Sheet for the
financing of new capital projects (the “Bonds”) through Commerce Bank’s wholly owned subsidiary,
Clayton Holdings, LLC (“Clayton Holdings™).

Please note that Clayton Holdings has not given final credit approval for the proposed financing; however,
this term sheet is intended to set forth a summary of terms and conditions under which Clayton Holdings
would consider financing the Facility. Accordingly, this letter does not constitute a commitment by
Clayton Holdings to provide financing, and notwithstanding any discussions we may have, Clayton
Holdings shall not have any commitment or other obligation hereunder unless and until a commitment
letter is signed and delivered to you.

Commerce Bank appreciates the opportunity to present this Term Sheet and looks forward to your
favorable response. These terms and conditions are considered confidential and may not be dzsclosed to
outside parties.

If you have questions or comments regarding the proposed financing detailed in the attached Term Sheet,
please contact Jennifer Elder.

Respectfully submitted,

/ /%%
Jennifer Elder Byron Blotcky

Commecrce Bank Commerce Bank

Assistant Vice President . Senior Vice President

Office: (816) 234-1745 Office (309) 823-7251

Email: Jepnifer,Elder@CommerceBank com Email: Byron. Blotcky @commercebank.com

Prices and/or yields are subject to change and investments are subject to availability. The Capital Markets
Group of Commerce Bank does not provide tax advice; please refer to your tax professional.

ATTACHMENT 27
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Term Sheet Tax-Exernpt Obligation Ancncing

Page 2

Facility:

Issuer;

Borrower:

Original Purchaser(s)/

Purchaser(s):
Trustee:

Original Purchaser’s Agent:

Amount;

Use of Proceeds/Purpose:

Security:

Term/Put Options:

Interest Rate:

Private placement revenue bond

City of Bloomington, Blinois, or other conduit eligible to issue tax-
exempt obligations on behalf of 501(c)(3) organizations,

Westminster Village, Inc.

Clayton Holdings, LLC
Commerce Bank or other trustee acceptable to Original Purchaser

Commerce Bank

Up to $25,000,000.00 on a best efforts basis to participate financing to
other qualified iostitutions.

Proceeds of the Bonds will be used to finance new capital projects (the
“Facility” or the “Bonds” or “Series 2017 Bonds™)

Secured Obligation on a pari passu basis under the existing Series 2013
Bonds with a First Mortgage on propeny located at 2025 East Lincoln
St., Bloomington, IL. Subject to 3™ party appraisal. Construction
advances from escrow to be monitored and fimited by 70% loan-to-

value,

Final maturity expected to be 23 years from closing. Initial put option of
5 years. Subsequent put opuons to be agreed to by the parties prior to
close.

Initial term/put period:
As illustrated below, the interest rate will be calculated using the then-

current Swap rate corresponding to the 5-year put option, to correspond

to the initial term/put period as. selected by Borrower.

‘Tax-Exempt Fixed Rate Option _ mm.{ as oﬂznmom
Inidal | Tax Exenpt Treasury Swap i :
Term Factor Curve Index Spread

5 0.775 x 1.90% +| 186% |=[iE

The Interesi Rates detailed above are for illustrative purposes only SWAP rates
cutlined above are the like term SWAP. SWAP rates may change before the time
the final interest rate is set.

Interest Rates can be locked up to one week prior to closing without premium.
Interest on the Obligation will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year and
must be exernpt from federal income taxation.

Subsequent lerms/put periods:

For subsequent terms/put periods, the interest rate will be calculated at: the greater
of 77.5% or (1 minus the maximum federal corporate tax rate in effect at the time),
multiplied by the sum of (i) the then-current Swap rate for the maturity
corresponding to the term of the put period as agreed upon by the parties; plus (ii)

ATTACHMENT 27
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Term Sheet Tax-Exempt Obfgation Anancing

Page 3

Amortization;

Payment:

Prepayment:

Additional Business:

Documentation:

Taxability:

Opinion of Counsel;

a spread determined by the Original Purchaser to be added to or subtracted from
the applicable Swap rate.

Interest only payment will be due through construction period converting
10 a 20 year, mortgage style amortization. Some other mutually agreeable
amortization with differing average life may also be considered;
however, the proposed Interest Rate is dependent on the assumed
average life. Therefore, the Interest Rate may change pending the final
determination of the amortization.

Construction Period: Interest only payments due monthly
Post Construction: Principal & Interest due monthly

Yield Maintenance.

Commerce Bank anticipates maintaining existing banking relationship
with Borrower,

All documentation shall be prepared by experienced “Red Book™ counsel
(“Bond Counsel™) subject to review by counsel to Clayton Holdings.
Included among Clayton Holdings’ documentation requirements is an
opinion of Bond Counsel that the interest component of the Obligation is
tax-exempt and an opinion of Borrower’s counse] that the Obligation is &
legal, valid, and binding obligation of Issuer. All documentation must be
satisfactory in form and substance to Clayton Holdings and its counsel.

The ' Interest Rate is based on the assumption that the interest payments
on the Bonds will be exempt from federal income taxation. The Bond

" shall include the provisions regarding events of taxability and change in

tax laws including changes in tax rates to ensure no reduction in the
economic yield to Clayton Holdings occurs.

Clayton Holdings shall be furnished with a letter or letters from
aitorneys acceptable to Clayton Holdings, in form and substance
satisfactory to Clayton Holdings, addressing the following matters:

a. Borrower is a duly formed, validly existing corporation in good
standing under the laws of the state of its incorporation, with full
power and authority to consummate the transactions
contemplated in connection with the subject loan.

b. Specify the individvals who may execute the bond documents as
officers of Borrower to create binding obligations upon
Borrower without the joinder of any other party.

c. The transaction documents, when executed, will constitute valid
and binding agreements of Borrower. ‘

d There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened

to counsel's knowledge which wili adversely affect Borrower's
obligations under the loan transaction, or which could draw into.
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Term Sheet Tax-Exempt Obligation Financing

. Page 4

" Transaction Fees:

Financial Covenants:

Financial Statements:

question or adversely affect the validity of the loan transaction
documents. o

e. That interest on the Bonds is exempt from federal income tax.

f. Authoﬁty for Clayton Holdings to rely upon such Opinion(s) in
connection with the purchase of the Bonds.

Borrower shall be responsible for all out of pocket fees associated with
the funding of the Obligation including, but not limited to:

Issuer’s application fees

Issuer’s Issuance Costs & Annual Fees
Bond counsel fees

Fees of Counsel to Issuer

Fees of Counsel to Clayton Holdings
Third Party Appraisal

ALTA Survey

Phase I Environmental Report

Title Policy

Insurance Policy

Fees may be included (capitalized) into the tax-exempt portion of the
Obligation subject to the 2% IRS limitation. Any fees in excess of IRS
limitations must be paid from Borrower's funds.

A Continuing Covenant Agresment or similar agreement will
incorporate by reference covenants contained in the Trust Indenture and
other Related Bond Documents and said covenants and provisions will
be deemed to be for the benefit of the Purchaser. The covenants are
intended to be consistent with the existing Series 2013 and Continuing
Covenant Agreement with the addition of the following included in
Series 2017 Bonds: . .

» Limitations on the Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness
» Limitations on the Sale, Lease or Disposition of Property

* Limitations on the Merger, Consolidation or Sale of th
organization :

Most Favored Nations. Any more restrictive financial covenant in
existence at Closing Date with any other creditor shall also be deecmed
incorporated into the Facility. Any more restrictive financial covenant
negotiated post-Closing with any other creditor during the term of the
Facility will be deemed incorporated into the Facility.

Borrower shall furnish to Clayton Holdings’ Agent, within one hundred
and twenty days (120) of the end of each fiscal year financial statements
audited by an independent public accountant. Quarterly intemal

- statements from the Borrower to be provided within sixty (60) days. The
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. Temn Sheet Tax-Exempt Qbligation Ananding
‘Page §

statement will include the balance sheet, income statement and cash flow
statement of Borrower and a certification that no event of default exists.

CONDITIONS TO PURCHASE

The Financing Documents shall be in form and substance acceptable to Clayton Holdings and will include
conditions precedent, representations and warranties, covenants, events of default, indemnification and
other provisions customary for transactions of this type.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT
Customary conditions including absence of default or unmatured default, lack of material adverse change
from the Borrower's financial condition and operations as reflected in the most recent financial statements
delivered to Clayton Holdings. Additional conditions precedent to the initial loan shall include, without
limitation, the following:

Closing Date: A to-be-determined date on or before February 15, 2017 or some other
mutually agreed upon date.
Approval: Evidence satisfactory to Clayton Holdings that the Facility contemplated

herein has been approved, as appropriate, by Borrower, and all legal and
other approvals for the Facility and related financing transactions have

been obtained,

Due Diligence: Satisfactory results of a due diligence investigation of the Borrower shall
be acceptable to Clayton Holdings.

Legal: All legal matters, including income tax and regulatory matters, shall be
satisfactory to Clayton Holdings.

No Defauit, No Material . _

Adverse Change: No default or unmatured default shall exist on the Closing Date. No
change in the condition (financial or otherwise) of the operations,
performance, properties or prospects of the Borrower shall have occurred
prior to Closing Date.

Customary Documents: Receipt by Clayton Holdings of other customary closing documentation,

including, without limitation, legalftax opinions, all in acceptable form
and substance.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Customary representations and warranties, including but not Ilimited to absence of material adverse
change, absence of material litigation, absence of default or unmatured default, representations regarding
environmental issues, priority of the Purchaser’s liens, and compliance with all material requirements of
law and contracts.

DEFAULTS

Customary events of default, including, without limitation, cross default (whether or not that default
results in acceleration) to any other agreement governing indebtedness of the Borrower.
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~ Temn Sheet Tax-Exempt Obligation Rnanding

Page 6
_ MISCELLANEQUS
Costs and Expenses: All costs and expenses incurred in the due diligence, preparation and

administration of this transaction, including all legal expenses, shall be
bome by the Borrower, whether or not the Facility is closed.

Purchasers Counsel is expected to be Don Kirkpatrick, Stinson Leonard
Street, LLP.

Additional Information: Borrower shall provide additional information necessary to complete the
due diligence process as may be reasonably requested by Clayton
Holdings and shell authorize Clayton Holdings to make such inquirics
and investigations as it deems advisable.

Not a Commitment: The proposed terms and conditions outlined in this term sheet are
provided for discussion purposes only and do not constitute a
commitment to place. This term sheet is intended as an outline only and
does not purport to summarize all the terms, conditions, covenants,
representations, warranties or other provisions which would be contained
in definitive legal documentation of the financing transaction
contemplated herein. The actual terms and conditions upon which
Clayton Holdings might purchase the Bonds are subject to further due
diligence, formal credit approval, satisfactory review of documentation,
and such other terms and conditions as may be determined by Clayton
Holdings and its counsel.

THIS IS NOT A COMMITMENT, BUT RATHER A SUMMARY OF
EXPECTED TERMS AND IS SUBJECT TO FURTHER APPROVALS,
CONDITIONS AND DOCUMENTATION.

The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that: (i) Commerce Bank is providing the information contained
in this document for discussion purposes only in anticipation of serving as placement agent with respect
to the Facility; (ii) the primary role of Commerce Bank, as a placement agent, is to facilitate an arm’s-
length commercial transaction between the Issuer and Clayton Holdings; (iii) Commerce Bank is not
acting as a municipal advisor, financial advisor or fiduciary to the Borrower or any other person or entity
and Commerce Bank does not owe a fiduciary duty to the Borrower pursuant to Section 15B of the
Secunities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; (iv) Commerce Bank is acting for ils own interest; (V)
. the -information provided and any discussions or undertakings leading up to, or in any way connected
with, the Project are not intended to be and should not be construed as “advice” within the meaning of
Section 15B of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and (vi) Commerce Bank is not
recommending that the Borrower take.any action or refrain from taking any action with respect to the
Facility contemplated by this Term Sheet. Prior to taking action, the Borrower should consult with its
own financial and/or municipal, legal, accounting, tax and other advisors, as applicable, to the extent it
deems appropriate. If the Borrower would like a municipal advisor in this transaction that has legal
fiduciary duties to the Borrower, then the Borrower is free to engage a municipal advisor to serve in that

capacity.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE

A CONTINUING CARE RETIREMENT COMMUNITY

December 15, 2016

Ms, Courtney Avety

Administrator

Illinois Health Facilities and Services Review Board
525 West Jefferson Street, 2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Westminster Village, Inc. —- CON Permit Application — Reasonableness of Financing
Dear Ms. Avery:

Westminster Village, Inc. (“Westminster”), the applicant for the proposed project,
proposes to fund the project through a combination of cash and borrowing. The proposed
structure and terms of financing are contained in the letter for Ziegler and from our bank. We
attest that we are borrowing funds because;

A. A portion of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet asset
accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 1.5 times for LTC
facilities; '

B. Borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire

debt within a 60-day period.
: Sincerely, A
PR 2 TR W
Barbara Nathan
CEO
STATE OF ILLINOIS }
' } S8

COUNTY OF h! Yeava  }

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this /57 day of

Decemno 2010, by Beanbara Wathu -, whois personally known to me

or produced as identification.

Signature of No -
My Commission Expire:_9//4//20/%

OFFICIAL SEAL
A et o
Notary Public - State 0
4 My gon?mission Expires 8/14/2018

S

aon - o]
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Westminster Village, Inc.
Bloomington, lllinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Westminster Village, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the
related statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropnate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of
accounting policies used and the overall reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Opinlon

In our apinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of Westminster Village, Inc. as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes In its net assets and #s
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.
L3
v

Sulaskj and Webb
Certified Public Accountants

September 25, 2013
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid insurance

Total current assets
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - At cost
Land and land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Construction in progress

Total
‘Less: Accumulated depreciation

Net property and equipment
OTHER ASSETS
Long-term investments
Escrow funds - Restricted

Total other assets

Total assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-
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2013 2012
$ 4,263,478 $ 1,131,860
1,769,893 1,886,233
909,062 1,045,598
22,956 39,515
47,651 28,880
55,812 55,899
7,068,852 4,187,985
1,747,881 1,653,447
26,485,635 26,449,688
7,969,729 7,502,882
671,000 -
36,874,245 35,606,017
(22,438,384)  (21,197,550)
14,435 861 14,408,467
4,719,541 5,859,585
4,818,951 4,758,600
9,538,492 10,618,185
$ 31,043,205 $ 29,214,637
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS
Revenue

Independent Living fees and revenues
_Earned life occupancy and membership fees
Health Center fegs and revenues
Cottage fees and revenues
Assisted Living fees and revenues
Investment income (realized and unrealized)

Total revenue
Expenses .

independent Living

"Health Center

Cottage

Assisted Living

Management and general
Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets

NET ASSETS, Beginning of year

NET ASSETS, End of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. -
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2013 2012
$ 4,733,178 $ 4,575,328
480,117 441,977
4,839,887 4,498,089
222,605 188,603
1,862,777 1,633,773
452,316 134,932
12,590,880 11,472,702
4,607,019 4,706,715
4,728,659 4,479,910
327,707 303,078
1,644,676 1,402,707
597 653 425,025
11,905,714 11,317,436
685,166 155,266
18,974,553 18,819,287
$19,659,719 - $18,974,553
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Net realized and unrealized {gain} loss on investments
‘Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest
Inventories
Prepaid insurance
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue and other long term liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Redemption of investments
Purchase of property and equipment

Net cash provided {used) by
investing activities

Net increase (decrease)} in cash
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES
Interest paid

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financlal statements.
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2013 2012
$ 685,166 $ 155266
1,240,835 1,218,244
(130,255) 181,979
136,536 (201,490)
16,659 26,917
(18,771) 201
87 27,694
827,033 141,809
316,369 307,948
3,073,559 1,858,568
(3,069,871) (2,705,482)
4,396,158 2.410,370
(1,268,228) (982,799)
© 58,059 (1,.277.911)
3,131,618 580,657
1,431,860 551,203
$ 4.263,478 $ 1,131,860
$ 13,204 $ 12,144
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012

- SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of Activities

The QOrganization's operations consist of a residential retirement community and health care center
for senior citizens located in Bloomington, lllinois. The Organization receives revenue primarily from
service fees paid by residents and patients residing in its facilties. Fees collected from each of
these activities generally contribute equally to total revenue.

The QOrganization is a nonprofit corporation registered in the State of lllinois, tax-exempt under
- Section 501(c}(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. [n addition, Westminster Village, Inc. has heen

determined by the internal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation” within the meaning of
Section 509(a) of the Intermnal Revenue Code.

Significant Accounting Policies

Tempoerarily and permanently restricted net assets - Temporarily restricted net assets are those
whose use has been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted
net assets have been restricted by donors in perpetuity. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, the Organization had no temporanly or permanently restricted net assets.

Charity care - The Organization provides services to residents who meet certain criteria under fife
occupancy contracts without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the
Organization does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are
not reported as revenue.

Use of estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
_ results could differ from those estimates.

Investments — Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are stated
at fair market value. The Organization adopted an investment policy in December 2003. This policy
is to invest funds in conservative investments that protect principal, provide an income stream for
operations and to a lesser extent, provide some protection from inflation. Mutual fund investments
may not exceed 30% of invested funds without approval of the Board. At June 30, 2013 and 2012,
the total investments include 22% and 17% mutua! funds, respectively.

Inventory - Inventories consist of food and miscellaneous supply items and are stated at the lower of
~ cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Significant Accounting Policies {Continued}

Property and equipment - Property and egquipment are carried at cost. The Qrganization
implemented a formal capitalization palicy in June 2012 which inciudes a significant cost threshold of
$600. The Organization believes that this capitalization amount accurately reflects a significant cost
given the nature of its assets. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and improvements 15-40
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-10
Trucks and autos 3-6

Maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are charged to operations and major
improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of property and equipment,
the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and gain or loss is

recognized.
. Deferved revenue - Deferred revenue consists of three sources of revenue:

{1} Life occupancy fees include nonrefundable deposits from residents. The nonrefundable fees are
amortized using the straight-line method cver the life expectancy of each resident. Unamortized
fees not refunded to residents leaving their apartments are included in operating revenue in the
year the resident leaves.

{2) Nonrefundable advance fees range from 10 to 20 percent of fees paid on cotlage lease contracts
by residents and are amortized using the straight-line method over the life expectancy of each
resident. Unamortized fees on reoccupancy of the cottage are included in revenue in the year of

reoccupancy.

{3) Refundable advance fees range from 80 to 90 percent of fees paid on cottage lease contracts by
residents and are amortized using the straight-line method over the remaining useful life of the
cottage. The advance fees are refundable only if the cottage is resold.

Billings in advance - Billings in advance represent amounts that have been billed during the month
for revenues to be earned during the following month. These amounts are recorded as Accounts

Receivable and Billings in Advance.

Revenue - Independent living, health center, cottage and assisted living fees and revenue are
" reported at the estimable net realizable amounts from residents, patients, third-party payors, and
other insurers for services rendered.

Accounts receivable — Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable amounts from residents,
patients, third-party payors, and other insurers for services provided.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Continued)

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Generally accepted
accounting principles require that the allowance method be used to reflect bad debts. However, the effect
of the use of the direct write-off method is not materially different from the results that would have been
obtained had the allowance method been followed. The Company recognized bad debt expense of $892
and $5,227 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. '

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Organization considers all investmeﬁts available for current use with an original maturity of three
months or iess to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2013 and 2012, consist of
the following:

2013 2012
Cash $ 2,587,503 $ 1,082,731
Money markef accounts 1,675,975 49,129
Total $ 4,263,478 $ 1,131,860

' INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments at June 30, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

2013 2012
Money market accounts $ 44,893 $ 165,955
Certificates of deposit 1,725,000 1,720,278
Total : $ 1,769,893 $ 1,886,233

Ldng—term investments at June 30, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

2013 2012
Mutual funds $ 2,439,275 $ 2,144,409
Certificates of deposit 2,280,266 3,715,176
Total $ 4,719,541 $ 5,859,585
-8
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Westminster Village, Inc. has adopted the fair value accounting guidance related to financial
assets and liabifities. The guidance defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value under GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. it also establishes a

fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value:

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Observable inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities traded in active markets.

inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Inputs that are generally unobservable. These inputs may be used with
internally developed methodologies that result in management's best
estimate of fair value.

Unrestricted financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the

year ended June 30, 2013:

Fair Value
Assets 6/30/2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Certificates of deposit $ 4,005,266 $ 4,005,266 $ - 3 -
Money market funds 44,893 44,893 - -
Mutual funds 2,439,275 2,439,275 - -
Total $ 6,489,434 $ 6,489,434 d - $ -

Restricted financial assets and tiabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the

year ended June 30, 2013:

Fair Value ,

Assets 6/30/2013 Levef 1 Level 2 Level 3
Certificates of deposit $ 2,889,736 $ 2,889,736 $ - $ -
Money market funds 1,829,215 1,929,215 - -
Mutual funds - - - -

Total » 4,818,951 $ 4,818,951 ] - 3 -

-9-
ATTACHMENT 27
157




WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012
(continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Unrestricted financial assets and [iabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the
year ended June 30, 2012:

Fair Value
Assets 6/30/2012 Level 1 Llevel2 - Level 3
Certificates of deposit $ 5,435454 $ 5435454 $ - § -
Money market funds 165,955 165,955 - -
Mutual funds 2,144 409 2,144 409 - -
Total $ 7.745818 $ 7,745818 $ - $ -

Restricted financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis during the
year ended June 30, 2012:

Fair Value
Assets 6/30/2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Certificates of deposit $ 4414471 $ 4,414,471 $ - % -
Money market funds 344,129 344,129 - -
Mutual funds - - - -
Total . $ 4758600 $ 4758600 § - 3 -

For the above noted certificates of deposit, money market funds, and mutual funds, the
Organization uses quoted prices in active markets for identical assets to determine their fair value.
Thus they are considered fo be Level 1 instruments. There was no change in this valuation
technigue during the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

There were no assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

ESCROW FUNDS - RESTRICTED

Escrow funds - restricted as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

2013 2012
Other assets $ 4,818,951 $ 4,758,600
Total escrow funds - restricted $ 4,818,951 $ 4,758,600

Escrow funds are only partially available for use in current operations because the Board of
Directors has restricted proceeds of life occupancy fees and membership fees for the purpose of
refunds of such fees. '
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Continued)

ESCROW FUNDS - RESTRICTED {continued)

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Organization had escrow funds - restricted as foflows:

2013 2012
PNC Bank - Certificates of deposit and money market funds
restricted by the Board of Directors. $ 4,559,115 $ 4,499,896
First State Bank - Money market account restricted by the
Board of Directors, 259,836 258,704
Total $ 4,818,951 $ 4,758,600

INVESTMENT INCOME

The following schedule summarizes the investment retum for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,

2013 2012
Interest income $ 322,061 3 316911
Net realized gain (loss) (16,254) 14,285
Net unrealized gain {loss) ) 146,509 {196,264)
Total $ 452316 $ 134,932

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Westminster Village maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in Bloomington, lllinais.
Accounts at each institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000.
As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Organization maintained cash at financial institutions which
exceeded the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance fimits and were uncollateralized
by $1,945,831 and $1,501,790 respectively. .

CONTINGENCIES

As a part of pricr transactions, State Farm Mutual Auto Insurance Company has been given the "right of
first refusal” to purchase any or all of the remaining real estate if the Board of Directors of Westminster
Village, Inc. decides to seil at any time prior to September 1, 2019.

-11-
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2013 and 2012
(Continued)

RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organization has an unqualified pension plan for management. This plan began during fiscal

. year ended June 30, 1994. The employer provides 100% funding for this plan with $48,000 and

$44,000 paid in the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Westminster Village, Inc. established a 401(k) savings plan effective January 1, 2001. Employees
who have worked 1,000 hours in the previous 12 months of service with Westminster and have
attained age 21 are eligible to participate. Eligible employees may make voluntary salary reduction
contributions to the plan. Westminster will match contributions to participant's accounts at the rate of
fifty cents for each dollar the ‘employee contributes up to @ maximum of six percent of each eligible
employee’s base salary. Westminster's contributions to the plan were $40,868 and $46, 571 for the
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES

Westminster Village, Inc. files a Form 9980 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax)
annually. There were no uncertain tax benefits identified and recorded as a liability as of June 30,
2013. Forms 990 filed by Westminster Village, Inc, are subject to examination by the Intemnal
Revenue Service {IRS), generally for three years after they are filed.

COMMITMENTS

On June 17, 2013, Westminster Village, Inc. entered into an agreement with Energy Systems Group,

" LLC for the installation of geothermal energy related upgrades to their facilittes at a cost of

$6,710,000 to be installed and paid for during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Westminster Village, Inc. has evaluated events occurring subsequent to June 30, 2013 as to their

potential impact to the financial statements through September 25, 2013, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

-12-
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CERTIFIED PUBLlC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

To the Board of Directors of
Westminster Viliage; inc.
Bloomington, lliinois

We have audited the financial statements of Westminster Village, Inc. as of and for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012, and have issued our. report thereon dated September 25, 2013, which contained an .
unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an
opinfon on the financial statements as a whole. The schedule of functional expenses is presented for the
purposes of additional analysis and [s not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or fo the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in' accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

ANetast s @hb 8-

Sulaski and Wehbb
Certified Public Accountants

September 25, 2013
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Board of Directars
Westminster Village, Inc.
2025 East Lincoin St.
Bloomington, IL 61701

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Westminster Village, inc. (the “Organization”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statement of
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial

statements. :
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of intemnal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of .the financiai statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficienf and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.
Main tel +1 314 862 2070 | Main fax +1 314 862 1549 | www.muellerprost.com MAKING A
St. Louis | 7733 Forsyth Bivd. | Suite 1200 | St. Louis | MO 1 63105 OUFERENTE FOR
St. Charles 1 2460 Executive Drive | St, Chardes | MO | 63303 A-]TACHMENT 27 :Z)AQ

Long Beach | 4541 East Anaheim Street | Long Beach | CA 1 90804
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Westminster Village, Inc. as of June 30, 2014, and the changes in its net assets and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of Westminster Village, Inc. as of June 30, 2013, were audited by other auditors
whose report dated September 25, 2013, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statéments.

Correction of Error
As described in Note 11 to the financial statements amounts reported for refundable occupancy fees and
deferred revenue from advance fees have been restated financial in the accompanying financial statements

as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and an adjustment has been made to unrestricted net assets as
of June 30, 2012, to correct the errors. Cur opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Mt frot L

December 18, 2014
St. Louis, Missouri Certified Public Accountants
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Curmrent Assets

WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable
Accrued inlerest receivable

Inventories

Prepaid insurance

Total Current Assels |

Property and Equipment, Net

Other Assets

Long-term invwestments

Escrow funds - board designated
Restricted cash ’

Debt issuance costs

Curmrent Liabilities

Total Other Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIE NET

Cumrent portion - tax-exempt bonds
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses:
Payroll taxes
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
. Real estate taxes

Interest

Security deposits
Billings in advance

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Refundable occupancy fees
Deferred revenue from cccupancy fees
Deferred revenue from advance fees
Tax-exempt bonds, less current portion

Net Assets

Total long-term liabilities

Unrestricted - board designated

Unrestricted

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

Total Net Assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

169

2014 2013
8,107,501 4,263,478
529,034 1,769.893
645,425 909,062
2,423 22,956
40,716 47.651
59,790 55,812
8,384,889 7,068,852
19,688,599 14,435,861
4,838,167 4,719,541
2,852,972 4,818,051
230,520 -
150,684 -
8,072,353 9,538,492
37,145,841 31,043,205
223,936 -
281,804 1,015,226
21,229 22,094
242,069 227,480
158,851 111,654
429,034 421,602
630 -
733,656 588,202
- 670,585
2,091,209 3,056,843
4,736,826 4,704,754
2,059,417 2,122,562
1,894,485 1,790,187
8,530,805 -
15,221,633 8,617,503
2,852,972 4,818,951
16,980,127 14,549,908
19,833,099 19,368,859
37,145,841 314,043,205
3
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Rewenue
Independent {iving fees and revenues $ 4,855,007 3 4,733,178
Eamed life occupancy and membership fees 573,663 455,251
Health center fees and revenues 5,100,137 4,839,887
Cottage fees and revenues 179,865 222,605
Assisted living fees and revenues - 2,009,220 1,862,777
Realized investment income ' 236,775 305,808
Unrealized investment income 344,180 - 146,508
Total Rewenue 13,298,847 12,566,014
Qperating Expenses
Independent living 4,828,370 4,607,019
Health center 5,110,639 4,728,659
Coltages 308,733 327,707
Assisted living 1,772,795 1,644,676
Management and general 814,070 597,653
Total Expenses 12,834,607 11,905,714
Net Change in Unrestricted Assets 464,240 660,300
Net Unrestricted Assets, Beginning of Year as Previously Stated 19,368,859 18,974,553
Prior Period Adjustments - {265,994)
Net Unrestricted Assets, Beginning of Year as Restated - 18,708,559
Net Unrestiicted Assets, End of Year as Restated $ 19,833,099 ¢ 19,368,859
The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements. ATTACHMENT 27 4
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Salaries

Employee benefils
Paymll taxes

Food costs

LAtilities

Tetephone

Insuranca

Qutside senices
Supplies

Repairs and maintenance
Interest -

Transportation

Uniforms

Laundry

Real estate taxes
Medical supplies
Marketing and advertising
Miscellaneous

Software and technology
Taxes and fees

401(k) expense

Total expenses before
depreciation

Depreciation

Total expenses

The notes to financial stalements are an integral part of these statements.

WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Indepondent Health Assistad Management

Living Canter Coftage Living and Genaral Total
1,428,471 § 2,466,686 § : - § 754,658 $ 664,261 § 5,314,096
127,595 278,932 240 87,694 70,639 565,100
118,535 203,194 - 60,401 54,592 435,722
441,238 265,821 - 177,555 - 884,614
482,114 56,144 480 106,967 5,011 650,716
18,630 2,451 - 3922 194 25,197
136,630 216,134 6,856 19,316 2,932 381,868
154,112 523,977 5,229 37,625 <. 720,943
164,886 92,341 - 46,873 2,520 306,620
600,160 108,438 96,927 112,980 - 918,505
40,876 - 8,752 17.597 - 67,225
~ 9,746 - 84 - 9,830
24,419 9,128 - 6,555 - 40,102
24,163 51,987 - 5,256 - 81,406
234,157 30,897 78,000 47,515 3,031 393,600
~ 79,629 - - - 79,629
71,478 35,499 9,409 18,955 - 135,341
101,648 - - 628 102,276

76,952 42,196 - 20,443

2,270 145,941 0 342 - 148,553
30,400 25,760 - 13,001 537 69,698
4,278,734 4,644,901 205,893 1,537,739 804,365 11,471,632
549,636 465,738 102,840 235,056 9,705 1,362,975
4,828,370 § 5110639 3 308,733 § 1,772,795 § 814,070 $ 12,834,607
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Independent Health Assisted Management
Living Center Cottage Living and General Total

Salaries ’ $ 1,354,080 2119681 § 12,798 § 788,218 $ 472,866 $ 4,747,653
Employee benefits 135,255 252,925 480 68,199 50,537 507,396
Payroll taxes 148,993 194,457 - 74,449 46,227 464,126
Food costs 421,009 240,532 - 171,791 - 833,332
Ahilities 475,302 60,611 523 103,215 4,964 644 615
Telephone 21,042 2,684 - 4,348 218 28,282
Insurance 136,900 207,576 5,578 21,892 2,886 374,832
Qutside sendces 170,932 535,943 5,900 47,828 - 760,603
Supplies 153,194 86,042 - 53,197 2,347 304,780
Repairs and maintenance 562,569 123,677 95,460 142,044 - 923,750
interest ) 10,281 - - 2,923 - 13,204
Transportation 1,34 7,336 - 144 - 8,814
Uniforms 14,114 2,995 - 4,021 - 21,130
Laundry 23,611 44 979 - 4,667 - 73,257
Employee relations 3,770 3720 - 1,352 - 8,842
Real estate taxes 252,263 33,079 78,000 52,046 3,223 418611
Medical supplies - 68,054 - - - 668,054
Marketing and adwerlising 70,272 38,506 23,352 33,063 - 165,193
Misceflaneous 0,936 5,448 ' . 1,578 760 98,722
Bad debt expense - 8g2 - - - 892
Taxes and fees 2,798 - 155,114 - - - 157,913
401(k) expense 16,467 12,348 - 7,982 4,071 40,868
Total expenses before

depreciation 4,065,133 4,206,595 222,091 1,582,957 588,099 10,664,879
Depreciation 541,886 522,060 105,616 61,719 8,554 1,240,835
Total expenses $ 4,607,019 § 4,728,659 § 327,707 § 1,644,676 697,663 § 11,905,714

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

172
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 464,240 3 660,300
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in
operating activities
Advance fees received 1,523,890 1,059,807
Depreciation and amortization 1,350,757 1,240,835
Amortization of debt issuance costs 12,218
Amortization of deferred revenue (479,002) (446,034)
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments
and escrow funds (580,955) (130,255)
Change in assets - {increase) decrease
Accounts receivable 263,637 136,536
Accrued interest 20,533 16,559
Inventories 6,935 {18,771)
Prepaid expense {3,978) 87
Change in liabilities - increase {decrease) _
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,189,570) 156,033
Total Adjustments 924,465 2.014,797
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,388,705 2,675,097
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investments and escrow funds (230,450) (3,069,871) |
Redemption of investments and escrow funds 3,669,097 4,396,158
Purchase of property and equipment {6,603,495) (597,228)
Net Cash (Used) Provided by Investing Activities {3,164,848) 729,059
Cash Flows from Financing Activties
Refunds of entrance fees (971,663) (272,538)
Borrowings on tax exempt bonds 6,820,641 -
Net principal payments on tax exempt bonds {65,900} -
Payments for debt issuance costs (162,912) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activties 5,620,166 (272,538)
Net Increase in Cash 3,844,023 3,131,618
Cash - Beginning of Year 4,263,478 1,131,860
Cash - End of Year $ 8,107,501 % 4,263,478

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of
these financial statements.

Nature of Operations

Westminster Village, Inc., {the ‘Ofganization') operates a residential retirement community and
health care center for senior citizens located in Bloomingten, lllinois. The Organization receives
revenue primarily fram service fees paid by residents and patients residing in its facilities.

The Organization is a non-profit corporation registered in the State of lllinois and is tax-exempt
under Section 501{(c){3) of the Intemal Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization has been
determined by the Intemal Revenue Service not to be a "private foundation” within the meaning of
Section 509(a) of the Intemnal Revenue Code.

Basis of Accounting

The financia! statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with accounting standards generaliy accepted in the United States of America.

Use of Estimétes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiltties at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk Arising from Cash Deposits in Excess of Insured Limits

The Organization maintains cash balances at financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (*FOIC") up to $250,000 per financial institution. At various
times during the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Organization's cash balance exceeded
the FDIC's threshold.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable amounts from residents, patients, third-party
payors, and other insurers for services provided.

Management has elected to record bad debts using the direct write-off method. Generally accepted
accounting principles require that the allowance method be used to reflect bad debts. However, the
effect of the use of the direct write-off method is not materially different from the results that would
have been obtained had the allowance method been followed. The Company recognized bad debt
expense of $0 and $892 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

ATTACHMENT 27
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) |

Investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are stated at fair rmarket
value. The Organization adopted an investment policy in December 2003. This policy is to invest
funds in conservative investments that protect principal, provide an income stream for operations
and to a lesser extent, provide some protection from inflation. Mutuat fund investments may not
exceed 30% of invested funds without approval of the Board. At June 30, 2014 and 2013, the total
investments include 29% and 22% mutual funds, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories consist of food and miscellaneous supply items and are stated at the lower of cost (first-
in, first-out methad) or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. The Organization's policy is to capitalize ali assets
costing over $600. The Organization believes that this capitalization amount accurately reflects a
significant cost given the nature of its assets. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed
using the straight-tine method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and improvements 540
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-31.5
Trucks and autos . 3-16

Maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are charged to operations and major
improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of property and
equipment, the cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and gain or

ioss is recognized.

Security Depgsits

The Organization offers potential residents two security deposit options, a standard waiting list
deposit ar a priarity waiting list deposit amounting to $500 and $3,000, respectively. Priority waiting
list deposits must be paid prior to acceptance of the new rental agreement, and the Organization
retains one month of rent for each unit. If the waiting list deposit exceeds one month of rent, the

difference is used to reduce the resident's first hill.

ATTACHMENT 27 ¢
175




WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of three sources of revenue:

(1) Life occupancy fees include non-refundable deposits from residents. The non-
refundable fees are amortized using the straight-line method over the life expectancy
of each resident. Unamortized fees not refunded to residents leaving their apariments
are included in operating revenue in the year the resident leaves.

{2) Non-refundable advance fees range from 10 to 20 percent of fees paid on cottage
lease contracts by residents and are amortized using the straight-line method over the
life expectancy of each resident. Unamortized fees on reoccupancy of the cottage are
included in revenue in the year of reoccupancy.

{3) Refundable advance fees range from 80 to 90 percent of fees paid on cottage lease
contracts by residents and are amortized using the straight-line method over the
remaining useful life of the coftage. The advance fees are refundable only if the
cottage is resold.

Billing in Advance

Billing in advance represents amounts that have been billed during the month for revenues to be
eamed during the following month. These amounts are recorded as Accounts Receivable and

Billings in Advance.

Debt Issuance Costs

Issuance costs associated with the tax exempt bonds are amortized using the straight-line method
over the life of the debt.

Financial Statement Presentation

The Organization follows the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board {("FASB"} in
regard to financial statements of not-for-profit Organizations; topic 958-210, Financial Statements
of Not-For-Profit Organizations. This provision requires the reporting total assets, liabilities and net
assets in a statement of financial position, and reporting the change in net assets in a statement of
activities. This provision also requires that net assets, revenue, expenses, gains and losses be
classified as unrestricted, temporanly restricted, or permanently restricted based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. .

ATTACHMENT 27 4,
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial Statement Presentation .(continued)

The financial statements report amounts by classification of net assets, as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets are assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Unrestricted Net Assets — Board Designated

The Board of Directors had designated net assets for a reserve fund to ensure future operations
in the amount of $2,852,972 and $4,818,951 at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
Board of Directors may change this designation by majority vote at any time.

Temporarnily Restricted Net Assets

Tempararnly restricted net assets are those received with donor stipulations that limit the use
of the donated assets or have time restrictions. When stipulated time restrictions expire or
purpose restrictions are accomplished, these net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
The Organization had no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2014 and 2013

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are those contributed with donar stipulations that they be
held in perpetuity with use of income for unrestricted or temporarily restricted purposes. The
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2014 and 2013

Revenug

Independent living, health center, cottage and assisted living fees and revenue are reported at the
estimable net realizable amounts from residents, patients, third-party payors, and other insurers for
services rendered.

Charity Care

The Organization provides services to residents who meet certain critena under life occupancy
contracts without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization
does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

Fundraising Expenses

The Organization did not incur any fundraising expenses for the years ended June 30, 2014 and
2013.

ATTACHMENT 27
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

fncome Tax Uncertainties

The accounting standard on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes addresses the determination
of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the
financial statements. Under that guidance, the Organization may recognize the tax benefit from an
uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on
examination by taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the position. Examples of tax
positions include the tax-exempt status of the Organization and various positions related to the
potential sources of unrelated business taxable income (*UBIT"). The tax benefits recognized in the
financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a
greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement. There were no
unrecognized tax benefits identified or recorded as assets or liabilities for the years ended June 30,

2014 and 2013.

The Organization's information returns are subject to examination by the IRS, generally for 3.years
after they were filed. Information returns filed for fiscal years prior to the year ended June 30, 2010
are no longer subject to examination,

NOTE 2

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Cash paid during the year for June 30:
2014 2013

Interest $ 100,685 " $ 13,204

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Crganization had $671,000 in construction in process
financed by accounts payable.

NOTE 3

INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments at June 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:

2014 2013

Money market accounts $ - $ 44,893
Certificates of deposit 529,034 1,725,000
Total $ 529034 5 1,769,893
Long-term investments at June 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:
2014 2013
Mutual funds $ 2,851,498 3 2,439,275
Certificates of deposit 1,986,668 2,280,266
Total £ 4,838,167 $ 4719541
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 4

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

*FASB Accounting Standards Codification 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures®
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used to measure fair value and enhances disclosure requirements for fair value
measurements. The standard maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of
unobservable inputs by requiring that the observable inputs be used when available. Observable
inputs are inputs that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market
data obtained from independent sources. Unobservable inputs refiect management's assumptions
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances. This hierarchy consists of three broad levels:

Level | — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
QOrganization has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Leve! Il = Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level ! inputs include: quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that
are not active; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
inputs that are derived principaily from or corroborated by observahble market data by correlation or
other means.

Level Il = Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability for which there is little, if any, market
activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. Uncbservable inputs reflect the
QOrganization's own assumptions about what market participants would use to price the asset or
liability. These inputs may include internally developed pricing models, discounted cash flow
methodologies, as well as instruments for which the fair value determination requires significant

management judgment.

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Crganization believes
its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

Following is a description of the valuation methodolegies used for assets measured at fair value.
There have been no changes in the methodologies used at June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Certificates of deposit and maney market funds: Valued at cost plus accrued interest which
approximates fair value.

Mutual funds: Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual funds held by
the Plan are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The mutual funds held by the Plan are deemed to be actively traded.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE4 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair values of assets and labilities measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2014, are as foliows:
Fair Value

Assets 6/30/2014 Level | Level || Level IH

Certificates of deposit $ 3,528,759 $ 3,528,759 § - % -

Money market funds 2,070,435 2,070,435 - -

Mutua! funds 2,851,499 2,851,499 - -

Total M ' %450.693 $ - $ -
Fair values of assets and liabilities measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2013, are as follows:
Fair Value

Assets 6/30/2013 Level | Level 1l Levet Il

Certificates of deposit $ 6,895,002 § 6895002 3 - 8 -

Money market funds 1,974,108 1,974,108 - -

Mutual funds 2439275 2435275 - -

Total $11308.385 $11,308,385 § - § -
NOTES PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30:
2014 2013

Land ) $ 1797784 $§ 1,747,881
Building and building improvements 33,343,350 26,485,635
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 8,336,605 7,969,729
Construction in progress - 671,000
Less. Accumulated depreciation (23,789,140} {22 438 384}

$19,688.599 § 14,436,861

Depreciation expense was $1,350,757 and $1,240,835 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and

2013, respectively.

Interest expense capitalized was $34,090 and $0 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,

respectively.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE6 LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following:

2014 2013

Tax-exempt bonds payable to Commerce
Bank, dated October 1, 2013, payable
in monthly instaliments of $38,440,
including principal and interest determined
by the note holder (2.98% at June 30, 2014),
scheduted to mature on November 1, 2033,
secured by the assets purchased with the

preceeds from the bond issue. 3 6,754,741 $ -
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (223,936) -

The bond interest rate is adjustable at the end of each ten-year period beginning on October 1,
2013, and will be determined based on a percentage of the applicable spread (1.80%) plus the 10-
year interest swap rate in effect on the date calculated.

Maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and in the aggregate are as follows:

June 30,
2015 $ 223,936
2016 270,211
2017 278,378
2018 286,795
2019 295,465
2020 and thereafter . 5,399,955
- 8,754,741
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (223,936)
$ 6,530,806
NOTE7 ESCROW FUNDS
Escrow funds as of consisted of the following as of June 30:
2014 2013
Escrow funds — board designated 3 2,852,972 5 4,818,951
Restricted cash 230,520 -
Tofal escrow funds $ 3083492 $ 4,818,951

Escrow funds are only partially available for use in current operations because the Board of
Directors has designated proceeds of life occupancy fees and membership fees for the purpose of
refunds of such fees.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 9

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Health Care

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations by federal, state, and local
govemments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such
as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation requirements,
reimbursement for resident services, and Medicare fraud and abuse. Recently, government activity
has increased with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible violations of fraud

-and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws and

regulations could result in expuision from govemment health care programs together with the
imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services

previously-billed.

Litigation

The Organization may be subject to asserted and unasserted claims encountered in the normal
course of business. The Organization’'s management and legal counsel assess such contingent
liabilities and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss
contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Organization or unasserted
claims that may result in such proceedings, the Organization's legal counsel evaluates the
perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of
the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. In the opinion of management,
disposition of these matters will not have a material effect on the Organization's financial condition
or resuits of operation.

Professional Liability Coverage

The Qrganization is insured for professional liability under an occurrence policy for a combined
occurrence and maximum annual aggregate of $3,000,000.

Risk Management

The Organization has obtained workers’ compensation insurance through Insurance Company of
the West, a private insurer. Warker's Compensation expense through coverage by this entity was
$300,762 and $269,512 for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Affordable Care Act

President Obama signed into law the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Heafth
Care and Education Tax Credits Reconciliation Act of 2010. Together, these two acts will affect the
health care system and will impact payments received by health care providers. The overall impact
to the Organization is not presently determinable.

Right of First Refusal

As a part of prior transactions, State Farm Mutual Auto Insurance Company has been given the
“right of first refusal” to purchase any or all of the remaining real estate if the Board of Directors of
Westminster Village, Inc. decides to sell at any time prior to September 1, 2019.

ATTACHMENT 27 17
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 10 RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organization has an unqualified pension plan for management. This plan began during fiscal
year ended June 30, 1994. The employer provides 100% funding for this plan with $48,000 and
paid in the year ended June 30, 2013. The plan was terminated during the year ended June 30,
2014.

Waestminster Village, Inc. established a 401(k) savings plan effective January 1, 2001. Employees
who have worked 1,000 hours in the previous 12 months of service with the Organization and have
attained age 21 are eligible to participate. Eligible employees may make voluntary salary reduction
contributions to the plan. During the year ended June 30, 2013, Westminster matched contributions
to participant accounts at a rate of 50% of employee contributions up to a maximum of six percent
of each eligible employee's base salary. Duning the year ended June 30, 2014, the plan was
converted to a Safe Harbor plan that matches 100% up to 3% and then 50% of the next 2%
contributed by employees. The QOrganization’s contributions to the plan were $69,698 and $40,868
paid in the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

RECLASSIFICATIONS AND RESTATEMENTS

NOTE 11

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation. Total assets, total liabilities, and net income were not affected.

The accompanying financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 have been restated to
correct the actuarial tables utilized in calculating deferred revenue from advance fees and a
recalculation of amortization on refundable occupancy fees. The restatement resulted in a $265,994
decrease in unrestricted net assets as of the beginning of the year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 12

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

¥

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the independent auditors
report, the date the financia! statements were available to be issued and did not note any items
requiring disclosure.
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il Mueller Prost
M CPAs +Business-Advisors

Board of Directors
Westminster Village, Inc.
2025 East Lincoln St.
Bloomington, IL 61701

INDEPENCENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Westminster Village, Inc. (the *Organization”) (a
nonprofit health care entity), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2015 and 2014,
and the related statement of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements -in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of interal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.
Advising with Vision® www.muellerprost.com
Phone 314,862.2070 | Fax 314.862.1549 | www muelermprost,com ————
St Louis | 7733 Forsyth Blvd. | Suite 1200 [ St Louis | MO | 63105 North
St. Charles | 2460 Executive Drive | SI, Charles | MO | 63303 ATTACHMENT 27 pKF Amerlca

Irvine | 2010 Main Strest | Suite 340 1 Irvine | CA | 92614 186 ey




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred {o above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Westminster Village, Inc. as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the changes in its net asseis and
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Mudin frece L

October 9, 2015
St. Louis, Missouri Certified Public Accountants
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JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $
- Short-term investments
Accounts receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Inventories
Prepaid insurance
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

Other Assets
. Long-term investments
Escrow funds - board designated
Assets whose use is limited
Debt issuance costs
Total Other Assets

Total Assets $
LJABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Current portion - tax-exempt bonds $
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses:
Payroll taxes
Salaries and wages
Employee henefits
Real estale taxes
Interest
Security deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Refundable occupancy fees
Deferred revenue from occupancy fees
Deferred revenue from advance fees
Tax-exempt bonds, less current portion
Total long-term liabilities

Net Assets
Unrestricted - board designated
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $

The noles to financial statements are an integral part of th8%e statements.

WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2015 2014
9,977,223 § 8,107,501
473,880 529,034
395,623 645,425
1,394 2,423
46,342 40,716
21,044 59,790
10,915,516 9,384,889
19,367,585 19,688,599
4,566,012 4,838,167
2,859,498 2,852,972
253,793 230,520
134,403 150,694
7,813,706 8072,353

38,096,807 $ 37,145,841

275400 $ 223,936
471,455 281,784
20,494 21,249
278,054 242,069
186,191 158,851
403,829 429,034
16,319 630
773,880 733,656
2,425,622 2,001,209
5,202,510 4,736,826
2,016,062 2,059,417
1,962,470 1,894,485
6,295,094 6,530,805
15,477,036 15,221,533
2,859,498 2,852,972
17,334,651 16,980,127
20,194 149 19,833,099

38,096,807 $ 37,145,841
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Operating Revenue
Independent living fees and revenues, net
Eamed life occupancy fees
Health center fees and revenues, net
Coftage fees and revenues, net
Assisted living fees and revenues, net
Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses
Independent living
Health center
Cotlages
Assisted living
. Management and general
Total Operating Expenses

Net Operating Revenues Over Operating Expenses
Other Income (Expense)
Realized investment income
Unrealized investment income (loss)
Other income
Total Other Income
Net Change in Unrestricted Assels

Net Unrestricted Assets, Beginning of Year

Net Unrestricted Assets, End of Year

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of th8st statements.

2015 2014

4,953,964 $ 4,855,007
487,864 573,792
5,686,064 5,099,613
209,509 180,138
2,096,030 2,009,471
13,433,431 12,718,021
4,961,018 " 4,918,533
5,645,774 5,187,017
280,605 300,088
1,646,850 1,591,979
837,098 837,139
13,371,345 12,834,738
62,086 (116,715)
215,710 236,775
{44,944) 344,180
128,198 -
298,984 580,955
361,050 464,240
19,833,099 19,368,859
20,194,149 § 19,833,099
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Salaries & wages
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
401{k} expense
Training and education
Quiside services
Uniforms

Laundry

Software and technology
Food costs

UWtilities

Marketing

Insurance

Taxes and license fees
Repair and maintenance
Professional servicas
Real eslate taxes
Supplies

Medical supplies
Telephone and cable
Inlerest expense
Miscellaneous

Tatal expenses befare
depreciation

Depreciation Expense

Total expenses

WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 230, 201§
Independent Health Assisted Managemoent
Living Gentar Cottage Living and Geneml Total
$ 1434781 § 2579976 § - % 733,956 § 680,442 $ 5,409,155
104,872 164,406 - 52,122 48,872 400,272
158,850 201,039 - 86,207 74,559 610,655
35,141 8,477 - 15,358 12,375 101,352
16,286 8,729 - 5.882 4,297 35,194
148,148 678,172 214 29,018 - §55,553
17,972 4,538 - 4,277 - 26,787
16,819 60,739 - 3,887 - 81,445
85,505 46,950 - 20,944 1,534 154,973
395,741 279,451 - 178,594 - 853,756
402,249 42,005 405 102,307 5,469 552,435
72,657 29,257 9,578 20,258 - 131,750
171,780 247,957 3411 55,949 4,787 483,584
1,508 182,519 - 351 - 184,378
483,868 61,217 73,880 85,816 - 734,761
79,307 57,054 4,267 18,942 159,570
206,233 28,251 78,000 48,027 3,605 364,118
117,648 78,214 - 44 .41 2,403 242,695
- 94,869 - - - 94,869
45,973 6,908 - 11,530 684 69,095
156,027 19,866 - 34,790 2,111 212,794
42,936 11.090 - 1,883 559 56,468
4,198,272 5,071,724 168,435 1,554,530 821,697 11,815,658
762,746 574,050 111,170 92,320 15401 1,555,687
$§ 4961018 § 5645774 § 280,605 $ 1,646,850 § 837,098 § 13,371,345
i
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Salaries & wages
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
401(k) expense
Training and education
Oulside services
Uniforms

Laundry

Software and technology
Food costs

Utilities

Marketing'

Insurance

Taxes and license fees
Repair and maintanance
Professional services
Real estate laxes’
Supplies

Medical supplies
Telephone and cable
Interest expense
Miscellaneous

Total expénses before
depreciation

Depreciation Expense

Total expenses

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of ke statements.

WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Independent Hoalth Assisted Management
__Living Cenmter ottage .__Living and General _ Total _
$ 1435463 $ 2,466,462 3 - 3 747890 § 564,281 $ 5,314,096
119,081 203,195 - 59,854 54,592 436,722
128,302 278,931 240 86,987 70,640 565,100
24,437 24 943 - 11,608 8,712 69,698
18,180 12,612 - 8,091 5,556 44,449
140,724 811,366 129 24,0897 - 677,216
24,419 9,128 - 6,555 - 44,102
24,163 - §1,987 - 5,256 - 81,406
75,943 42,058 - 20,208 1,382 139,591
441,238 265,821 - 177,555 - 884,614
448,749 50,778 480 98,889 5,988 604,881
76,751 35,499 9,409 19,790 - 141,449
136,725 223,308 6,856 11,198 3,780 381,867
2,270 145,941 - 342 - 148,553
599 840 108,475 87,014 113,039 - 18,368
63,929 22,530 5,100 13,877 - 105,536
233,555 30,810 78,000 47,338 3,897 393,600
130,448 139,851 - 48 548 3,189 322,138
- 37,842 - - - 37,942
51,969 7,325 - 11,034 703 71.041
40,647 8,685 - 17,484 667 67,483
25,662 - - - 259 25,021
4,242,505 4,677,744 197,228 1,530,638 823,646 11,471,761
676,028 508,273 102,840 61,341 13,483 1,362,975
$ 4918533 ¢ 5,187,017 § 300,068 & 1,591,979 & 837,139 $ 12,834,736
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Change in net assets $

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in
operating activities

Advance fees received

Depreciation and amertization

Amortization of debt issuance costs

Amortization of deferred revenue

Net realized and unrealized gain on investments

and escrow funds

Change in assets - (increase) decrease
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest
inventories
Prepaid expense

Change in liabilities - increase {decrease)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investments and escrow funds
Redemption of investments and escrow funds
Purchase of property and equipment
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Refunds of entrance fees
Barrowings on tax exempt bonds
Principal payments on tax exempt bonds
Payments for debt issuance costs
' Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash

Cash - Beginning of Year

Cash - End of Year $

The notes to financial statements are an infegraf part ofitbese statements.

2015 2014
361,050 $ 464,240
1,899,640 1,523,880
1,655,687 1,362,975
16,291 12,218
(482,510) (479,002)
(170,766) (580,955)
249,792 263,637
1,029 20,533
(5,626) 6,935
38,746 (3,978)
282,949 {1,189,570)
3,386,232 936,683
3,746,282 1,400,923
- (230,450)
468,276 3,669,097
(1,234,673) (6,615,713)
(766,397) ~(3,177,066)
(926,816) (971,663) -
62,073 6,820,641
(245,420) (65,900)
- (162,912)
{1,110,163) 5,620,166
1,869,722 3,844,023
8,107,501 4,263,478
9,977,223 § 8,107,501
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

" The following is a summary of certain significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of

these financial statements.

Nature of Operations

Westminster Village, Inc., {the “Organization”) operates a residential retirement community and
health care center for senior citizens located in Bloomington, lliinois. The QOrganization receives
revenue primarily from -service fees paid by residents and patients residing in its facilities.

The Organization is a non-profit corporation registered in the State of lllincis and is tax-exempt
under Section 501(c)(3) of the Intemat Revenue Code. In addition, the Organization has been
determined by the Intemnal Revenue Service not to be a “private foundation™ within the meaning of
Section 509(a) of the Intemal Revenue Code. '

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Concentrations of Credit Risk Arising from Cash Deposits in Excess of Insured Limits

The Organization maintains cash balances at financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (*FDIC") up to $250,000 per financial institution. At various
times during the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Organization's cash balance exceeded

the FDIC's threshold.
Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at net realizable amounts from residents, patients, third-party
payors, and other insurers for services provided.

Accounts receivable are stated as the amounts billed to or on behalf of residents. The Organization
provides an aliowance, which is based upon a review of outstanding receivables, historical collection
information, and existing economic conditions. The allowance was $296,000 and $0 at June 30,

2015 and 2014,
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

investments

Investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values are stated at fair market
value. The Qrganization adopted an investment policy in December 2003. This policy is to invest
funds in conservative investments that protect principal, provide an income stream for operations
and to a lesser extent, provide some protection from inflation. Mutual fund investments may not
exceed 30% of invested funds without approval of the Board, At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the total
investments include 28% and 29% mutual funds, respectively.

Inventories

inventories consist of food and miscellaneous supply items and are stated at the lower of cost (first-
in, first-out method) or market.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are carried at cost. The Organization's policy is to capitalize all assets
costing over $600. The Organization believes that this capitalization amount accurately reflects a
significant cost given the nature of its assets. Depreciation of property and equipment is computed
using the straight-fine method over the following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings and improvements 5-40
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-31.5
Trucks and autos 3-15

Maintenance and repairs of property and equipment are charged to operations and major
improvements are capitalized. Upon retirement, sale or other disposition of property and
equipment, the cast and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and gain or

loss is recognized.

Security Deposits

The Organization offers potential residents two security deposit options, a standard waiting list
deposit or a priotity waiting list deposit amounting to $500 and $3,000, respectively. Priority waiting
list deposits must be paid prior to acceptance of the new rental agreement, and the Qrganization
retains one month of rent for each unit. If the waiting list deposit exceeds one month of rent, the
difference is used to reduce the resident's first bill.

ATTACHMENT 27 9
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue consists of three sources of revenue:

(1) Life occupancy fees include non-refundable deposits from residents. The non-
refundable fees are amortized using the straight-line method over the life expectancy
of each resident. Unamonrtized fees not refunded to residents leaving their apariments
are included in operating revenue in the year the resident leaves.

{2) Non-refundable advance fees range from 10 to 20 percent of fees paid on cottage
lease contracts by residents and are amortized using the straight-lineé method over the
life expectancy of each resident. Unamortized fees on reoccupancy of the cottage are
included in revenue in the year of reoccupancy.

(3) Refundable advance fees range from 80 to 90 percent of fees paid on cottage lease
contracts by residents and are amortized using the straight-line method over the
remaining usefui life of the coftage. The advance fees are refundable only if the

cottage is resold.

Debt Issuance Costs

Issuance costs associated with the tax exempt bonds are amortized using the straight-line method
over the life of the debt. .

Financlal Statement Presentation

The Organization follows the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board {(*FASB”) in
regard to financial statements of not-for-profit Organizations; topic 958-210, Financial Statements
of Not-For-Profit Organizations. This provision requires the reporting tofal assets, liabilities and net
assets in a statement of financial position, and reporting the change in net assets in a statement of
activities. This provision also requires that net assets, revenue, expenses, gains and losses be
classified as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

The financial statements report amounts by classification of net assets, as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted net assets are assets that are not subject fo donor-imposed restrictions.

Unrestn'ctgd Net Assets — Board Designated

The Board of Directors had designated net assets for a reserve fund to ensure future operations
in the amount of $2,882,425 and $2,852,972 at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
Board of Directors may change this designation by majority vote at any time.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those received with donor stipulations that [imit the use
of the donated assets or have time restrictions. When stipulated time restrictions expire or
purpose restrictions are accomplished, these net assefs are reclassified to unrestricted net
assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
The Organization had no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2015 and 2014

Pemmanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanentiy restricted net assets are those contributed with donor stipulations that they be
held in perpetuity with use of income for unrestricted or temporarily restricted purposes. The
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2015 and 2014

Revenue

- Independent living, health center, cottage and assisted living fees and revenue are reported at the

estimable net realizable amounts from residents, patients, third-party payors, and other insurers for
services rendered. Confractual adjustments to net revenue was approximately $700,000 and
$700,000 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Non Operational Revenue and Expenses

Contributions typically classified as one time gifts to savings or endowment that are not part of the
annual operational plan is deemed non-operational revenue. Secondly, investment revenue either
realized or unrealized in is also non-operational revenue. All other revenue is deemed to be
operational revenue for reporting purposes. Expenses for special projects that are not part of the
operational developmerit plan are deemed non-operational expenses.

Charity Care

The Organization provides services to residents who meet certain criteria under life occupancy
contracts without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization
does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fundraising Expenses
The Organization did not incur any fundraising expenses for the years eﬁded June 30, 2015 and
2014.
Income Tax Uncertainties
The accounting standard on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes addresses the determination
of whether tax benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on a tax return should be recorded in the
financial statements. Under that guidance, the Organization may recognize the tax benefit from an
uncerlain tax position only if it is more fikely than not that the tax position will be sustained on
examination-by taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the pesition. Examples of tax
positions include the tax-exempt status of the Organization and various positions related to the
potential sources of unrelated business taxable income ("UBIT"}. The tax benefits recognized in the
financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a
greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upenh ultimate seftlement. There were no
unrecognized tax benefits identified or recorded as assets or liabilities for the years ended June 30,
2015 and 2014.
The Organization's information retumns are subject to examination by the IRS, generaliy for 3 years
after they were filed. Information returns filed for fiscal years prior to the year ended June 30, 2012
are no longer subject to examination.

NOTE2 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Cash paid during the year for June 30:

2015 2014

interest $ 197,105 3 100,943

NOTE 3 INVESTMENTS

Short-term investments at June 30, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:

2015 2014

Certificates of deposit $ 473,880 $ 529,034
Total § 473880 § 520034
Long-term investments at June 30, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:
_ 2015 2014
Mutual funds $ 2,787,097 $ 2,851,499
Certificates of deposit 1,778,915 _ 1,986 668
Total $ 4,566,012 $ 4,838,167
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE4 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair values of assefs and liabilities measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Fair Value

Assels 6/30/2015 Level | Level Hl Level Il

Certificates of deposit $ 3,035,245 § 3035245 § - 3 -

Money market funds 2,330,841 2,330,841 - -

Mutual funds 2,787,097 2,787,097 - -

Total $8153483 §8153,183 § _ : & -
Fair values of assets and liahilities measured on a recurring basis at June 30, 2014, are as follows:
Fair Value .

Assels 6/30/2014 Level | Level li Level 11

Certificates of deposit $ 3,628,759 § 3528759 § - 3 -

Money market funds 2,070,435 2,070,435 - -

Mutual funds 2,851,499 2,851,499 - -

Total $8450693 §$8450693 § - & -
NOTES5 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consist of the following at June 30:
. ' 2015 2014

Land and land improvements $ 1553020 $ 1,797,734
Building and building improvements 32,836,836 33,343,350
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 5,043,208 8,336,605
Construction in progress 34,747 -
Less: Accumulated depreciation (20.100,226) (23,789,140}

$19367,585 § 19.688.509

Depreciation expense was $1,555687 and $1,362,975 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively.

Interest expense capitalized was $0 and $34,090 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE6 LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt as of June 30, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:
2015 2014
Tax-exempt bonds payable to Commerce
Bank, dated October 1, 2013, payable
in monthly instaliments of $38,440,
including principa! and interest determined
by the note holder (2.98% at June 30, 2015
and 2014), scheduled to mature on November
1, 2033, secured by the assets purchased with
The proceeds from the bond issue. 3 6,571,394 3 6,754,741
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (275,400) (223 936}
Total $§_ 6295994  § _ 6530805
The bond interest rate is adjustable at the end of each ten-year period beginning on October f,
2013, and will be determined based on a percentage of the applicable spread {1.80%) plus the 10-
year interest swap rate in effect on the date caiculated. .
Maturities of long-term debt over the next five years and in the aggregate are as follows:
June 30
2016 $ 275,400
2017 284,400
2018 292,800
2019 301,800
2020 ' 310,800
2021 and thereafter 5,106,194
- 6,571,394
Less: Current portion of long-term debt (275.400)
' $__ 6,206,994
NOTE7 ESCROW FUNDS
Escrow funds as of consisted of the following as of June 30:
2015 2014
Escrow funds —~ board designated $ 2,858,498 $ 2,852,972
Assets whose use is limited - 253,793 _ 230,520
Total escrow funds $ 311329 $ 3,083,492

Escrow funds are only partially available for use in current operations because the Board of
Directors has designated proceeds of life occupancy fees and membership fees for the purpose of
refunds of such fees. The assets whose use is limited is restricted in compliance with the lllinois
Life Care Facilities Act.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE7 ESCROW FUNDS (CONTINUED)

The assets whose use is limited is a separate account containing the aggregate of six months of
principal and interest payments in accordance with the Illinois Life Care Facilities Act for bonds
issued October 1, 2013.

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Organization had cash reserves — escrow funds as follows:

2015 2014

PNC Bank - Certificates of deposit and
Money market funds designated by the

Board of Directors $ 2,597,954 $ 2,692,258
First State Bank — Money market account

designated by the Board of Directors 261,544 260,714

Total $__ 2859498 $ 2852972

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014, the Organization had assets whose use is limited as follows:

2018 2014

First State Bank — Money market funds

restricted by the Life Care Facilities Act 3 230,866 3 230,520
Unemployment Services Trust 22927 -
Total $ 253793  $ 230,520

NOTE 8 INVESTMENT INCOME

The following schedule summarizes the investment retumn for the years ended June 30, 2015 and

2014:
2015 2014
interest income 3 126,144 5 234 642
Net realized gain (loss) 89,566 2,133
Net unrealized gain (loss) {44 944) 344,180
Total $ 170766  § 580,955
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 9

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Heaith Care

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations by federal, state, and local
govermments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such
as licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation requirements,
reimbursement for resident services, and Medicare fraud and abuse. Recently, govemment activity
has increased with respect to investigations and allegations conceming possible violations of fraud
and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers. Violations of these laws and
regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the
imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services
previously billed.

Litigation

The Organization may be subject o asserted and unasserted claims encountered in the normal
course of business. The Organization’s management and legal counsel assess such contingent
liabilities and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss
contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Organization or unasserted
claims that may result in such proceedings, the Organization’s legal counsel evaluates the
perceived merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of
the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. In the opinion of management,
disposition of these matters will not have a material effect on the Qrganization's financial condition

or results of operation.

Professional Liability Coverage

The Qrganization is insured for professional liability under an occurrence policy for a combined
occurrence and maximum annual aggregate of $3,000,000.

Risk Management

The Organization has obtained workers’ compensation insurance through Insurance Company of
the West, a private insurer. Worker's Compensation expense through coverage by this entity was
$337.005 and $300,762 for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Affordable Care Act

President Obama signed into law the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Heailth
Care and Education Tax Credits Reconciliation Act of 2010. Together, these two acts will affect the
health care system and will impact payments received by health care providers. The overall impact
to the Organization is not presently determinable.

Right of First Refusal

As a part of prior transactions, State Farm Mutual Auto Insurance Company has been given the
“right of first refusal” to purchase any or all of the remaining real estate if the Board of Directors of
Westminster Village, Inc. decides to sell at any time prior to September 1, 2019.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 10

RETIREMENT PLANS

The Organizafion has an ungualified pension plan for management. This plan began during fiscal
year ended June 30, 1994. The employer provides 100% funding for this plan with $48,000 and
paid in the year ended June 30, 2013, The plan was terminated during the year ended June 30,

2014.

Westminster Village, Inc. established a 401(k) savings plan effective January 1, 2001. Employees
who have attained age 21 are eligible to participate after 90 days. Eligible employees may make
voluntary salary reduction contributions to the plan. During the year ended June 30, 2013,
Westminster matched contributions to participant accounts at a rate of 50% of employee
contributions up to a maximum of six percent of each eligible employee’s base salary. During the
year ended June 30, 2014, the plan was converted to a Safe Harbor plan that matches 100% up to
3% and then 50% of the next 2% contributed by employees. The Organization's contributions to the
plan were $101,352 and $69,698 paid in the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

NOTE 11

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation. Total assets, total liabilities, and net income were not affected.

NOTE 12

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date of the independent auditors’
report, the date the financial statements were available to be issued and did not note any items

requiring disciosure.
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B Mueller Prost
CPPAs + Business Advisors

October 13, 2015

Ms. Barbara Nathan
Westminster Village, Inc.
2025 East Lincoln St.
Bloomington, IL 61701

Dear Barbara:

Enclosed are 16 copies (15 bound and 1 unbound) of Wesiminster Village, Inc.’s financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2015. We've also included a CD wilh an electronic copy of the financial statements.

We thank you for the opportunity'to provide this service to you. If you have any questions or we can provide
additional services, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,

Mueller Prast LC

e bl

Jeanette Bax-Kurtz, CPA

JBK:bdj
Enclosures
18665000
Advising with Vision® www.muellerprost.com
Phone 314.862.2070 | i.:ax 314.862.1548 | www.muelierprast.com ——
S1. Louis | 7733 Forsyth Blvd. | Suite 1200 | St. Louis | MO | 63105 ATTACHMENT 27 Horth
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5t Chardes | 2460 Executive Drive | St. Charles | MO | 63303
Irvina | 2010 Main Street ! Suite 340 | Irvine | CA | 92614 203 0 Masesintn of Ity gt e




Section V, Financial and Economic Feasibility Review

Attachment 29

Section 1125.800, Estimated Total Project Cost Financial Viability

Financial Viability Standards

Stabilization
Ratio and Inputs FY2013 FY2014 Fy2015 FY2016 Fy2021
1) Current Ratio ‘
$ S s $ ]
Current Assets 7,068,852 9,384,889 10,915,516 7,794,464 7,004,604
$ 5 s $ $
Current Liahilities 3,056,843 2,091,209 2,425,622 2,660,822 4,139,787
Current Ratio* 23 4.5 4.5 2.9 1.7
State Standard 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
2} Net Margin Percentage
s 5 S $ S
Net Income {Loss} 660,300 464,240 361,050 631,383 (861,582)
Depreciation & S $ 5 $ $
Amortization 1,240,835 1,362,975 1,555,687 1,626,652 3,082,931
Net Income from s S 5 $ s
Operations 1,901,135 1,827,215 1,916,737 2,308,035 2,221,349
$ $ 5 $ $
Net Operating Revenue 12,113,698 12,718,021 13,425,057 14,160,511 20,167,411
Net Margin Percentage* 15.7% 14.4% 14.3% 16.3% 11.0%
State Standard 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
3) Long-Term Debt to
Capitalization
$ S S $ $
Long-Term Debt - 6,754,741 6,571,394 6,295,994 35,157,164
Long-Term Debt + Net S S s $ $
Assets 19,368,859 26,587,840 26,765,543 27,171,526 52,317,858
Long-Term Debt to
Capitalization* 0.0% 25.4% 24.6% 23.2% 67.2%
State Standard 80.0% 80.0% 80.0% 80.0% 80.0%
ATTACHMENT 29
204

113685346.9




l
4) Projected Debt Service
Coverage
| $ $ $ $ $
Net Income {Loss) 660,300 464,240 361,050 681,383 (861,582)
Depreciation & S S S S S
Amortization 1,240,835 1,362,975 1,555,687 1,626,652 3,082,931
$ $ 5 3 5
interest Expense 13,204 67,483 212,793 202,754 1,159,652
Net Income plus s $ $ $ $
Depr & Interest = 1,914,339 1,894,698 2,129,530 2,510,789 3,381,001 -
: $ $ $ $ $
Principal Payments - 65,900 245,420 275,400 981,023
5 $ $ 5 $
Interest Expense 13,204 67,483 212,793 202,754 1,159,652
Debt Payments (P&1) | $ s S 5 $
= 13,204 133,383 458,213 478,154 2,140,675
Debt Service Coverage* 145.0 14.2 4.6 5.3 16
State Standard 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5
5) Days Cash on Hand :
$ $ $ $ $
Cash 4,263,478 8,107,501 9,977,223 6,659,387 5,747,114
$ $ $ ] $
Unrestricted Investments | 11,308,385 8,220,173 7,899,390 9,568,775 13,775,129
- $ $ $ $ $
Cash + Investments = | 15,571,863 16,327,674 17,876,613 16,228,162 19,522,243
Operating Expenses S ) $ S $
{exclude dep) 10,664,879 11,471,761 11,777,442 12,378,625 18,147,596
Days in Year 365 365 365 366 - 365
Operating Exp/ Days | $ $ $ s $
in Year = 29,219 31,429 32,267 33,821 49,719
Days Cash on Hand* 532.9 $19.5 554.0 479.8 392.6
State Standard 45.0 45,0 45,0 45.0 45.0
6) Cushion Ratio
S $ s 5 $
Cash + Investments 15,571,863 16,327,674 17,876,613 16,228,162 19,522,243
- $ $ $ 5 $
Debt Payments (P& !) 13,204 133,383 458,213 478,154 2,140,675
ATTACHMENT 29
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Cushion Ratio* 1,179.3 122.4 39.0 339 9.1
State Standard 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
‘Meéfs State Standard
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Section V, Financial and Economic Feasibility Review

Attachment 30

Section 1125.800, Estimated Total Project Cost

Economic Feasibility

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements
- Attached is a letter from Wesiminster’s CEQ attesting to reasonableness of the financing
arrangements, including that a portion or all of the cash and equivalents will be retained in the

balance sheet asset accounts in order to maintain a current ratio of at least 1.5 times for LTC

facilities.

B. <Conditions of Debt Financing

Attached is a letter from Westminster’s CEO attesting to the fact that the conditions of
debt financing are reasonable, including that borrowing is less costly than the liquidation of _

existing investments and that existing investments retained may be converted to cash or used to

retire debt within 60 days.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

In calculating the Project we acknowledge two line items exceed state standards. Both
the construction, new and modernization, line item and the equipment line item are above the
state standard. We have worked with our architect and our contractors to analyze the factors

relating to these Project costs. Attached are letters explaining the cost factors associated with

this Project.

The Project has been carefully planned and we expect Project costs to be realistic and
will not necessitate a subsequent permit alteration. The costs included in this application are the
result of working with our architect and contractor in estimating actual costs. To control costs
we will be entering into a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) contract with our contractor.
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Included with this Attachment is a detailed analysis from the architect and contractor addressing

those factors that affected costs resulting in amounts above the state standards.

113685346.9

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY SERVICE
_ A B c D E F G H
Ar'ea TOTAL Cost
(list Cost/Square Foot Gross 5q. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. $ Mod. $
{G+H)
below)
New Mod New Circ.* Mod Circ.* {Ax C} {BxE)
; 254 151 31,599 15% | 18,987 10% | 8,035,461 2,864,670 10,504,132
Continge
ncy 22 22 31,599 18,987 681,354 409,408 1,090,762
TOTALS - 276 172 0 0 8,720,815 3,274,078 11,994,894
L‘"include the percentage(%) of space for circulation
COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY SERVICE
A A B c D e | ¢ |
rea TOTAL Cost
{list Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross 5q. Ft. Const. $ Mod. § (G +H)
below) New Mod New  Circ* | Mod  Circ* AxCQ) (BXE)
JCiimca | 237 108 10,951 43% | 9,605 20% | 2,591,188 | 1,034,973 | 3,626,161
Continge ’
ney 21 14 10,951 9,605 226,294 135,974 362,268
TOTALS 257 122 0 0 2,817,482 1,170,947 3,988,429
*include the percentage(%] of space for circulation
COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY SERVICE
A A B C D E | °F G H
rea TOTAL Cost
{list Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross Sq. Ft. Const. § Mod. $ (G + H)
below) New Mod New Circ.* Mod Circ.* {AxC) (B xE)
jCombin
d 250 136 42,550 18% | 28,592 18% | 10,630,650 3,899,643 14,530,293
Continge
ncy 21 19 42,550 28,592 907,648 545,382 1,453,029
TOTALS 271 155 0 0 11,538,298 4,445,025 15,983,323
*include the percentage(%) of space for circulation
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D. Pro

jected Operating Costs

The projected direct annual operating costs is attached.

E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

113685346.9

The projected direct annual operating costs is attached.
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WESTMINSTER VILLAGE - MARTIN HEALTH CENTER
Operating Pro Forma

Fiscal Year 2021
Martin Health Center

Operating Expenses

Dining Services $ 664,181
Nursing Expenses
Wages & Benefits 3,319,115
Other Expenses ' 1,338,342
Maintenance and Security 376,557
Utilities 133,664
General & Administrative 1,887,874
Operaling Expenses 7,719,733
Depreciation, Interest & Taxes (Capital Costs)
Depreciation & amortization 582,829
Interest : 679,196
Operating Contingency - New Nursing Unit 196,875
Total Capital Costs , 1,458,900
Patient Days for Martin Health Center 32,587
Operating Cost Per Patient Day $ 236.89
Capital Cost Per Patient Day $ 44.77
210 |
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Eventus

Strategic Partners
Resutts & Experience in Senior Uving

December 15, 2016

Ms. Barbara Nathan
Executive Director
Westminster Village
2025 East Lincoln Street
Bloomington, IL 61704

Dear Ms. Nathan:

in development of the Project Budget for the new addition and the modernization of the existing Martin
Healthcare Center (MHC), working with PRDG, the Architect, PJ Hoerr, the Construction Manager,
and KDI, the Interior Designer, we have looked at the factors that have caused an overrun in the cost
of Movable and Other Equipment Cost as defined by the State for the purpose of the CON application.

The modernization of MHC includes Movable and Other Equipment Cost to replace the majority of
the existing equipment due to its age and condition with equipment that is more fitting for today’s
skilled care needs. These improvements have longer life spans, have lower operating cost including
the use of energy efficient LED supplemental lighting. The new addition also incorporates the same
equipment and furnishings that have the same aftributes. The increase in cost is approximately
$513,000. The State’s standard is $7,983 per bed. The cost without the increase cost of the added
equipment and furnishing cost would equal $7,476 per bed.

Slncerely yours ?

Danlel J. Collms AlA
Associate
Eventus Strategic Partners, LLC

1600 Market Street, Suite 1702 | Philadelphia, PA 19102 | Te! 215.253.7200 | Fax 215.568.6525 | EVENTUS-PARTNERS.COM
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Okventus

Strategic Partners

Results & Experience In Sanor Living -

December 14, 2016

Ms. Barbara Nathan
Executive Director
Westminster Village
2025 East Lincoln Street
Bloomington, IL 61704

Dear Ms. Nathan:

In development of the Project Budget for the new addition and the modernization of the existing Martin
Healthcare Center {(MHC), working with PRDG, the Architect, and PJ Hoerr, the Construction
Manager, we have looked at many factors that create additional cost for the project that are not typicaf
or normal in a basic renovation or addition. Below is a list of these factors that are contributing to the
cost increase above what is allowed by the state regulations.

Best Practices: The project incorporate several best practices for today skilled nursing facilities.

Neighborhood Model: Both the new addition and renovations are designed using a
neighborhood model. The neighborhood model is the new standard for skilled senior care in
the industry nationally. The neighborhood model provides small groupings of residents, in
this case 12 per neighborhood in the new addition and no more than 24 in the modernization:
accordingly. Each neighborhood has identical amenities such as a country kitchen, dining,
living and pantries and activity areas, along with Nursing support spaces for each
neighborhood. ,

Private Rooms: Both the new addition and renovations are designed to create private rooms
for 82 of the 98 beds. This is also the new standard in senior skilled care and one that is
valued greatly by the residents of Westminster Village.

Private Baths: The bedrooms are each designed with a full bath. This allows the residents
to be assisted in bathing in the comfort and privacy of their room. Because of this privacy it
is recognized as a best practice for the well-being of the resident.

The items above are practiced widely in the industry because they provide homelike amenities to
seniors that have been displaced due to health reasons from their home. They also provide
privacy and protects the senior’s dignity while they are at their most frail. This level of privacy
along with social activities outside of their rooms, bathing privately and a high standard of
nursing care greatly improves the quality of life, their recovery time and in some cases their end
of life experience.

The costs associated with these Best Practices are $28/SF for the addition and $13/SF for
rnodernization of MHC.

1600 Market Street, Suite 1702 | Philadelphia, PA 19102 | Tel 215.253.7200 | Fax 215.568.6525 | EVENTUS-PARTNERS.COM
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Ms. Barbara Nathan
December 14, 2016
Page 2 of 4

Infrastructure Improvements: The’new addition requires several modifications to existing
infrastructure to service the addition and the modernized MHC.

A new emergency generator is required. The existing generator is sized for the current MCH
but will not provide enough generation for the new addition. Given the site and space
constraints a new 300 KWH generator is required rather than a second generator on site
with its own switchgear room.

The project requires the rerouting of several utilities that are currently serving the MHC. All
these utilities enter the existing MHC in the only available space for a new addition thus
requiring rerouting.

Similarty the current transformer for MHC is located in the same space requiring a new
transformer to be placed in a different location on site. This work is to be performed by the
utility company and PJ Hoerr.

The project will require the relocation of existing condensing units that serve MHC to
maintain operation of systems during expansion. This work woutld not be required if it was
not for the addition.

The existing MHC renovations will require upgrades to normalily functioning HVAC systems.
These systems are old and do not perform to current energy standards.

In addition to the upgraded HVAC systems, the project will use more efficient systems:
throughout to improve energy consumption and the life of the equipment. Also proposed is
the shedding of the load on the current geothermal systems on campus to allow the future
Assisted Living building to operate off of the geothermal system.

The proposed project also incorporates the use of LED lighting that improves operational
cost, and is another sustainable initiative that is proposed for the project. :

The costs associated with the Infrastructure improvements are $16/SF for the addition and
$2/SF for modernization of MHC.

Site Considerations: Various cost associated with the site constraints and demolition required to join

the new addition and modernization of the MHC are impacting normal cost.

The new addition is located on the only available site adjacent to the MHC without major
disruption to the campus. The site is bound by service roads to the north and east and the
existing MHC to the south and east. Because the available land is too small for a one story
structure that is more in keeping with the current one story MHC, it requires the project to be
built as a two story structure along with structural requirements, added vertical transportation
such as stairs and elevators as well as code related construction methods and means.

A small portion of the existing MHC has to be demolished to make room for connecting the
new to the existing MHC. .

Soil stabilization is required due to proposed start date of construction for the new addition.

The costs associated with Site Considerations are $17/SF for the addition and $0/SF for
modernization of MHC.

1600 Market Street, Suite 1702 | Philadeiphia, PA 19103 | Tel 215.253.7200 | Fax 215.568.6525 | EVENTUS-PARTNERS.COM
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Ms. Barbara Nathan
December 14, 2016
Page 3 of 4

Phasing, Logistics and Abatement: Several other factors contribute to the added cost for the
project.

e Multiple phases and construction logistics are required to keep existing portion of MHC in
operation without relocating residents. The modernization of the existing MHC is schedule to
be completed in two phases and will reguire temporary protection and other safety
considerations to protect the residents and maintain operations during construction. This
adds cost to the project for General Conditions and temporary services and protection.

The cost associated with Phasing, Logistics and Abatement are 0/SF for the addition and $6/SF
for modernization of MHC.

In summary there is $62 per square foot for the addition and $21 per square foot for the
modernization added to the project to cover items not typically part of the building cost for
Skilled Nursing construction projects.

Associate
Eventus Strategic Partners, LLC

Attachments; Summary of Construction Cost Premiums
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Ms. Barbara Nathan
December 14, 2016

Page 4 of 4
i Summary of Construction Cost Premiums
Category Cost Premium New- Cost Premium
Clinical _ Modernization - Clinical
Neighborhood, private rooms and baths 29 13

Providing a small neighborhood design concept with amenities , private rooms and baths

Infrastructure i 16 | 2
Providing Infrastructure improvements to the emergency power, utility relocations, transformers ,
HVAC equipment, and LED lighting

Site Considerations | 17 | 0
New building location requires two story structure to the program, demolition of a portion of the
existing MHC and soil stabilization due to timing of construction

Phasing, Logistics and Abatement { 0 | 6
Multiple phases in an occupied building, with temporary protection, safety measures.

Total Cost Premiums $62/SF $21/SF
Projected Estimate $276/SF $172/SF
Estimated Standard for this project $220/SF $154/SF
Variance from Standard $56/SF 18/SF

Project Estimate less Premiums $214/SF $151/SF
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Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table Ii\sting all costs associated with the project. When a project or any component of a project is to be accomplished
by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair market or dollar value (refer to Part 1130.140) of the companent must be included in the
estimated project cost. If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of health care, complete the

second column n of the tablé below. Note, the use and sources of funds must equal.

Project Costs and Sources of Funds
USE OF FUNDS CLUNICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Preplanning Costs $194,210 664,490 $258,700
Site Survey and Soil investigation $96,641 $32,080 $128,721
Site Preparation $495,870 $164,836 $660,706
Off Site Work $105,448 535,004 $140,452
New Construction Contracts $8,039,461 $2,591,188 $10,630,650
Modernization Contracts $2,864,670 $1,034,973 $3,899,643
Contingencies 51,090,762 $362,268 51,453,029
Architectural/Engineering Fees $918,022 $305,058 51,224,080
Consulting and Other Fees . $512,957 $169,470 $682,427
Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction contracts) $919,954 $310,765 $1,230,719
Bond [ssuance Expense {project related) $212,053 570,497 $282,550
Net interest Expense During Construction {project related) $319,860 $106,993 $426,853
Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment 50 S0 50
Other Costs Tc Be Capitalized $619,633 $211,970 $831,603
Acquisition of Building or Other Property {excluding land) $0 S0 30
TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $16,390,541 45,459,591 $21,850,132
SOURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL
Cash and Securities $1,401,709 5466,901] . 51,868,611
Pledges
Gifts and Bequests
Bond [ssues (project related)
Mortgages $14,988,832 $4,992,690 $19,981,522
Leases (fair market value)
Governmental Appropriations
Grants
Other Funds and So Sources
TOTAL SQURCES OF FUNDS $16,390,541 $5,459,591 $21,850,132
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